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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

þ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 30, 2008
OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                      to                     
Commission file number 000-50763

BLUE NILE, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 91-1963165
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

705 Fifth Avenue South, Suite 900, Seattle, Washington 98104
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

(206) 336-6700
(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

     Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes þ No o
     Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer þ Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o
(do not check if a smaller reporting company)

      Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes o No þ
     As of April 25, 2008 the registrant had 15,007,908 shares of common stock outstanding.
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that involve many risks and uncertainties.
These statements, which relate to future events and our future performance, are based on current expectations,
estimates, forecasts and projections about the industries in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of
management as of the date of this filing. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as
�would,� �could,� �may,� �will,� �should,� �expect,� �intend,� �plan,� �anticipate,� �believe,� �estimate,� �predict,� �potential,� �targets,� �seek,� or
�continue,� the negative of these terms or other variations of such terms. In addition, any statements that refer to
projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth and trends in our business and other
characterizations of future events or circumstances, are forward-looking statements. These statements are only
predictions based upon assumptions made that are believed to be reasonable at the time, and are subject to risk and
uncertainties. Therefore, actual events or results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any
forward-looking statement. In evaluating these statements, you should specifically consider the risks described under
the caption �Item 1A � Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q. These factors, and other
factors, may cause our actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking statement. Except as required by
law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

BLUE NILE, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)
(in thousands, except par value)

March 30,
December

30,
2008 2007

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,726 $ 122,793
Trade accounts receivable 1,334 2,452
Other accounts receivable 582 1,124
Inventories 19,486 20,906
Deferred income taxes 468 799
Prepaids and other current assets 856 1,072

Total current assets 65,452 149,146
Property and equipment, net 7,676 7,601
Intangible assets, net 278 286
Deferred income taxes 4,030 3,489
Other assets 64 64

Total assets $ 77,500 $ 160,586

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 44,166 $ 85,866
Accrued liabilities 5,051 9,549
Current portion of long-term financing obligation 39 38
Current portion of deferred rent 223 238

Total current liabilities 49,479 95,691
Long-term financing obligation, less current portion 870 880
Deferred rent, less current portion 521 538
Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 5,000 shares authorized, none issued and
outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 300,000 shares authorized; 19,536 shares and
19,513 shares issued, respectively; 15,005 shares and 15,973 shares
outstanding, respectively 20 20
Additional paid-in capital 136,340 134,207
Deferred compensation � (3)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 185 75
Retained earnings 27,140 24,569
Treasury stock, at cost; 4,531 shares and 3,540 shares outstanding, respectively (137,055) (95,391)
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Total stockholders� equity 26,630 63,477

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 77,500 $ 160,586

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements
4
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BLUE NILE, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Quarter Ended
March
30, April 1,
2008 2007

Net sales $ 70,460 $ 67,910
Cost of sales 56,536 54,661

Gross profit 13,924 13,249

Selling, general and administrative expenses 10,898 9,564

Operating income 3,026 3,685

Other income, net:
Interest income, net 835 973
Other income 91 203

Total other income, net 926 1,176

Income before income taxes 3,952 4,861
Income tax expense 1,381 1,698

Net income $ 2,571 $ 3,163

Basic net income per share $ 0.16 $ 0.20

Diluted net income per share $ 0.16 $ 0.19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements
5
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BLUE NILE, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders� Equity

(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Accumulated
Additional Deferred Other Total

Common
Stock Paid-in Stock RetainedComprehensive Treasury Stock Stockholders�

Shares Amount CapitalCompensationEarnings Income Shares Amount Equity
Balance,
December 30,
2007 19,513 $ 20 $ 134,207 $ (3) $ 24,569 $ 75 (3,540) $ (95,391) $ 63,477
Net income � � � � 2,571 � � � 2,571
Other
comprehensive
income:
Foreign currency
translation
adjustment � � � � � 110 � � 110

Total
comprehensive
income 2,681
Tax benefit from
exercise of stock
options � � 76 � � � � � 76
Amortization of
deferred stock
compensation � � � 3 � � � � 3
Exercise of
common stock
options 23 � 257 � � � � � 257
Issuance of
common stock to
directors � � 30 � � � � � 30
Stock-based
compensation � � 1,770 � � � � � 1,770
Repurchase of
common stock � � � � � � (991) (41,664) (41,664)

Balance,
March 30, 2008 19,536 $ 20 $ 136,340 $ � $ 27,140 $ 185 (4,531) $ (137,055) $ 26,630

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements
6
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BLUE NILE, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Quarter Ended
March
30, April 1,
2008 2007

Operating activities:
Net income $ 2,571 $ 3,163
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 412 391
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 17 �
Stock-based compensation 1,780 1,304
Deferred income taxes (210) (459)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 76 704
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options (9) (48)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 1,660 396
Inventories 1,420 (876)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 225 201
Accounts payable (41,700) (28,425)
Accrued liabilities (4,527) (2,476)
Deferred rent and other 25 (56)

Net cash used in operating activities (38,260) (26,181)

Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (515) (193)
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 5 �
Purchases of marketable securities � (20,094)
Proceeds from the maturity of marketable securities � 10,000

Net cash used in investing activities (510) (10,287)

Financing activities:
Repurchase of common stock (41,664) (13,532)
Proceeds from stock option exercises 257 656
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options 9 48
Principal payments under long-term financing obligation (9) �

Net cash used in financing activities (41,407) (12,828)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 110 �
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Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (80,067) (49,296)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 122,793 78,540

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 42,726 $ 29,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements
7
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BLUE NILE, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)
Note 1. Description of the Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Company
Blue Nile, Inc. (the �Company�) is the leading online retailer of high quality diamonds and fine jewelry in the United
States. In addition to sales of diamonds, fine jewelry and watches, the Company provides guidance and support to
enable customers to more effectively learn about and purchase diamonds as well as classically styled fine jewelry. The
Company, a Delaware corporation based in Seattle, Washington, was formed in March 1999. The Company maintains
its primary website at www.bluenile.com. The Company also operates the www.bluenile.co.uk and www.bluenile.ca
websites.
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the
year ended December 30, 2007 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) on February 27, 2008.
The same accounting policies are followed for preparing quarterly and annual financial statements. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments necessary for the fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows for the interim period have been included and are of a normal, recurring nature.
The financial information as of December 30, 2007 is derived from the Company�s audited consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2007, included in Item 8 of the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 30, 2007.
Due to a number of factors, including the seasonal nature of the retail industry and other factors described in this
report, quarterly results are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full fiscal year or any other subsequent
interim period.
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Blue Nile, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Blue Nile, LLC (�LLC�), Blue Nile Worldwide, Inc. (�Worldwide�) and Blue Nile Jewellery, Ltd.
(�Jewellery�). LLC and Worldwide are Delaware corporations located in Seattle, Washington. Jewellery is an Irish
limited company located in Ireland. All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in
consolidation.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (�GAAP�) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Some of the more significant estimates
include the allowance for sales returns and the estimated fair value of stock options granted. Actual results could differ
materially from those estimates.
Foreign Currency Translation
The assets and liabilities of Jewellery have been translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rates effective on the
balance sheet date, while income and expense accounts are translated at the average rates in effect during the periods
presented. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (�SFAS�) No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS 157�). SFAS 157 establishes a common definition for fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.
In January 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2 delaying the effective date of SFAS 157 by one year for
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements
on a nonrecurring basis. For these items, SFAS 157 will go into effect in fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2008.
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Adoption of the SFAS 157 provisions for financial assets in the quarter ended March 30, 2008 did not have a material
impact on consolidated results of operations or financial condition. The Company will adopt the SFAS 157 provisions
for nonfinancial assets in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 in accordance with FSP 157-2, and does not expect this
statement to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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BLUE NILE, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)
In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities� (�SFAS 159�). SFAS 159 permits all entities to elect to measure certain financial instruments and other items
at fair value with changes in fair value reported in earnings. The Company adopted SFAS 159 in the first quarter of
2008 and there was no material impact on consolidated results of operations or financial condition.
Note 2. Stock-based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of FASB
Statement No. 123R, �Share-Based Payment� (�SFAS 123R�). Stock options are granted at prices equal to the fair market
value of the Company�s common stock on the date of grant. Stock-based compensation is reduced for estimated
forfeitures and compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each
stock option grant. Stock options granted generally provide for 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the date of
grant, with the remainder vesting monthly over three years, and expire 10 years from the date of grant. As of March
30, 2008, the Company had four stock option plans. Additional information regarding these plans is disclosed in the
Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 30, 2007.
The fair value of each option on the date of grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation
model. The following weighted-average assumptions were used for the valuation of options granted during the
quarters ended March 30, 2008 and April 1, 2007:

Quarter Ended
March 30, April 1,
2008 2007

Expected term 4.0 years 4.5 years
Expected volatility 46.6% 36.0%
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.11% 4.68%

Estimated fair value per option granted $17.21 $14.85
The assumptions used to calculate the fair value of options granted are evaluated and revised, if necessary, to reflect
market conditions and the Company�s experience.

9

Edgar Filing: BLUE NILE INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 13



Table of Contents

BLUE NILE, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)
A summary of stock option activity for the quarter ended March 30, 2008 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual Aggregate

Options
Weighted
Average Term

Intrinsic
Value

(in
thousands) Exercise Price (in years)

(in
thousands)

Balance, December 30, 2007 2,037 $ 32.84
Granted 210 44.56
Exercised (23) 11.33
Cancelled (9) 49.66

Balance, March 30, 2008 2,215 $ 34.10 7.20 $ 50,735

Vested and expected to vest at March 30,
2008 2,009 $ 32.72 7.09 $ 48,033
Exercisable, March 30, 2008 1,225 $ 21.29 6.23 $ 38,926
The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above is before applicable income taxes and represents the amount optionees
would have received if all options had been exercised on the last business day of the period indicated, based on the
Company�s closing stock price.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the quarter ended March 30, 2008 was $0.9 million. During the
quarter ended March 30, 2008, the total fair value of options vested was $1.2 million. As of March 30, 2008, the
Company had total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested stock options of $14.1 million. The
Company expects to recognize this cost over a weighted average period of 2.8 years.
Note 3. Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost and consist of the following (in thousands):

Quarter Ended
March
30,

December
30,

2008 2007
Loose diamonds $ 733 $ 690
Fine jewelry, watches and other 18,753 20,216

$ 19,486 $ 20,906

Note 4. Net Income Per Share
Basic net income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net
income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares and common share equivalents
outstanding. Common share equivalents included in the computation represent common shares issuable upon assumed
exercise of outstanding stock options, except when the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive.
The following tables set forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share (in thousands, except per
share data):
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BLUE NILE, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)

Quarter Ended
March
30, April 1,
2008 2007

Net income $ 2,571 $ 3,163

Weighted average common shares outstanding 15,601 15,874

Basic net income per share $ 0.16 $ 0.20

Dilutive effect of stock options 674 671

Common stock and common stock equivalents 16,275 16,545

Diluted net income per share $ 0.16 $ 0.19

For the quarter ended March 30, 2008, there were 398,833 stock option shares excluded from the computation of net
income per diluted share due to their antidilutive effect. For the quarter ended April 1, 2007, there were 573,696 stock
option shares excluded from the computation of net income per diluted share due to their antidilutive effect.
Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related
notes contained elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for our
fiscal year ended December 30, 2007.
Management Overview
We are the leading online retailer of high quality diamonds and fine jewelry. We showcase thousands of
independently certified diamonds and fine jewelry on our websites at www.bluenile.com, www.bluenile.ca,
www.bluenile.co.uk, and we ship our products to more than 25 countries across the globe.
We have a capital-efficient business model that enables us to eliminate much of the costs associated with carrying
diamond inventory. Generally, we purchase diamonds on a �just in time� basis from our suppliers when a customer
places an order for a specific diamond. We then assemble the customized diamond jewelry to our customer's
specifications and deliver the finished jewelry to the customer, generally within three business days from the order
date.
A principal component of our value proposition is providing a high quality customer experience. The Blue Nile
customer experience is designed to empower our customers by providing them with education, guidance, selection and
service. We believe that maintaining focus on perfecting the customer experience is critical to our ongoing efforts to
promote the Blue Nile brand and to continue to profitably grow our business.
Our key initiatives for 2008 include continuing to enhance the Blue Nile customer experience and maintaining our
efficient and lean cost structure. In addition, we plan to continue to drive international growth and expand the Blue
Nile customer experience to consumers around the world.
Quarter ended March 30, 2008 Highlights
During the quarter, there was a weakening in the U.S. consumer environment which affected the U.S. retail sector
overall and impacted our sales results for the period. We believe the U.S. economic environment will continue to be a
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factor in our sales growth as we move forward in 2008. During the quarter, we expanded our international business by
offering our products to customers in over 20 new countries outside of the United States through our U.S. and U.K.
websites. Our international net sales totaled $5.7 million for the quarter ended March 30, 2008, compared to $2.5
million for the quarter ended April 1, 2007.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of the Quarter Ended March 30, 2008 to the Quarter Ended April 1, 2007
The following table presents our operating results for the quarters ended March 30, 2008 and April 1, 2007,
respectively, including a comparison of the financial results for these periods (dollars in thousands, except per share
data):

Quarter Ended
March
30, April 1,

2008 2007
$

Change
%

Change
Net sales $ 70,460 $ 67,910 $ 2,550 3.8%
Cost of sales 56,536 54,661 1,875 3.4%

Gross profit 13,924 13,249 675 5.1%

Selling, general and administrative expenses 10,898 9,564 1,334 13.9%

Operating income 3,026 3,685 (659) -17.9%

Other income, net:
Interest income, net 835 973 (138) -14.2%
Other income 91 203 (112) -55.2%

Total other income, net 926 1,176 (250) -21.3%

Income before income taxes 3,952 4,861 (909) -18.7%
Income tax expense 1,381 1,698 (317) -18.7%

Net income $ 2,571 $ 3,163 $ (592) -18.7%

Basic net income per share $ 0.16 $ 0.20 $ (0.04) -20.0%

Diluted net income per share $ 0.16 $ 0.19 $ (0.03) -15.8%

Net Sales
Sales in the U.S. were impacted by the softening in the consumer environment, as discussed earlier. Net sales in the
U.S. totaled $64.7 million for the quarter ended March 30, 2008, compared to $65.4 million for the quarter ended
April 1, 2007. International sales experienced robust growth of 124% in the quarter, increasing to $5.7 million from
$2.5 million in the first quarter a year ago.
Gross Profit
The increase in gross profit in the quarter ended March 30, 2008 compared to the quarter ended April 1, 2007 resulted
primarily from our sales growth for the period. Gross profit as a percentage of net sales was 19.8% in the quarter
ended March 30, 2008 compared to 19.5% in the quarter ended April 1, 2007. The increase in gross profit margin
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resulted primarily from product pricing decisions, improved costs form procurement intitiatives and product mix,
partially offset by cost increases of metal components of our jewelry products that were not fully passed on to
customers. We expect that gross profit will fluctuate in the future based primarily on changes in product acquisition
costs, product mix and pricing decisions.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 13.9% to $10.9 million in the first quarter of 2008 compared to
the first quarter of 2007 due to several factors. Marketing costs increased approximately $0.5 million due to increased
spending on search and other online marketing vehicles to drive higher sales volumes. Stock-based compensation
increased approximately $0.5 million in the quarter ended March 30, 2008 to $1.7 million compared to the quarter
ended April 1, 2007

12
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due to the number and fair value of stock options expensed under SFAS 123R. Payroll and related costs increased
approximately $0.2 million in the quarter ended March 30, 2008 compared to the quarter ended April 1, 2007 due
primarily to the hiring of new employees. Credit card processing fees increased approximately $0.1 million in the
quarter ended March 30, 2008 compared to the quarter ended April 1, 2007 due primarily to higher sales volume.
Occupancy costs related to our U.K. fulfillment center and the expansion of our U.S. fulfillment facility added
approximately $0.1 million to expenses in the first quarter of 2008 compared to the first quarter of 2007. As a
percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses were 15.5% and 14.1% in the quarters ended
March 30, 2008 and April 1, 2007, respectively.
We expect selling, general and administrative expenses to increase in absolute dollars in future periods as a result of
our marketing effort to drive increases in net sales, growth in our fulfillment and customer service operations to
support higher sales volumes, increases in credit card processing fees, additional personnel, and other volume related
and corporate expenses.
Other Income, Net
Other income, net consists primarily of interest income. The decrease in interest income in the quarter ended
March 30, 2008 as compared to the quarter ended April 1, 2007 is due to a decrease in interest rates and lower cash
balances.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of March 30, 2008, working capital totaled $16.0 million, including cash and cash equivalents of $42.7 million and
inventory of 19.5 million, partially offset by accounts payable of $44.2 million. We believe that our current cash and
cash equivalents, as well as cash flows from operations, will be sufficient to continue our operations and meet our
capital needs for the foreseeable future.
Net cash of $38.3 million was used in operating activities for the quarter ended March 30, 2008, compared to cash
used in operating activities of $26.2 million for the quarter ended April 1, 2007. Cash was provided by earnings of
$2.6 million for the quarter ended March 30, 2008 and earnings of $3.2 million for the quarter ended April 1, 2007.
Net payments of payables totaled $41.7 million for the quarter ended March 30, 2008 and $28.4 million for the quarter
ended April 1, 2007. In the first quarter, we generally have a significant pay down of our accounts payable balance
that was built up during the fourth quarter holiday season. The volume of sales in the fourth quarter ended
December 30, 2007 was greater than the volume of sales in the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2006, resulting in
an increase in the net payment of payables in the quarter ended March 30, 2008 compared to the quarter ended
April 1, 2007. This payment cycle reflects what we believe to be the beneficial working capital characteristics of our
business model, wherein we collect cash from customers within several business days following a related sale while
we typically have longer payment terms with our suppliers.
Net cash used in investing activities was $0.5 million for the quarter ended March 30, 2008, compared to
$10.3 million for the quarter ended April 1, 2007. Cash used in investing activities for the quarter ended March 30,
2008 related primarily to the purchases of property and equipment to support our expanded operations. Cash used in
investing activities for the quarter ended April 1, 2007 related primarily to net purchases of marketable securities of
$10.1 million.
Net cash used in financing activities for the quarter ended March 30, 2008 was $41.4 million, related primarily to
repurchases of Blue Nile, Inc. common stock. During the quarter ended March 30, 2008, we purchased 990,700 shares
of our common stock for approximately $41.7 million. On February 2, 2006, our board of directors authorized the
repurchase of up to $100 million of the Company�s common stock within the 24-month period following the approval
date of the repurchase program. This repurchase program expired on February 2, 2008. On July 27, 2006, our board of
directors authorized the repurchase of up to $50 million of the Company�s common stock within the 24-month period
following the approval date of the repurchase program. On February 6, 2008, our board of directors authorized the
repurchase of up to an additional $100 million of Blue Nile, Inc. common stock during the 24-month period following
the approval date of such additional repurchase. As of March 30, 2008, a total of $108.3 million remains under our
repurchase authorizations. The shares may be repurchased from time to time in open market transactions or in
negotiated transactions off the market. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased is determined by the
Company�s management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other factors. Repurchases may also be made
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under a Rule 10b5-1 plan, which would permit shares to be repurchased when the Company might otherwise be
precluded from doing so under insider trading laws.
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Cash used in financing activities for the quarter ended April 1, 2007 was $12.8 million, related primarily to
repurchases of Blue Nile, Inc. common stock.
Contractual Obligations
There have been no material changes to the contractual obligations during the period covered by this report, outside of
the ordinary course of business, from those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 30, 2007.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of March 30, 2008, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a
current or future material effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses,
results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
The Company�s exposure to financial market risk results primarily from fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates. There have been no material changes to our market risks as disclosed in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 30, 2007.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
During the quarter ended March 30, 2008, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer
(collectively, our �certifying officers�), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
�Exchange Act�). Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in our periodic reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified by the SEC�s rules and SEC reports. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls
and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the issuer�s management, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on their evaluation, our certifying officers concluded that as of the end
of the period covered by this report, these disclosure controls and procedures are effective in the timely recording,
processing, summarizing and reporting of material financial and non-financial information and are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or
persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 30, 2008, that
our certifying officers concluded materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1A. Risk Factors
You should carefully consider the risks described below and elsewhere in this report, which could materially and
adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition. In those cases, the trading price of our
common stock could decline and you may lose all or part of your investment. For the current quarter, there have been
no material changes to the risk factors discussed below since we filed our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2007.
Our limited operating history makes it difficult for us to accurately forecast net sales and appropriately plan our
expenses.
We were incorporated in March 1999 and have a limited operating history. As a result, it is difficult to accurately
forecast our net sales and plan our operating expenses. We base our current and future expense levels on our operating
forecasts and estimates of future net sales. Net sales and operating results are difficult to forecast because they
generally depend on the volume and timing of the orders we receive, which are uncertain. Additionally, our business
is affected by general economic and business conditions in the U.S. and internationally. A softening in net sales,
whether caused by changes in customer preferences or a weakening in the U.S. or global economies, may result in
decreased revenue growth. Some of our expenses are fixed, and, as a result, we may be unable to adjust our spending
in a timely manner to compensate for any unexpected shortfall in net sales. This inability could cause our net income
in a given quarter to be lower than expected. We also make certain assumptions when forecasting the amount of
expense we expect related to our stock-based compensation, which includes the expected volatility of our stock price,
the expected life of options granted and the expected rate of stock option forfeitures. These assumptions are partly
based on historical results. If actual results differ from our estimates, our net income in a given quarter may be lower
than expected.
We expect our quarterly financial results to fluctuate, which may lead to volatility in our stock price.
We expect our net sales and operating results to vary significantly from quarter to quarter due to a number of factors,
including changes in:
� demand for our products;

� the costs to acquire diamonds and precious metals;

� our ability to attract visitors to our websites and convert those visitors into customers;

� general economic conditions, both domestically and internationally;

� our ability to retain existing customers or encourage repeat purchases;

� our ability to manage our product mix and inventory;

� wholesale diamond prices;

� consumer tastes and preferences for diamonds and fine jewelry;

� our ability to manage our operations;

� the extent to which we provide for and pay taxes;

� stock-based compensation expense as a result of the nature, timing and amount of stock options granted, the
underlying assumptions used in valuing these options, the estimated rate of stock option forfeitures and other
factors;
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� advertising and other marketing costs;

� our, or our competitors�, pricing and marketing strategies;

� the introduction of competitive websites, products, price decreases or improvements;

� conditions or trends in the diamond and fine jewelry industry;

� conditions or trends in the Internet and e-commerce industry;

� the success of our geographic, service and product line expansions;

� foreign exchange rates;

� interest rates; and

� costs of expanding or enhancing our technology or websites.
As a result of the variability of these and other factors, our operating results in future quarters may be below the
expectations of public market analysts and investors. In this event, the price of our common stock may decline.

15

Edgar Filing: BLUE NILE INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 24



Table of Contents

Our revenues are influenced by general economic cycles.
Luxury products, such as diamonds and fine jewelry, are discretionary purchases for consumers. The volume and
dollar value of such purchases may significantly decrease during economic downturns. The success of our business
depends in part on many macroeconomic factors, including market downturns, consumer confidence, employment
levels, salary levels, tax rates and credit availability, all of which affect consumer spending and disposable income.
Any reduction in consumer spending or disposable income would harm our business and results of operations and may
affect us more significantly than companies in other industries and companies with a diversified product offering.
As a result of seasonal fluctuations in our net sales, our quarterly results may fluctuate and could be below
expectations.
We have experienced and expect to continue to experience seasonal fluctuations in our net sales. In particular, a
disproportionate amount of our net sales has been realized during the fourth quarter as a result of the December
holiday season, and we expect this seasonality to continue in the future. Approximately 35%, 36%, and 36% of our net
sales in the years ended December 30, 2007, December 31, 2006, and January 1, 2006, respectively, were generated
during the fourth quarter of each year. In anticipation of increased sales activity during the fourth quarter, we may
incur significant additional expenses, including higher inventory of jewelry and additional staffing in our fulfillment
and customer support operations. If we were to experience lower than expected net sales during any future fourth
quarter, it would have a disproportionately large impact on our operating results and financial condition for that year.
Further, we may experience an increase in our net shipping cost due to complimentary upgrades, split-shipments, and
additional long-zone shipments necessary to ensure timely delivery for the holiday season. We also experience
considerable fluctuations in net sales in periods preceding other annual occasions such as Valentine�s Day and Mother�s
Day. In the future, our seasonal sales patterns may become more pronounced, may strain our personnel and fulfillment
activities and may cause a shortfall in net sales as compared to expenses in a given period, which would substantially
harm our business and results of operations.
Our failure to acquire quality diamonds and fine jewelry at commercially reasonable prices would result in higher
costs and lower net sales and damage our competitive position.
If we are unable to acquire quality diamonds and fine jewelry at commercially reasonable prices, our costs may
exceed our forecasts, our gross margins and operating results may suffer and our competitive position could be
damaged. The success of our business model depends, in part, on our ability to offer quality products to customers at
prices that are below those of traditional jewelry retailers. A majority of the world�s supply of rough diamonds is
controlled by a small number of diamond mining firms. As a result, any decisions made to restrict the supply of rough
diamonds by these firms to our suppliers could substantially impair our ability to acquire diamonds at commercially
reasonable prices, if at all. We do not currently have any direct supply relationship with these firms. Our ability to
acquire diamonds and fine jewelry is also substantially dependent on our relationships with various suppliers.
Approximately 21%, 21% and 25% of our payments to our diamond and fine jewelry suppliers in the years ended
December 30, 2007, December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, respectively, were made to our top three suppliers. Our
inability to maintain and expand these and other future diamond and fine jewelry supply relationships on
commercially reasonable terms or the inability of our current and future suppliers to maintain arrangements for the
supply of products sold to us on commercially reasonable terms would substantially harm our business and results of
operations.
Suppliers and manufacturers of diamonds as well as retailers of diamonds and diamond jewelry are vertically
integrated and we expect they will continue to vertically integrate their operations either by developing retail channels
for the products they manufacture or acquiring sources of supply, including, without limitation, diamond mining
operations for the products that they sell. To the extent such vertical integration efforts are successful, some of the
fragmentation in the existing diamond supply chain could be eliminated, and our ability to obtain an adequate supply
of diamonds and fine jewelry from multiple sources could be limited and our competitors may be able to obtain
diamonds at lower prices.
Our failure to meet customer expectations with respect to price would adversely affect our business and results of
operations.
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Demand for our products has been highly sensitive to pricing changes. Changes in our pricing strategies have had and
may continue to have a significant impact on our net sales, gross margins and net income. In the past, we have
instituted retail price changes as part of our strategy to stimulate growth in net sales and optimize gross profit. We
may institute similar price changes in the future. Such price changes may not result in an increase in net sales or in the
optimization of gross profits. In addition, many external factors, including the costs to acquire diamonds and precious
metals and our competitors� pricing and
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marketing strategies, can significantly impact our pricing strategies. If we fail to meet customer expectations with
respect to price in any given period, our business and results of operations would suffer.
Our net sales may be negatively affected if we are required to charge taxes on purchases.
We do not collect or have imposed upon us sales or other taxes related to the products we sell, except for certain
corporate level taxes, sales taxes with respect to purchases by customers located in the State of Washington, and
certain taxes required to be collected on sales to customers outside of the United States of America. The State of New
York has recently enacted legislation that may require us to collect sales taxes on purchases by customers located in
New York. Additionally, one or more states or foreign countries may seek to impose sales or other tax collection
obligations on us in the future. A successful assertion by one or more states or foreign countries that we should be
collecting sales or other taxes on the sale of our products could result in substantial tax liabilities for past sales,
discourage customers from purchasing products from us, decrease our competitive advantage with respect to
traditional retailers or otherwise substantially harm our business and results of operations.
Currently, decisions of the U.S. Supreme Court restrict the imposition of obligations to collect state and local sales
and use taxes with respect to sales made over the Internet. However, implementation of the restrictions imposed by
these Supreme Court decisions is subject to interpretation by state and local taxing authorities. While we believe that
these Supreme Court decisions currently restrict state and local taxing authorities outside the State of Washington
from requiring us to collect sales and use taxes from purchasers located within their jurisdictions, taxing authorities
outside the State of Washington could disagree with our interpretation of these decisions. Moreover, a number of
states, as well as the U.S. Congress, have been considering various initiatives that could limit or supersede the
Supreme Court�s position regarding sales and use taxes on Internet sales. If any state or local taxing jurisdiction were
to disagree with our interpretation of the Supreme Court�s current position regarding state and local taxation of Internet
sales, or if any of these initiatives were to address the Supreme Court�s constitutional concerns and result in a reversal
of its current position, we could be required to collect sales and use taxes from purchasers located in states other than
Washington. The imposition by state and local governments of various taxes upon Internet commerce could create
administrative burdens for us and could decrease our future net sales.
We may not succeed in continuing to establish the Blue Nile brand, which would prevent us from acquiring
customers and increasing our net sales.
A significant component of our business strategy is the continued establishment and promotion of the Blue Nile brand.
Due to the competitive nature of the online market for diamonds and fine jewelry, if we do not continue to establish
our brand and branded products, we may fail to build the critical mass of customers required to substantially increase
our net sales. Promoting and positioning our brand will depend largely on the success of our marketing and
merchandising efforts and our ability to provide a consistent, high quality customer experience. To promote our brand
and branded products, we have incurred and will continue to incur substantial expense related to advertising and other
marketing efforts.
A critical component of our brand promotion strategy is establishing a relationship of trust with our customers, which
we believe can be achieved by providing a high quality customer experience. In order to provide a high quality
customer experience, we have invested and will continue to invest substantial amounts of resources in the
development and functionality of our multiple websites, technology infrastructure, fulfillment operations and
customer service operations. Our ability to provide a high quality customer experience is also dependent, in large part,
on external factors over which we may have little or no control, including, without limitation, the reliability and
performance of our suppliers, third-party jewelry assemblers, third-party carriers and networking vendors. During our
peak seasons, we rely on temporary employees to supplement our full-time customer service and fulfillment
employees. Temporary employees may not have the same level of commitment to our customers as our full-time
employees. If our customers are dissatisfied with the quality of the products or the customer service they receive, or if
we are unable to deliver products to our customers in a timely manner or at all, our customers may stop purchasing
products from us. We also rely on third parties for information, including product characteristics and availability that
we present to consumers on our websites, which may, on occasion, be inaccurate. Our failure to provide our customers
with high quality customer experiences for any reason could substantially harm our reputation and adversely impact
our efforts to develop Blue Nile as a trusted brand. The failure of our brand promotion activities could adversely affect
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our ability to attract new customers and maintain customer relationships, and, as a result, substantially harm our
business and results of operations.
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In order to increase net sales and to sustain or increase profitability, we must attract customers in a cost-effective
manner.
Our success depends on our ability to attract customers in a cost-effective manner. We have relationships with
providers of online services, search engines, directories and other websites and e-commerce businesses to provide
content, advertising banners and other links that direct customers to our websites. We rely on these relationships as
significant sources of traffic to our websites. Our agreements with these providers generally have terms of one year or
less. If we are unable to develop or maintain these relationships on acceptable terms, our ability to attract new
customers would be harmed. In addition, many of the parties with which we have online-advertising arrangements
could provide advertising services to other online or traditional retailers, including retailers with whom we compete.
As competition for online advertising has increased, the cost for these services has also increased. A significant
increase in the cost of the marketing vehicles upon which we rely could adversely impact our ability to attract
customers in a cost-effective manner and harm our business and results of operations.
We face significant competition and may be unsuccessful in competing against current and future competitors.
The retail jewelry industry is intensely competitive, and we expect competition in the sale of diamonds and fine
jewelry to increase and intensify in the future. Increased competition may result in price pressure, reduced gross
margins and loss of market share, any of which could substantially harm our business and results of operations.
Current and potential competitors include:
� independent jewelry stores;

� retail jewelry store chains, such as Tiffany & Co. and Bailey Banks & Biddle;

� other online retailers that sell jewelry, such as Amazon.com;

� department stores, chain stores and mass retailers, such as Nordstrom and Neiman Marcus;

� online auction sites, such as eBay;

� catalog and television shopping retailers, such as Home Shopping Network and QVC; and

� discount superstores and wholesale clubs, such as Wal-Mart and Costco Wholesale.
In addition to these competitors, we may face competition from suppliers of our products that decide to sell directly to
consumers, either through physical retail outlets or through online stores.
Many of our current and potential competitors have advantages over us, including longer operating histories, greater
brand recognition, existing customer and supplier relationships, and significantly greater financial, marketing and
other resources. In addition, traditional store-based retailers offer consumers the ability to physically handle and
examine products in a manner that is not possible over the Internet as well as a more convenient means of returning
and exchanging purchased products.
Some of our competitors seeking to establish an online presence may be able to devote substantially more resources to
website systems development and exert more leverage over the supply chain for diamonds and fine jewelry than we
can. In addition, larger, more established and better capitalized entities may acquire, invest or partner with traditional
and online competitors as use of the Internet and other online services increases. Our online competitors can duplicate
many of the products, services and content we offer, which could harm our business and results of operations.
We may be unsuccessful in further expanding our operations internationally.
To date, we have made limited international sales, but we have recently expanded our operations to include a
fulfillment operation in Ireland to serve customers acquired through our United Kingdom website. Additionally, we
have increased our product offerings and marketing and sales efforts throughout Europe, Canada and the Asia-Pacific
region and anticipate continuing to expand our international sales and operations in the future either by expanding
local versions of our website for foreign markets or through acquisitions or alliances with third parties. Any
international expansion plans we choose to undertake will increase the complexity of our business, require attention
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from management and other personnel and cause additional strain on our operations, technology systems, financial
resources and our internal financial control and reporting functions. Further, our expansion efforts may be
unsuccessful. We have minimal experience in selling our products in international markets and in conforming to the
local cultures, standards or policies necessary to successfully compete in those markets. Outside of the United
Kingdom and Canada, we have very limited web content localized for foreign markets and we cannot be certain that
we will be able to expand our global presence if we choose to further expand internationally. In addition, we may have
to compete with retailers that have more experience with local markets. Our ability to expand and succeed
internationally may also be limited by the demand for our products, the ability of our brand to resonate with foreign
consumers and the adoption of electronic commerce in these markets. Different privacy, censorship and liability
standards
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and regulations and different intellectual property laws in foreign countries may prohibit expansion into such markets
or cause our business and results of operations to suffer.
Our current and future international operations may also fail to succeed due to other risks inherent in foreign
operations, including:
� the need to develop new supplier and jeweler relationships;

� international regulatory requirements and tariffs;

� difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations;

� longer payment cycles from credit card companies;

� greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection;

� our reliance on third-party carriers for product shipments to our customers;

� risk of theft of our products during shipment;

� limited shipping and insurance options for us and our customers;

� potential adverse tax consequences;

� foreign currency exchange risk;

� lack of infrastructure to adequately conduct electronic commerce transactions or fulfillment operations;

� unclear foreign intellectual property protection laws;

� laws and regulations related to corporate governance and employee/employer relationships; price controls or
other restrictions on foreign currency;

� difficulties in obtaining export, import or other business licensing requirements;

� increased payment risk and greater difficulty addressing credit card fraud;

� consumer and data protection laws;

� lower levels of adoption or use of the Internet; and

� geopolitical events, including war and terrorism.
Our failure to successfully expand our international operations may cause our business and results of operations to
suffer.
We rely on our suppliers, third-party carriers and third-party jewelers as part of our fulfillment process, and these
third parties may fail to adequately serve our customers.
We significantly rely on our suppliers to promptly ship us diamonds ordered by our customers. Any failure by our
suppliers to sell and ship such products to us in a timely manner will have an adverse effect on our ability to fulfill
customer orders and harm our business and results of operations. Our suppliers, in turn, rely on third-party carriers to
ship diamonds to us, and in some cases, directly to our customers. We also rely on third-party carriers for product
shipments to our customers. We and our suppliers are therefore subject to the risks, including employee strikes and
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inclement weather, associated with such carriers� abilities to provide delivery services to meet our and our suppliers�
shipping needs. In addition, for some customer orders we rely on third-party jewelers to assemble the product. Our
suppliers�, third-party carriers� or third-party jewelers� failure to deliver high-quality products to us or our customers in a
timely manner or to otherwise adequately serve our customers would damage our reputation and brand and
substantially harm our business and results of operations.
If our fulfillment operations are interrupted for any significant period of time, our business and results of
operations would be substantially harmed.
Our success depends on our ability to successfully receive and fulfill orders and to promptly and securely deliver our
products to our customers. Most of our inventory management, jewelry assembly, packaging, labeling and product
return processes are performed in a single fulfillment center located in the United States. This facility is susceptible to
damage or interruption from human error, fire, flood, power loss, telecommunications failure, terrorist attacks, acts of
war, break-ins, earthquake and similar events. We have recently added another fulfillment center in Ireland that would
also be susceptible to these events. Our business interruption insurance may be insufficient to compensate us for
losses that may occur in the event operations at our fulfillment centers are interrupted. We have recently expanded our
existing fulfillment center located in the United States. Any interruptions in our fulfillment center operations for any
significant period of time, could damage our reputation and brand and substantially harm our business and results of
operations.
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We rely on the services of our key personnel, any of whom would be difficult to replace.
We rely upon the continued service and performance of key technical, fulfillment and senior management personnel.
If we lose any of these personnel, our business could suffer. Competition for qualified personnel in our industry is
intense. We believe that our future success will depend on our continued ability to attract, hire and retain key
employees. Other than for our Executive Chairman, we do not have �key person� life insurance policies covering any of
our employees.
We face the risk of theft of our products from inventory or during shipment.
We have experienced and may continue to experience theft of our products while they are being held in our fulfillment
centers or during the course of shipment to our customers by third-party shipping carriers. We have taken steps to
prevent such theft. However, if security measures fail, losses exceed our insurance coverage or we are not able to
maintain insurance at a reasonable cost, we could incur significant losses from theft, which would substantially harm
our business and results of operations.
If the single facility where substantially all of our computer and communications hardware is located fails, our
business, results of operations and financial condition would be harmed.
Our ability to successfully receive and fulfill orders and to provide high quality customer service depends in part on
the efficient and uninterrupted operation of our computer and communications systems. Substantially all of the
computer hardware necessary to operate our websites is located at a single leased facility. Our systems and operations
are vulnerable to damage or interruption from human error, fire, flood, power loss, telecommunications failure,
terrorist attacks, acts of war, break-ins, earthquake and similar events. We do not presently have redundant systems in
multiple locations and our business interruption insurance may be insufficient to compensate us for losses that may
occur. In addition, our servers are vulnerable to computer viruses, denial of service attacks, physical or electronic
break-ins and similar disruptions, which could lead to interruptions, delays, loss of critical data, the inability to fulfill
customer orders or the unauthorized disclosure of confidential customer data. The occurrence of any of the foregoing
risks could substantially harm our business and results of operations.
Our failure to protect confidential information of our customers and our network against security breaches could
damage our reputation and brand and substantially harm our business and results of operations.
A significant barrier to online commerce and communications is the secure transmission of confidential information
over public networks. Our failure to prevent security breaches could damage our reputation and brand and
substantially harm our business and results of operations. Currently, a majority of our sales are billed to our customers�
credit card accounts directly. We rely on encryption and authentication technology licensed from third parties to effect
secure transmission of confidential information, including credit card numbers. Advances in computer capabilities,
human errors, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments may result in a compromise or
breach of the technology used by us to protect customer transaction data. In addition, any party who is able to illicitly
obtain a user�s password could access the customer�s transaction data. An increasing number of websites and Internet
companies have reported breaches of their security. Any such compromise of our security could damage our
reputation, business and brand and expose us to a risk of loss or litigation and possible liability, which would
substantially harm our business, and results of operations. In addition, anyone who is able to circumvent our security
measures could misappropriate proprietary information or cause interruptions in our operations, damage our
computers or those of our users, or otherwise damage our reputation and business. These issues are likely to become
more difficult as we expand the number of countries in which we operate. We may need to expend significant
resources to protect against security breaches or to address problems caused by breaches.
We rely exclusively on the sale of diamonds and fine jewelry for our net sales, and demand for these products could
decline.
Our net sales and results of operations are highly dependent on the demand for diamonds and diamond jewelry,
particularly engagement rings. Should prevailing consumer tastes for diamonds decline or customs with respect to
engagement shift away from the presentation of diamond jewelry, demand for our products would decline and our
business and results of operations would be substantially harmed.
The significant cost of diamonds results in part from their scarcity. From time to time, attempts have been made to
develop and market synthetic stones and gems to compete in the market for diamonds and diamond jewelry. We
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expect such efforts to continue in the future. If any such efforts are successful in creating widespread demand for
alternative diamond products, demand and price levels for our products would decline and our business and results of
operations would be substantially harmed.
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In recent years, increasing attention has been focused on �conflict� diamonds, which are diamonds extracted from
war-torn regions in Africa and sold by rebel forces to fund insurrection. Diamonds are, in some cases, also believed to
be used to fund terrorist activities in some regions. We support the Kimberley Process, an international initiative
intended to ensure diamonds are not illegally traded to fund conflict. As part of this initiative, we require our diamond
suppliers to sign a statement acknowledging compliance with the Kimberley Process, and invoices received for
diamonds purchased by us must include a certification from the vendor that the diamonds are conflict free. In addition,
we prohibit the use of our business or services for money laundering or terrorist financing in accordance with the USA
Patriot Act. Through these and other efforts, we believe that the suppliers from whom we purchase our diamonds seek
to exclude conflict diamonds from their inventories. However, we cannot independently determine whether any
diamond we offer was extracted from these regions. Current efforts to increase consumer awareness of this issue and
encourage legislative response could adversely affect consumer demand for diamonds.
Consumer confidence is dependent, in part, on the certification of our diamonds by independent laboratories. A
decline in the quality of the certifications provided by these laboratories could adversely impact demand for our
products. Additionally, a decline in consumer confidence in the credibility of independent diamond grading
certifications could adversely impact demand for our diamond products.
Our jewelry offerings must reflect the tastes and preferences of a wide range of consumers whose preferences may
change regularly. Our strategy has been to offer primarily what we consider to be classic styles of fine jewelry, but
there can be no assurance that these styles will continue to be popular with consumers in the future. If the styles we
offer become less popular with consumers and we are not able to adjust our product offerings in a timely manner, our
net sales may decline or fail to meet expected levels.
Our failure to effectively manage the growth in our operations may prevent us from successfully expanding our
business.
We have experienced, and in the future may experience, rapid growth in operations, which has placed, and could
continue to place, a significant strain on our operations, services, internal controls and other managerial, operational
and financial resources. To effectively manage future expansion, we will need to maintain our operational and
financial systems and managerial controls and procedures, which include the following processes:
� transaction-processing and fulfillment;

� inventory management;

� customer support;

� management of multiple supplier relationships;

� operational, financial and managerial controls;

� reporting procedures;

� management of our facilities;

� recruitment, training, supervision, retention and management of our employees; and

� technology operations.
If we are unable to manage future expansion, our ability to provide a high quality customer experience could be
harmed, which would damage our reputation and brand and substantially harm our business and results of operations.
The success of our business may depend on our ability to successfully expand our product offerings.
Our ability to significantly increase our net sales and maintain and increase our profitability may depend on our ability
to successfully expand our product lines beyond our current offerings. If we offer a new product category that is not
accepted by consumers, the Blue Nile brand and reputation could be adversely affected, our net sales may fall short of
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expectations and we may incur substantial expenses that are not offset by increased net sales. Expansion of our
product lines may also strain our management and operational resources.
If we are unable to accurately manage our inventory of fine jewelry, our reputation and results of operations could
suffer.
Except for loose diamonds, substantially all of the fine jewelry we sell is from our physical inventory. Changes in
consumer tastes for these products subject us to significant inventory risks. The demand for specific products can
change between the time we order an item and the date we receive it. If we under-stock one or more of our products,
we may not be able to obtain additional units in a timely manner on terms favorable to us, if at all, which would
damage our reputation and substantially harm our business and results of operations. In addition, if demand for our
products increases over time, we may be forced to
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increase inventory levels. If one or more of our products does not achieve widespread consumer acceptance, we may
be required to take significant inventory markdowns, or may not be able to sell the product at all, which would
substantially harm our results of operations.
Repurchases of our common stock may not prove to be the best use of our cash resources.
On July 27, 2006, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $50 million of Blue Nile, Inc. common
stock during the 24-month period following the approval date of such repurchases. On February 6, 2008, our board of
directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional $100 million of Blue Nile, Inc. common stock during the
24-month period following the approval date of the additional repurchases. These repurchases and any repurchases we
may make in the future may not prove to be at optimal prices and our use of cash for the stock repurchase program
may not prove to be the best use of our cash resources and may adversely impact our future liquidity.
We have foreign exchange risk.
The results of operations of our foreign subsidiary are exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Upon translation
from foreign currency into U.S. dollars, operating results may differ materially from expectations, and we may record
significant gains or losses. As we expand our international operations, our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations may
increase.
We have incurred significant operating losses in the past and may not be able to sustain profitability in the future.
We experienced significant operating losses in each quarter from our inception in 1999 through the second quarter of
2002. As a result, our business has a limited record of profitability and may not continue to be profitable or increase
profitability. If we are unable to acquire diamonds and fine jewelry at commercially reasonable prices, if net sales
decline or if our expenses otherwise exceed our expectations, we may not be able to sustain or increase profitability on
a quarterly or annual basis.
Failure to adequately protect or enforce our intellectual property rights could substantially harm our business and
results of operations.
We rely on a combination of patent, trademark, trade secret and copyright law and contractual restrictions to protect
our intellectual property. These afford only limited protection. Despite our efforts to protect and enforce our
proprietary rights, unauthorized parties have attempted, and may in the future attempt, to copy aspects of our website
features, compilation and functionality or to obtain and use information that we consider as proprietary, such as the
technology used to operate our websites, our content and our trademarks. We have registered �Blue Nile,� �bluenile.com,�
the BN logo and the Blue Nile BN stylized logo as trademarks in the United States and in certain other countries. Our
competitors have, and other competitors may, adopt service names similar to ours, thereby impeding our ability to
build brand identity and possibly leading to consumer confusion. In addition, there could be potential trade name or
trademark infringement claims brought by owners of other registered trademarks or trademarks that incorporate
variations of the term Blue Nile or our other trademarks. Any claims or consumer confusion related to our trademarks
could damage our reputation and brand and substantially harm our business and results of operations.
We currently hold the bluenile.com, bluenile.co.uk and bluenile.ca Internet domain names and various other related
domain names. Domain names generally are regulated by Internet regulatory bodies. If we lose the ability to use a
domain name in a particular country, we would be forced to either incur significant additional expenses to market our
products within that country, including the development of a new brand and the creation of new promotional materials
and packaging, or elect not to sell products in that country. Either result could substantially harm our business and
results of operations. The regulation of domain names in the United States and in foreign countries is subject to
change. Regulatory bodies could establish additional top-level domains, appoint additional domain name registrars or
modify the requirements for holding domain names. As a result, we may not be able to acquire or maintain the domain
names that utilize the name Blue Nile in all of the countries in which we currently or intend to conduct business.
Litigation or proceedings before the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or similar international regulatory agencies
may be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets and domain
names and to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. Any litigation or adverse priority
proceeding could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and could substantially harm our business and
results of operations. We sell and intend to increasingly sell our products internationally, and the laws of many
countries do not protect our proprietary rights to as great an extent as do the laws of the United States.
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Assertions by third parties of infringement by us of their intellectual property rights could result in significant costs
and substantially harm our business and results of operations.
Third parties have, and may in the future, assert that we have infringed their technology or other intellectual property
rights. We cannot predict whether any such assertions or claims arising from such assertions will substantially harm
our business and results of operations. If we are forced to defend against any infringement claims, whether they are
with or without merit or are determined in our favor, we may face costly litigation, diversion of technical and
management personnel or product shipment delays. Furthermore, the outcome of a dispute may be that we would need
to develop non-infringing technology or enter into royalty or licensing agreements. Royalty or licensing agreements, if
required, may be unavailable on terms acceptable to us, or at all.
Increased product returns and the failure to accurately predict product returns could substantially harm our
business and results of operations.
We generally offer our customers an unconditional 30-day return policy that allows our customers to return most
products if they are not satisfied for any reason. We make allowances for product returns in our financial statements
based on historical return rates and current economic conditions. Actual merchandise returns are difficult to predict
and may differ from our allowances. Any significant increase in merchandise returns above our allowances would
substantially harm our business and results of operations.
Interruptions to our systems that impair customer access to our websites would damage our reputation and brand
and substantially harm our business and results of operations.
The satisfactory performance, reliability and availability of our websites, transaction processing systems and network
infrastructure are critical to our reputation and our ability to attract and retain customers and to maintain adequate
customer service levels. Any future systems interruptions or downtime or technical difficulties that result in the
unavailability of our websites or reduced order fulfillment performance could result in negative publicity, damage our
reputation and brand and cause our business and results of operations to suffer. We may be susceptible to such
disruptions in the future. We may also experience temporary system interruptions for a variety of other reasons in the
future, including power failures, failures of Internet service and telecommunication providers, software or human
errors or an overwhelming number of visitors trying to reach our websites during periods of strong seasonal demand
or promotions. Because we are dependent in part on third parties for the implementation and maintenance of certain
aspects of our systems and because some of the causes of system interruptions may be outside of our control, we may
not be able to remedy such interruptions in a timely manner, or at all.
Purchasers of diamonds and fine jewelry may not choose to shop online, which would prevent us from increasing
net sales.
The online market for diamonds and fine jewelry is significantly less developed than the online market for books,
music, toys and other consumer products. If this market does not gain widespread acceptance, our business may
suffer. Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to attract consumers who have historically purchased diamonds
and fine jewelry through traditional retailers. Furthermore, we may have to incur significantly higher and more
sustained advertising and promotional expenditures or price our products more competitively than we currently
anticipate in order to attract additional online consumers to our websites and convert them into purchasing customers.
Specific factors that could prevent consumers from purchasing diamonds and fine jewelry from us include:
� concerns about buying luxury products such as diamonds and fine jewelry without a physical storefront,

face-to-face interaction with sales personnel and the ability to physically handle and examine products;

� delivery time associated with Internet orders;

� product offerings that do not reflect consumer tastes and preferences;

� pricing that does not meet consumer expectations;

� concerns about the security of online transactions and the privacy of personal information;
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� usability, functions and features of our websites.
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If use of the Internet, particularly with respect to online commerce, does not continue to increase as rapidly as we
anticipate, our business will be harmed.
Our future net sales and profits are substantially dependent upon the continued growth in the use of the Internet as an
effective medium of business and communication by our target customers. Internet use may not continue to develop at
historical rates and consumers may not continue to use the Internet and other online services as a medium for
commerce. Highly publicized failures by some online retailers to meet consumer demands could result in consumer
reluctance to adopt the Internet as a means for commerce, and thereby damage our reputation and brand and
substantially harm our business and results of operations.
In addition, the Internet may not be accepted as a viable long-term commercial marketplace for a number of reasons,
including:
� actual or perceived lack of security of information or privacy protection;

� possible disruptions, computer viruses, spyware, phishing, attacks or other damage to the Internet servers,
service providers, network carriers and Internet companies or to users� computers; and

� excessive governmental regulation.
Our success will depend, in large part, upon third parties maintaining the Internet infrastructure to provide a reliable
network backbone with the speed, data capacity, security and hardware necessary for reliable Internet access and
services. Our business, which relies on a contextually rich website that requires the transmission of substantial secure
data, is also significantly dependent upon the availability and adoption of broadband Internet access and other high
speed Internet connectivity technologies.
Our failure to address risks associated with payment methods, credit card fraud and other consumer fraud could
damage our reputation and brand and may cause our business and results of operations to suffer.
Under current credit card practices, we are liable for fraudulent credit card transactions because we do not obtain a
cardholder�s signature. We do not currently carry insurance against this risk. To date, we have experienced minimal
losses from credit card fraud, but we face the risk of significant losses from this type of fraud as our net sales increase
and as we expand internationally. Our failure to adequately control fraudulent credit card transactions could damage
our reputation and brand and substantially harm our business and results of operations. Additionally, for certain
payment transactions, including credit and debit cards, we pay interchange and other fees, which may increase over
time and raise our operating costs and lower our operating margins.
We rely on our relationship with a third-party consumer credit company to offer financing for the purchase of our
products.
The purchase of the diamond and fine jewelry products we sell is a substantial expense for many of our customers. We
currently rely on our relationship with a single financial institution to provide financing to our customers. If we are
unable to maintain this or other similar arrangements, we may not be able to offer financing alternatives to our
customers, which may reduce demand for our products and substantially harm our business and results of operations.
We may undertake acquisitions to expand our business, which may pose risks to our business and dilute the
ownership of our existing stockholders.
A key component of our business strategy includes strengthening our competitive position and refining the customer
experience on our websites through internal development. However, from time to time, we may selectively pursue
acquisitions of businesses, technologies or services. Integrating any newly acquired businesses, technologies or
services may be expensive and time-consuming. To finance any acquisitions, it may be necessary for us to raise
additional funds through public or private financings. Additional funds may not be available on terms that are
favorable to us, and, in the case of equity financings, would result in dilution to our stockholders. If we do complete
any acquisitions, we may be unable to operate such acquired businesses profitably or otherwise implement our
strategy successfully. If we are unable to integrate any newly acquired entities or technologies effectively, our
business and results of operations could suffer. The time and expense associated with finding suitable and compatible
businesses, technologies or services could also disrupt our ongoing business and divert our management�s attention.
Future acquisitions by us could also result in large and immediate write-offs or assumptions of debt and contingent

Edgar Filing: BLUE NILE INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 41



liabilities, any of which could substantially harm our business and results of operations. We have no current plans,
agreements or commitments with respect to any such acquisitions.
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Our failure to rapidly respond to technological change could result in our services or systems becoming obsolete
and substantially harm our business and results of operations.
As the Internet and online commerce industries evolve, we may be required to license emerging technologies useful in
our business, enhance our existing services, develop new services and technologies that address the increasingly
sophisticated and varied needs of our prospective customers and respond to technological advances and emerging
industry standards and practices on a cost-effective and timely basis. We may not be able to successfully implement
new technologies or adapt our websites, proprietary technologies and transaction-processing systems to customer
requirements or emerging industry standards. Our failure to do so would substantially harm our business and results of
operations. We may be required to upgrade existing technologies or business applications, or implement new
technologies or business applications. Our results of operations may be affected by the timing, effectiveness and costs
associated with the successful implementation of any upgrades or changes to our systems and infrastructure.
We may have exposure to greater than anticipated tax liabilities.
We are subject to income, payroll, duties and other taxes in both the United States and foreign jurisdictions. In the
ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Our determination of our tax liability is always subject to review by applicable tax authorities. Any adverse
outcome of such a review could have a negative effect on our operating results and financial condition. Although we
believe our estimates are reasonable, the ultimate tax outcome may differ from the amounts recorded in our financial
statements and may materially affect our financial results in the period or periods for which such determination is
made.
Government regulation of the Internet and e-commerce is evolving and unfavorable changes could substantially
harm our business and results of operations.
We are not currently subject to direct federal, state or local regulation other than regulations applicable to businesses
generally or directly applicable to retailing and online commerce. However, as the Internet becomes increasingly
popular, it is possible that laws and regulations may be adopted with respect to the Internet, which may impede the
growth of the Internet or other online services. These regulations and laws may cover issues such as taxation,
advertising, intellectual property rights, freedom of expression, pricing, restrictions on imports and exports, customs,
tariffs, information security, privacy, data protection, content, distribution, electronic contracts and other
communications, the provision of online payment services, broadband residential Internet access and the
characteristics and quality of products and services. Further, the growth of online commerce may prompt calls for
more stringent consumer protection laws. Several states have proposed legislation to limit the uses of personal user
information gathered online or require online companies to establish privacy policies. The Federal Trade Commission
has also initiated action against at least one online company regarding the manner in which personal information is
collected from users and provided to third parties. The adoption of additional privacy or consumer protection laws
could create uncertainty in Internet usage and reduce the demand for our products and services.
We are not certain how our business may be affected by the application of existing laws governing issues such as
property ownership, copyrights, personal property, encryption and other intellectual property issues, taxation, libel,
obscenity, qualification to do business and export or import matters. The vast majority of these laws were adopted
prior to the advent of the Internet. As a result, they do not contemplate or address the unique issues of the Internet and
related technologies. Changes in laws intended to address these issues could create uncertainty for those conducting
online commerce. This uncertainty could reduce demand for our products and services or increase the cost of doing
business as a result of litigation costs or increased fulfillment costs and may substantially harm our business and
results of operations.
We may need to implement additional finance and accounting systems, procedures and controls as we grow our
business and organization and to satisfy new reporting requirements.
As a public reporting company, we are required to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules
and regulations of the SEC, including expanded disclosures and accelerated reporting requirements and more complex
accounting rules. Compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other requirements may
increase our costs and require additional management time and resources. We may need to continue to implement
additional finance and accounting systems, procedures and controls to satisfy new reporting requirements. If our
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25

Edgar Filing: BLUE NILE INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 44



Table of Contents

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
(c) Below is a summary of stock repurchases during the quarter ended March 30, 2008.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts)

Total number of
Approximate

dollar
shares

purchased as
value of shares

that
part of publicly may yet be

Total number
of

Average
price

announced
plans or

purchased under
the

Period
shares

purchased
paid per
share programs

plans or
programs

(1)
December 31, 2007 through January 27,
2008 � $ � � $ 73,196

January 28, 2008 through February 24,
2008 622,900 $ 42.31 622,900 $ 123,644

February 25, 2008 through March 30,
2008 367,800 $ 41.62 367,800 $ 108,337

Total shares purchased 990,700 990,700

(1) On February 2,
2006, our board
of directors
authorized the
repurchase of up
to $100 million
of the
Company�s
common stock
within the
24-month period
following the
approval date of
such repurchase.
This repurchase
program expired
on February 2,
2008. On
July 27, 2006,
our board of
directors
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authorized the
repurchase of up
to an additional
$50 million of
the Company�s
common stock
within the
24-month period
following the
approval date of
such repurchase.
On February 6,
2008, our board
of directors
authorized the
repurchase of up
to an additional
$100 million of
Blue Nile, Inc.
common stock
during the
24-month period
following the
approval date of
such additional
repurchase. The
shares may be
repurchased
from time to
time in open
market
transactions or
in negotiated
transactions off
the market. The
timing and
amount of any
shares
repurchased is
determined by
the Company�s
management
based on its
evaluation of
market
conditions and
other factors.
Repurchases
may also be
made under a
Rule 10b5-1
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plan, which
would permit
shares to be
repurchased
when the
Company might
otherwise be
precluded from
doing so under
insider trading
laws.

26

Edgar Filing: BLUE NILE INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 47



Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1(1) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Blue Nile, Inc.

3.2(2) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Blue Nile, Inc.

3.3(3) Amendment to the Bylaws of Blue Nile, Inc.

4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3.

4.2(4) Specimen Stock Certificate.

4.3(2) Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement dated June 29, 2001 by and between Blue Nile, Inc.
and certain holders of Blue Nile, Inc.�s preferred stock.

10.1(5) Severance Agreement with Robin Easton, dated March 18, 2008.

31.1(6) Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

31.2(6) Certification of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1(6)* Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

32
.2(6)*

Certification of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

(1) Previously filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to Blue
Nile, Inc.�s Form
10-Q for the
quarterly period
ended July 4, 2004
(No. 000-50763),
as filed with the
Securities and
Exchange
Commission on
August 6, 2004,
and incorporated
by reference
herein.

(2) Previously filed as
the like numbered
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exhibit to Blue
Nile, Inc.�s
Registration
Statement on
Form S-1
(No. 333-113494),
as filed with the
Securities and
Exchange
Commission on
March 11, 2004, as
amended, and
incorporated by
reference herein.

(3) Previously filed as
Exhibit 3.2 to Blue
Nile, Inc.�s Current
Report on
Form 8-K
(No. 000-50763),
as filed with the
Securities and
Exchange
Commission on
February 7, 2008,
and incorporated
by reference
herein.

(4) Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to
Blue Nile, Inc.�s
Current Report on
Form 8-K
(No. 000-50763),
as filed with the
Securities and
Exchange
Commission on
June 19, 2006, and
incorporated by
reference herein.

(5) Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to
Blue Nile, Inc.�s
Current Report on
Form 8-K
(No. 000-50763),
as filed with the
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Securities and
Exchange
Commission on
March 24, 2008,
and incorporated
by reference
herein.

(6) Filed herewith.

* The certifications
attached as
Exhibits 32.1 and
32.2 accompany
this quarterly
report on Form
10-Q pursuant to
Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 and
shall not be
deemed �filed� by
Blue Nile, Inc. for
purposes of
Section 18 of the
Securities
Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

BLUE NILE, INC.

Registrant

Date: May 7, 2008
/s/ Terri K. Maupin

Terri K. Maupin
Principal Financial and Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Duly Authorized Officer)
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        Penalty Tax.    Any redetermined rents, redetermined deductions or excess interest we generate will be subject to a 100% penalty tax. In
general, redetermined rents are rents from real property that are overstated as a result of services furnished by one of our taxable REIT
subsidiaries to any of our tenants, and redetermined deductions and excess interest represent amounts that are deducted by a taxable REIT
subsidiary for amounts paid to us that are in excess of the amounts that would have been deducted based on arm's length negotiations. Rents we
receive will not constitute redetermined rents if they qualify for the safe harbor provisions contained in the Code.

        We do not believe that we have been, and do not expect to be, subject to this penalty tax, although our rental or service arrangements may
not satisfy the safe-harbor provisions described above. These determinations are inherently factual, and the IRS has broad discretion to assert
that amounts paid between related parties should be reallocated to clearly reflect their respective incomes. If the IRS successfully made such an
assertion, we would be required to pay this 100% penalty tax on the excess of an arm's length fee for tenant services over the amount actually
paid.

        Asset Tests.    At the close of each quarter of our taxable year, we also must satisfy four tests relating to the nature and diversification of our
assets:

�
first, at least 75% of the value of our total assets, including assets held by our qualified REIT subsidiaries and our
allocable share of the assets held by the partnerships and limited liability companies in which we own an interest,
must be represented by real estate assets, cash, cash items and government securities. For purposes of this test, the
term "real estate assets" generally means real property (including interests in real property and interests in
mortgages on real property) and shares (or transferable certificates of beneficial interest) in other REITs, as well as
any stock or debt instrument attributable to the investment of the proceeds of a stock offering or a public debt
offering with a term of at least five years, but only for the one-year period beginning on the date the REIT receives
such proceeds;

�
second, not more than 25% of the value of our total assets may be represented by securities other than those
securities included in the 75% asset test;

�
third, of the securities included in the 25% asset class and except for investments in other REITs and our qualified
REIT subsidiaries and taxable REIT subsidiaries, the value of any one issuer's securities may not exceed 5% of the
value of our total assets, and we may not own more than 10% of the total voting power or value of the outstanding
securities of any one issuer except, in the case of the 10% value test, certain "straight debt" securities having
specified characteristics. Under the 2004 Act, certain types of securities are disregarded as securities solely for the
10% value test, including, but not limited to, any loan to an individual or an estate, any obligation to pay rents
from real property and any security issued by a REIT. In addition, under the 2004 Act, solely for the purposes of
the 10% value test, the determination of our interest in the assets of a partnership or limited liability company in
which we own an interest will be based on our proportionate interest in any securities issued by the partnership or
limited liability company, excluding for this purpose certain securities described in the Code. These provisions of
the 2004 Act are effective commencing with our taxable year beginning January 1, 2005; and

�
fourth, not more than 20% of the value of our total assets may be represented by the securities of one or more
taxable REIT subsidiaries.

        As of the date of this prospectus supplement, we own 100% of the outstanding stock of Crest Net Lease, Inc. Crest Net Lease has elected,
together with us, to be treated as a taxable REIT subsidiary. So long as Crest Net Lease qualifies as taxable REIT subsidiary, we will not be
subject to the 5% asset test, the 10% voting securities limitation or the 10% value limitation with respect to our ownership of its securities. We
or Crest Net Lease may acquire securities in other taxable REIT subsidiaries in the
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future. We believe that the aggregate value of our taxable REIT subsidiaries has not exceeded and will not exceed 20% of the value of our gross
assets.

        With respect to each issuer in which we own an interest that does not qualify as a REIT, a qualified REIT subsidiary or a taxable REIT
subsidiary, we believe that our ownership of the securities of any such issuer has complied with the 10% voting securities limitation, the 10%
value limitation and the 5% value limitation. No independent appraisals have been obtained to support these conclusions, and there can be no
assurance that the IRS will not disagree with our determinations of value.

        The asset tests described above must be satisfied not only at the end of the quarter during which we (directly or through our qualified REIT
subsidiaries, partnerships or limited liability companies) acquire securities in the applicable issuer, but also each time we increase our ownership
of securities of such issuer, including as a result of increasing our interest in a partnership or limited liability company which owns such
securities, or acquiring other assets. For example, our indirect ownership of securities of an issuer may increase as a result of our capital
contributions to, or the redemption of other partners' or members' interests in, a partnership or limited liability company in which we have an
ownership interest. After initially meeting the asset tests at the close of any quarter, we will not lose our status as a REIT for failure to satisfy the
asset tests at the end of a later quarter solely by reason of changes in asset values. If we fail to satisfy an asset test because we acquire securities
or other property during a quarter (including as a result of an increase in our interests in a partnership or limited liability company), we may cure
this failure by disposing of sufficient nonqualifying assets within 30 days after the close of that quarter. We believe that we have maintained and
we intend to continue to maintain adequate records of the value of our assets to ensure compliance with the asset tests. In addition, we intend to
take such actions within 30 days after the close of any quarter as may be required to cure any noncompliance.

        With respect to our taxable years ended on or before December 31, 2004, if we failed to cure any noncompliance with the asset tests within
the 30-day period, we would cease to qualify as a REIT. Commencing with our taxable year beginning January 1, 2005, certain relief provisions
may be available to us if we fail to satisfy the asset tests described above within the 30-day cure period. Under these provisions, we will be
deemed to have met the 5% and 10% asset tests if the value of our nonqualifying assets (i) does not exceed the lesser of (a) 1% of the total value
of our assets at the end of the applicable quarter or (b) $10,000,000 and (ii) we dispose of the nonqualifying assets or otherwise meet the asset
tests within (a) six months after the last day of the quarter in which the failure to satisfy the asset tests is discovered or (b) the time period
prescribed by Treasury Regulations to be issued. For violations due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect that are in excess of the de
minimis exception described above, we may avoid disqualification as a REIT under any of the asset tests, after the 30-day cure period, by taking
steps including (i) the disposition of sufficient nonqualifying assets to meet the asset tests or the taking any other actions so as to enable us to
meet the asset tests within (a) six months after the last day of the quarter in which the failure to satisfy the asset tests is discovered or (b) the time
period prescribed by Treasury Regulations to be issued, (ii) paying a tax equal to the greater of (a) $50,000 or (b) the highest corporate tax rate
multiplied by the net income generated by the nonqualifying assets, and (iii) disclosing certain information to the IRS.

        Although we expect to satisfy the asset tests described above and we plan to take steps to ensure that we satisfy such tests for any quarter
with respect to which retesting is to occur, there can be no assurance that such steps will always be successful or will not require a reduction in
our overall interest in an issuer (including in a taxable REIT subsidiary). If we fail to timely cure any noncompliance with the asset tests, and
cannot avail ourselves of the relief provisions described above, we will cease to qualify as a REIT.
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        Annual Distribution Requirements.    To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we are required to distribute dividends, other than capital
gain dividends, to our stockholders in an amount at least equal to the sum of:

�
90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001) of our "REIT taxable income"; and

�
90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001) of our after tax net income, if any, from foreclosure
property; minus

�
the excess of the sum of specified items of our non-cash income items over 5% of "REIT taxable income" as
described below.

        Our "REIT taxable income" is computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain. In addition, for purposes
of this test, non-cash income means income attributable to leveled stepped rents, original issue discount on purchase money debt, cancellation of
indebtedness, and any like-kind exchanges that are later determined to be taxable.

        In addition, if we dispose of any asset we acquired from a corporation which is or has been a C corporation in a transaction in which our
basis in the asset is determined by reference to the basis of the asset in the hands of that C corporation, within the ten-year period following our
acquisition of such asset, we would be required to distribute at least 90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001) of the
after-tax gain, if any, we recognized on the disposition of the asset, to the extent that gain does not exceed the excess of (a) the fair market value
of the asset on the date we acquired the asset over (b) our adjusted basis in the asset on the date we acquired the asset.

        We must pay these distributions in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following taxable year if they are declared before we
timely file our tax return for that year and paid on or before the first regular dividend payment following such declaration. Except as provided
below, these distributions are taxable to our stockholders, other than tax-exempt entities, in the year in which paid. This is so even though these
distributions relate to the prior year for purposes of our 90% distribution requirement. The amount distributed must not be preferential, which
means that every stockholder of the class of stock to which a distribution is made must be treated the same as every other stockholder of that
class, and no class of stock may be treated other than according to its dividend rights as a class. To the extent that we do not distribute all of our
net capital gain, or distribute at least 90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001), but less than 100%, of our "REIT taxable
income," as adjusted, we will be required to pay tax on the undistributed amount at regular corporate tax rates. We believe we have made, and
intend to continue to make, timely distributions sufficient to satisfy these annual distribution requirements.

        We anticipate that we will generally have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy our distribution requirements. However,
from time to time, we may not have sufficient cash or other liquid assets to meet these distribution requirements because of timing differences
between the actual receipt of income and actual payment of deductible expenses, and the inclusion of income and deduction of expenses in
determining our taxable income. If these timing differences occur, we may need to arrange for short-term, or possibly long-term, borrowings or
need to pay dividends in the form of taxable stock dividends in order to meet the distribution requirements.

        Under certain circumstances, we may be able to rectify an inadvertent failure to meet the 90% distribution requirement for a year by paying
"deficiency dividends" to stockholders in a later year, which we may include in our deduction for dividends paid for the earlier year. Thus, we
may be able to avoid being taxed on amounts distributed as deficiency dividends. However, we will be required to pay interest to the IRS based
upon the amount of any deduction taken for deficiency dividends.
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        In addition, we will be required to pay a 4% excise tax to the extent we fail to distribute during each calendar year, or in the case of
distributions with declaration and record dates falling within the last three months of the calendar year, by the end of January immediately
following such year, at least 85% of our REIT ordinary income for such year, 95% of our REIT net capital gain income for such year and any
undistributed taxable income from prior periods. Any REIT taxable income and net capital gain income on which this excise tax is imposed for
any year is treated as an amount distributed during that year for purposes of calculating such tax.

        Distributions with declaration and record dates falling in the last three months of the calendar year which are paid to our stockholders by
the end of January immediately following that year will be treated for federal income tax purposes as having been paid on December 31 of the
prior year.

        Like-Kind Exchanges.    We may dispose of properties in transactions intended to qualify as like-kind exchanges under the Code. Like-kind
exchanges are intended to result in the deferral of gain for federal income tax purposes. The failure of any such transaction to qualify as a
like-kind exchange could subject us to federal income tax, possibly including the 100% prohibited transaction tax, depending on the facts and
circumstances surrounding the particular transaction.

Failure to Qualify

        Commencing with our taxable year beginning January 1, 2005, specified cure provisions are available to us in the event that we violate a
provision of the Code that would result in our failure to qualify as a REIT. These cure provisions reduce the instances that could lead to our
failure to qualify as a REIT for violations due to reasonable cause and instead generally require the payment of a penalty. If we fail to qualify for
taxation as a REIT in any taxable year, and the relief provisions of the Code do not apply, we will be required to pay tax, including applicable
alternative minimum tax, on our taxable income at regular corporate tax rates. Distributions to our stockholders in any year in which we fail to
qualify as a REIT will not be deductible by us, and we will not be required to distribute any amounts to our stockholders. As a result, we
anticipate that our failure to qualify as a REIT would reduce the cash available for distribution by us to our stockholders. In addition, if we fail to
qualify as a REIT, all distributions to our stockholders will be taxable at rates applicable to regular corporate dividends to the extent of our
current and accumulated earnings and profits. In this event, subject to certain limitations under the Code, corporate distributees may be eligible
for the dividends-received deduction. Unless entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, we will also be disqualified from taxation as a
REIT for the four taxable years following the year in which we lose our qualification. It is not possible to state whether in all circumstances we
would be entitled to this statutory relief.

Tax Aspects of the Partnerships

        General.    From time to time, we may own, directly or indirectly, interests in various partnerships and limited liability companies. We
expect these will be treated as partnerships (or disregarded entities) for federal income tax purposes. In general, entities that are classified as
partnerships (or disregarded entities) for federal income tax purposes are "pass-through" entities which are not required to pay federal income
tax. Rather, partners or members of such entities are allocated their shares of the items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit of the entity,
and are potentially required to pay tax on such income without regard to whether the partners or members receive a distribution of cash from the
entity. We include in our income our allocable share of the foregoing items for purposes of computing our REIT taxable income, based on the
partnership agreement. For purposes of applying the REIT income and asset tests, we include our pro rata share of the income generated by and
the assets held by the partnerships and limited liability companies in which we own an interest, including their shares of the income and assets of
any subsidiary partnerships and limited liability companies based on our capital interests. See "�Taxation of Realty Income Corporation."
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        Our ownership interests in such partnerships and limited liability companies involve special tax considerations, including the possibility
that the IRS might challenge the status of these entities as partnerships (or disregarded entities), as opposed to associations taxable as
corporations, for federal income tax purposes. If a partnership or limited liability company in which we own an interest, or one or more of its
subsidiary partnerships or limited liability companies, were treated as an association, it would be taxable as a corporation and therefore be
subject to an entity-level tax on its income. In this situation, the character of our assets and items of gross income would change, and could
prevent us from satisfying the REIT asset tests and/or the REIT income tests (see "�Taxation of Realty Income Corporation�Asset Tests" and
"�Taxation of Realty Income Corporation�Income Tests"). This, in turn, could prevent us from qualifying as a REIT. See "�Failure to Qualify" for a
discussion of the effect of our failure to meet these tests. In addition, a change in the tax status of one or more of the partnerships or limited
liability companies in which we own an interest might be treated as a taxable event. If so, we might incur a tax liability without any related cash
distributions.

        Treasury Regulations that apply for tax periods beginning on or after January 1, 1997 provide that a domestic business entity not otherwise
organized as a corporation may elect to be treated as a partnership or disregarded entity for federal income tax purposes. Unless it elects
otherwise, an eligible entity in existence prior to January 1, 1997, will have the same classification for federal income tax purposes that it
claimed under the entity classification Treasury Regulations in effect prior to this date. In addition, an eligible entity that did not exist or did not
claim a classification prior to January 1, 1997 will be classified as a partnership or disregarded entity for federal income tax purposes unless it
elects otherwise. All of the partnerships in which we own an interest intend to claim classification as partnerships or disregarded entities under
these Treasury Regulations. As a result, we believe that these partnerships will be classified as partnerships or disregarded entities for federal
income tax purposes. The treatment described above also applies with respect to our ownership of interests in limited liability companies that are
treated as partnerships for tax purposes.

        Allocations of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction.    A partnership or limited liability company agreement will generally determine the
allocation of income and losses among partners or members. These allocations, however, will be disregarded for tax purposes if they do not
comply with the provisions of Section 704(b) of the Code and the related Treasury Regulations. Generally, Section 704(b) of the Code and the
related Treasury Regulations require that partnership and limited liability company allocations respect the economic arrangement of their
partners or members. If an allocation is not recognized for federal income tax purposes, the relevant item will be reallocated according to the
partners' or members' interests in the partnership or limited liability company, as the case may be. This reallocation will be determined by taking
into account all of the facts and circumstances relating to the economic arrangement of the partners or members with respect to such item. The
allocations of taxable income and loss in each of the partnerships and limited liability companies in which we own an interest are intended to
comply with the requirements of Section 704(b) of the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder.

        Tax Allocations With Respect to the Properties.    Under Section 704(c) of the Code, income, gain, loss and deduction attributable to
appreciated or depreciated property that is contributed to a partnership or limited liability company in exchange for an interest in the partnership
or limited liability company must be allocated in a manner so that the contributing partner or member is charged with the unrealized gain or
benefits from the unrealized loss associated with the property at the time of the contribution. The amount of the unrealized gain or loss is
generally equal to the difference between the fair market value or book value and the adjusted tax basis of the contributed property at the time of
contribution. These allocations are solely for federal income tax purposes and do not affect the book capital accounts or other economic or legal
arrangements among the partners or members. Some of the partnerships and/or limited liability companies in which we own an interest were
formed by way of
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contributions of appreciated property. The relevant partnership and/or limited liability company agreements require that allocations be made in a
manner consistent with Section 704(c) of the Code.

Other Tax Consequences

        We may be required to pay tax in various state or local jurisdictions, including those in which we transact business. Our state and local tax
treatment may not conform to the federal income tax consequences discussed above. Consequently, you should consult your tax advisors
regarding the effect of state and local tax laws on us.

Federal Income Tax Considerations for Holders of Our Common Stock

        The following summary describes the principal United States federal income tax consequences to you of purchasing, owning and disposing
of our common stock. This summary deals only with common stock held as a "capital asset" (generally, property held for investment within the
meaning of Section 1221 of the Code). It does not address all the tax consequences that may be relevant to you in light of your particular
circumstances. In addition, this discussion does not address the tax consequences relevant to persons who receive special treatment under the
federal income tax law, except where specifically noted. Holders receiving special treatment include, without limitation:

�
financial institutions, banks and thrifts;

�
insurance companies;

�
tax-exempt organizations;

�
"S" corporations;

�
traders in securities that elect to mark to market;

�
persons holding the common stock through a partnership or other pass-through entity;

�
stockholders subject to the alternative minimum tax;

�
regulated investment companies and real estate investment trusts;

�
broker-dealers or dealers in securities or currencies;

�
United States expatriates;

�
persons holding our common stock as a hedge against currency risks, as part of a "conversion" or "integrated
transaction," or as a position in a straddle; and

�
U.S. stockholders (as defined below) whose functional currency is not the United States dollar.

        If you are considering purchasing our common stock, you should consult your tax advisors concerning the application of United States
federal income tax laws to your particular situation as well as any consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our common
stock arising under the laws of any state, local or foreign taxing jurisdiction.
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        When we use the term "U.S. stockholder," we mean a holder of shares of our common stock who, for United States federal income tax
purposes:

�
is a citizen or resident of the United States;

�
is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity created or organized in or under the laws of
the United States or of any state thereof or in the District of Columbia unless, in the case of a partnership or
limited liability company, Treasury Regulations provide otherwise;
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�
is an estate the income of which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

�
is a trust whose administration is subject to the primary supervision of a United States court and which has one or
more United States persons who have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust. Notwithstanding
the preceding sentence, to the extent provided in the Treasury Regulations, certain trusts in existence on
August 20, 1996, and treated as United States persons prior to this date that elect to continue to be treated as
United States persons, shall also be considered U.S. stockholders.

        If you hold shares of our common stock and are not a U.S. stockholder, you are a "non-U.S. stockholder."

Taxation of Taxable U.S. Stockholders Generally

        Distributions Generally.    Distributions out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits will be treated as dividends and, other than
with respect to capital gain dividends and certain amounts which have previously been subject to corporate level tax discussed below, will be
taxable to our taxable U.S. stockholders as ordinary income. See "�Tax Rates" below. As long as we qualify as a REIT, these distributions will
not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction in the case of U.S. stockholders that are corporations. For purposes of determining whether
distributions to holders of common stock are out of current or accumulated earnings and profits, our earnings and profits will be allocated first to
our outstanding preferred stock and then to our outstanding common stock.

        To the extent that we make distributions on our common stock in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits, these
distributions will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to a U.S. stockholder. This treatment will reduce the adjusted tax basis which the
U.S. stockholder has in its shares of common stock by the amount of the distribution, but not below zero. Distributions in excess of our current
and accumulated earnings and profits and in excess of a U.S. stockholder's adjusted tax basis in its shares will be taxable as capital gain. Such
gain will be taxable as long-term capital gain if the shares have been held for more than one year. Dividends we declare in October, November,
or December of any year and which are payable to a stockholder of record on a specified date in any of these months will be treated as both paid
by us and received by the stockholder on December 31 of that year, provided we actually pay the dividend on or before January 31 of the
following year. U.S. stockholders may not include in their own income tax returns any of our net operating losses or capital losses.

        Capital Gain Dividends.    Dividends that we properly designate as capital gain dividends will be taxable to our taxable U.S. stockholders
as a gain from the sale or disposition of a capital asset, to the extent that such gain does not exceed our actual net capital gain for the taxable
year. These gains may be taxable to non-corporate U.S. stockholders at a 15% or 25% rate. U.S. stockholders that are corporations may,
however, be required to treat up to 20% of some capital gain dividends as ordinary income. If, for any taxable year, we designate as a "capital
gain dividend," as defined in Section 857 of the Code, any portion (the "Capital Gains Amount") of the dividends, as determined for federal
income tax purposes, paid or made available for that year to holders of all classes of our stock, then, except as otherwise required by applicable
law, the portion of the Capital Gains Amount that shall be allocable to the holders of the common stock will be in proportion to the amount that
the total dividends, as determined for federal income tax purposes, paid or made available to holders of common stock for the year bear to the
total dividends paid or made available for that year to holders of all classes of our stock. In addition, except as otherwise required by applicable
law, we will make a similar allocation with respect to any undistributed long-term capital gains which are to be included in our stockholders'
long-term capital gains, based on the allocation of the Capital Gains Amount which
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would have resulted if those undistributed long-term capital gains had been distributed as "capital gain dividends" by us to our stockholders.

        Passive Activity Losses and Investment Interest Limitations.    Distributions we make and gain arising from the sale or exchange by a U.S.
stockholder of our shares will not be treated as passive activity income. As a result, U.S. stockholders generally will not be able to apply any
"passive losses" against this income or gain. A U.S. stockholder may elect to treat capital gain dividends, capital gains from the disposition of
stock and qualified dividend income as investment income for purposes of computing the investment interest limitation, but in such case, the
stockholder will be taxed at ordinary income rates on such amount. Other distributions made by the Company, to the extent they do not
constitute a return of capital, generally will be treated as investment income for purposes of computing the investment interest limitation.

        Retention of Net Capital Gains.    We may elect to retain, rather than distribute as a capital gain dividend, all or a portion of our net capital
gains. If we make this election, we would pay tax on our retained net capital gains. In addition, to the extent we so elect, a U.S. stockholder
generally would:

�
include its pro rata share of our undistributed net capital gains in computing its long-term capital gains in its return
for its taxable year in which the last day of our taxable year falls, subject to certain limitations as to the amount
that is includable;

�
be deemed to have paid the capital gains tax imposed on us on the designated amounts included in the U.S.
stockholder's long-term capital gains;

�
receive a credit or refund for the amount of tax deemed paid by it;

�
increase the adjusted basis of its common stock by the difference between the amount of includable gains and the
tax deemed to have been paid by it; and

�
in the case of a U.S. stockholder that is a corporation, appropriately adjust its earnings and profits for the retained
capital gains in accordance with Treasury Regulations to be promulgated by the IRS.

        Dispositions of Our Common Stock.    If a U.S. stockholder sells or disposes of shares of common stock, it will recognize gain or loss for
federal income tax purposes in an amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash and the fair market value of any property received
on the sale or other disposition and the holder's adjusted basis in the shares for tax purposes. This gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or
loss if the holder has held the common stock for more than one year. However, if a U.S. stockholder recognizes loss upon the sale or other
disposition of common stock that it has held for six months or less, after applying certain holding period rules, the loss recognized will be treated
as a long-term capital loss to the extent the U.S. stockholder received distributions from us which were required to be treated as long-term
capital gains.

Tax Rates

        The maximum tax rate for non-corporate taxpayers for (1) capital gains, including certain "capital gain dividends," has generally been
reduced to 15% (although depending on the characteristics of the assets which produced these gains and on designations which we may make,
certain capital gain dividends may be taxed at a 25% rate) and (2) "qualified dividend income" has generally been reduced to 15%. In general,
dividends payable by REITs are not eligible for the reduced tax rate on corporate dividends, except to the extent that certain holding
requirements have been met and the REIT's dividends are attributable to dividends received from taxable corporations (such as its taxable REIT
subsidiaries) or to income that was subject to tax at the corporate/REIT level (for example, if it distributed taxable income that it retained and
paid tax on in the prior taxable year). In addition, as described in "�Capital Gain Dividends" above, dividends properly designated by the REIT as
"capital
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gain dividends" may be taxable to non-corporate U.S. stockholders at a 15% or 25% rate. The currently applicable provisions of the United
States federal income tax laws relating to the 15% tax rate are currently scheduled to "sunset" or revert to the provisions of prior law effective
for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2008, at which time the capital gains tax rate will be increased to 20% and the rate applicable to
dividends will be increased to the tax rate then applicable to ordinary income.

Backup Withholding

        We report to our U.S. stockholders and the IRS the amount of dividends paid during each calendar year, and the amount of any tax
withheld. Under the backup withholding rules, a stockholder may be subject to backup withholding with respect to dividends paid unless the
holder is a corporation or comes within certain other exempt categories and, when required, demonstrates this fact, or provides a taxpayer
identification number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding, and otherwise complies with applicable requirements of the
backup withholding rules. A U.S. stockholder that does not provide us with its correct taxpayer identification number may also be subject to
penalties imposed by the IRS. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amount paid as backup withholding will be creditable against
the stockholder's federal income tax liability. In addition, we may be required to withhold a portion of capital gain distributions to any
stockholders who fail to certify their non-foreign status. See "�Taxation of Non-U.S. Stockholders."

Taxation of Tax Exempt Stockholders

        Dividend income from us and gain arising upon a sale of shares generally will not be unrelated business taxable income to a tax-exempt
stockholder, except as described below. This income or gain will be unrelated business taxable income, however, if a tax-exempt stockholder
holds its shares as "debt-financed property" within the meaning of the Code or if the shares are used in a trade or business of the tax-exempt
stockholder. Generally, debt-financed property is property the acquisition or holding of which was financed through a borrowing by the
tax-exempt stockholder.

        For tax-exempt stockholders which are social clubs, voluntary employee benefit associations, supplemental unemployment benefit trusts, or
qualified group legal services plans exempt from federal income taxation under Sections 501(c)(7), (c)(9), (c)(17) or (c)(20) of the Code,
respectively, income from an investment in our shares will constitute unrelated business taxable income unless the organization is able to
properly claim a deduction for amounts set aside or placed in reserve for specific purposes so as to offset the income generated by its investment
in our shares. These prospective investors should consult their tax advisors concerning these "set aside" and reserve requirements.

        Notwithstanding the above, however, a portion of the dividends paid by a "pension-held REIT" may be treated as unrelated business taxable
income as to some trusts that hold more than 10%, by value, of the interests in the REIT. A REIT will not be a "pension-held REIT" if it is able
to satisfy the "not closely held" requirement without relying on the "look-through" exception with respect to certain trusts. As a result of
limitations on the transfer and ownership of stock contained in our charter, we do not expect to be classified as a "pension-held REIT," and as a
result, the tax treatment described in this paragraph should be inapplicable to our stockholders. However, because our stock will be publicly
traded, we cannot guarantee that this will always be the case.

Taxation of Non-U.S. Stockholders

        The preceding discussion does not address the rules governing United States federal income taxation of the ownership and disposition of
our common stock by persons that are non-U.S. stockholders. In general, non-U.S. stockholders may be subject to special tax withholding
requirements
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on distributions from us and with respect to their sale or other disposition of our common stock, except to the extent reduced or eliminated by an
income tax treaty between the United States and the non-U.S. stockholder's country. A non-U.S. stockholder who is a stockholder of record and
is eligible for reduction or elimination of withholding must file an appropriate form with us in order to claim such treatment. Non-U.S.
stockholders should consult their own tax advisors concerning the United States federal income tax consequences to them of an acquisition of
shares of our common stock, including the United States federal income tax treatment of dispositions of interests in and the receipt of
distributions from us.

Other Tax Consequences

        State, local and foreign income tax laws may differ substantially from the corresponding federal income tax laws, and this discussion does
not purport to describe any aspect of the tax laws of any state, local or foreign jurisdiction. You should consult your tax advisor regarding the
effect of state and local tax laws with respect to our tax treatment as a REIT and on an investment in our common stock.
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UNDERWRITING

        Subject to the terms and conditions contained in a purchase agreement between us and each of the underwriters, for whom Merrill Lynch,
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated is acting as sole book-running manager, we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and the underwriters
severally have agreed to purchase from us, the number of shares listed opposite their names below.

                           Underwriter

Number
of Shares

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
                      Incorporated 1,640,000
A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc. 410,000
Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC 410,000
Banc of America Securities LLC 307,500
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC 307,500
Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 307,500
RBC Capital Markets Corporation 307,500
BB&T Capital Markets, a Division of Scott & Stringfellow, Inc. 102,500
Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated 102,500
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated 102,500
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC 102,500

                      Total 4,100,000

        The underwriters have agreed to purchase all of the shares sold under the purchase agreement if any of these shares are purchased. If an
underwriter defaults, the purchase agreement provides that the purchase commitments of the nondefaulting underwriters may be increased or the
purchase agreement may be terminated.

        We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, or to
contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

        The underwriters are offering the shares, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued to and accepted by them, subject to approval of legal
matters by their counsel and other conditions contained in the purchase agreement, such as the receipt by the underwriters of officers' certificates
and legal opinions. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify offers to the public and to reject orders in whole or in part.

Commissions and Discounts

        The underwriters have advised us that they propose initially to offer the shares to the public at the initial public offering price listed on the
cover page of this prospectus supplement and to dealers at that price less a concession not in excess of $.67 per share. The underwriters may
allow, and the dealers may reallow, a discount not in excess of $.10 per share to other dealers. After the initial public offering, the public
offering price, concession and discount may be changed.
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        The following table shows the public offering price, underwriting discount and proceeds before expenses to Realty Income. This
information assumes either no exercise or full exercise by the underwriters of their overallotment option.

Per Share Without Option With Option

Public offering price $23.79 $97,539,000 $112,169,850
Underwriting discount $1.19 $4,879,000 $5,610,850
Proceeds, before expenses, to Realty Income
Corporation $22.60 $92,660,000 $106,559,000

        The expenses of this offering, not including the underwriting discount, are estimated at $300,000 and are payable by Realty Income. The
underwriters have agreed to reimburse Realty Income for certain expenses incurred by Realty Income in connection with this offering.

Overallotment Option

        We have granted an option to the underwriters to purchase up to 615,000 additional shares at the initial public offering price less the
underwriting discount and less any dividends or distributions declared or paid by us on the shares initially purchased by the underwriters but not
on the shares to be purchased upon exercise of the overallotment option. The underwriters may exercise this option for 30 days from the date of
this prospectus supplement solely to cover any overallotments. If the underwriters exercise this option, each underwriter will be obligated,
subject to conditions contained in the purchase agreement, to purchase approximately the same percentage of those additional shares that the
number of shares of common stock to be purchased by that underwriter as shown in the above table represents as a percentage of the total
number of shares shown in that table.

No Sales of Similar Securities

        We have agreed, with exceptions, not to sell or transfer any common stock for 90 days after the date of this prospectus supplement without
first obtaining the written consent of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated. Specifically, we have agreed not to directly or
indirectly:

�
offer, pledge, sell or contract to sell any common stock;

�
sell any option or contract to purchase any common stock;

�
purchase any option or contract to sell any common stock;

�
grant any option, right or warrant to purchase any common stock;

�
otherwise transfer or dispose of any common stock; or

�
enter into any swap or other agreement or transaction that transfers, in whole or in part, the economic consequence
of ownership of any common stock,

whether any such swap, agreement or transaction is to be settled by delivery of common stock or other securities, in cash or otherwise.

        This lock-up provision applies to common stock and to securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for common stock. Merrill
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated may, in its sole discretion and at any time or from time to time, without notice, release all or any of
the shares or other securities subject to this lock-up provision.

        Our lock-up agreement contains an exception that permits us to issue shares of common stock in connection with acquisitions and in
connection with joint ventures and similar arrangements, so long as the recipients of those shares agree not to sell or transfer those shares for
90 days after the date of this prospectus supplement. Our lock-up agreement also contains exceptions that permit us to issue shares
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of common stock to the underwriters in this offering, to issue shares of common stock upon the exercise of outstanding options, to issue shares
and options pursuant to employee benefit plans and to issue shares of common stock pursuant to non-employee director stock plans.

New York Stock Exchange Listing

        Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "O."

Price Stabilization and Short Positions

        Until the distribution of the shares is completed, Securities and Exchange Commission rules may limit the underwriters and selling group
members from bidding for or purchasing our common stock. However, the underwriters may engage in transactions that stabilize the price of the
common stock, such as bids or purchases to peg, fix or maintain that price.

        If the underwriters create a short position in the common stock in connection with the offering, i.e., if they sell more shares than are listed
on the cover of this prospectus supplement, the underwriters may reduce that short position by purchasing shares in the open market. The
underwriters may also elect to reduce any short position by exercising all or part of the overallotment option described above. Purchases of the
common stock to stabilize its price or to reduce a short position may cause the price of the common stock to be higher than it might be in the
absence of such purchases.

        Neither we, nor any of the underwriters, makes any representation or prediction as to the direction or the magnitude of any effect that the
transactions described above may have on the price of our common stock. In addition, neither we, nor any of the underwriters, makes any
representation that the underwriters will engage in these transactions or that these transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued
without notice.

Other Relationships

        The underwriters and/or their affiliates have engaged in, and may in the future engage in, investment banking, commercial banking and/or
other commercial and financial dealings with us in the ordinary course of business. They have received and may in the future receive customary
fees and commissions for these transactions. In that regard, affiliates of some of the underwriters are lenders under our $250 million acquisition
credit facility, and affiliates of some of the underwriters will be lenders under our new $300 million acquisition credit facility that is described
under "Prospectus Supplement Summary�Recent Developments."
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LEGAL MATTERS

        The validity of the common stock to be issued in connection with this offering will be passed upon for us by Venable LLP, Baltimore,
Maryland. Certain legal matters relating to this offering will be passed upon for us by Latham & Watkins LLP, Costa Mesa, California. Sidley
Austin Brown & Wood LLP, San Francisco, California will act as counsel for the underwriters. William J. Cernius, a partner of Latham &
Watkins LLP, beneficially owns 7,695 shares of our common stock. Eric S. Haueter, a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood LLP,
beneficially owns approximately 7,132 shares of our common stock and $20,000 aggregate principal amount of our 81/4% Monthly Income
Senior Notes due 2008. Paul C. Pringle, a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood LLP, beneficially owns approximately 49,965 shares of our
common stock.

EXPERTS

        The consolidated financial statements and schedule of Realty Income Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, have been incorporated by reference in the accompanying prospectus in reliance upon the
reports of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, incorporated by reference therein, and upon the authority of said firm as
experts in accounting and auditing.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

        As described in the accompanying prospectus under the caption "Incorporation of Information We File with the SEC," we have
incorporated by reference in the accompanying prospectus specified documents that we have filed or may file with the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2004. However, no document or
information that we have "furnished" or may in the future "furnish" with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act shall be incorporated by
reference into the accompanying prospectus or this prospectus supplement.
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PROSPECTUS

$800,000,000

REALTY INCOME CORPORATION

DEBT SECURITIES, PREFERRED STOCK AND COMMON STOCK

        Realty Income Corporation may from time to time offer in one or more series (1) our debt securities, (2) shares of our preferred stock,
$1.00 par value per share, or (3) shares of our common stock, $1.00 par value per share, with an aggregate public offering price of up to
$800,000,000 on terms to be determined at the time of the offering. Our debt securities, our preferred stock and our common stock (collectively
referred to as our securities), may be offered, separately or together, in separate series, in amounts, at prices and on terms that will be set forth in
one or more prospectus supplements to this prospectus.

        The specific terms of the securities with respect to which this prospectus is being delivered will be set forth in the applicable prospectus
supplement and will include, where applicable:

�
in the case of our debt securities, the specific title, aggregate principal amount, currency, form (which may be registered,
bearer, certificated or global), authorized denominations, maturity, rate (or manner of calculating the rate) and time of
payment of interest, terms for redemption at our option or repayment at the holder's option, terms for sinking fund payments,
terms for conversion into shares of our preferred stock or common stock, covenants and any initial public offering price;

�
in the case of our preferred stock, the specific designation, preferences, conversion and other rights, voting powers,
restrictions, limitations as to transferability, dividends and other distributions and terms and conditions of redemption and
any initial public offering price; and

�
in the case of our common stock, any initial public offering price.

In addition, the specific terms may include limitations on actual, beneficial or constructive ownership and restrictions on transfer of the
securities, in each case as may be appropriate to preserve our status as a real estate investment trust, or REIT, for federal income tax purposes.
The applicable prospectus supplement will also contain information, where applicable, about United States federal income tax considerations,
and any exchange listing of the securities covered by the prospectus supplement.

        Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "O." On February 19, 2004, the last reported sale price of
the common stock was $42.75 per share.

        Our securities may be offered directly, through agents designated from time to time by us, or to or through underwriters or dealers. If any
agents or underwriters are involved in the sale of any of our securities, their names, and any applicable purchase price, fee, commission or
discount arrangement between or among them, will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. None of our securities may be sold
without delivery of the applicable prospectus supplement describing the method and terms of the offering of those securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these
securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is March 23, 2004.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

        This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC utilizing a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf
registration process, we may sell any combination of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings up to a total dollar
amount of $800,000,000. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities,
we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may
also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement
together with additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

        As allowed by SEC rules, this prospectus does not contain all the information you can find in the registration statement or the exhibits to
the registration statement. For further information, we refer you to the registration statement, including its exhibits and schedules. Statements
contained in this prospectus about the provisions or contents of any contract, agreement or any other document referred to are not necessarily
complete. For each of these contracts, agreements or documents filed as an exhibit to the registration statement, we refer you to the actual exhibit
for a more complete description of the matters involved. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus or any applicable
prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of those documents. For further information about us or the
securities offered under this prospectus, you should refer to the registration statement, which you can obtain from the SEC as described below
under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

        All references to "Realty Income," "our" and "we" in this prospectus mean Realty Income Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
and other entities controlled by Realty Income Corporation except where it is clear from the context that the term means only the issuer, Realty
Income Corporation.
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THE COMPANY

        Realty Income Corporation, the Monthly Dividend Company®, a Maryland corporation ("Realty Income," the "Company," "our" or "we")
was organized to operate as an equity real estate investment trust, or REIT. Over the past 35 years Realty Income and its predecessors have been
acquiring and owning freestanding retail properties that generate rental revenue under long-term (primarily 15 to 20 years) lease agreements.
Our monthly distributions are supported by the cash flow from our portfolio of retail properties leased to regional and national retail chains.

        We are a fully integrated, self-administered real estate company with in-house acquisition, leasing, legal, retail and real estate research,
portfolio management and capital markets expertise.

        Our primary business objective is to generate dependable monthly distributions from a consistent and predictable level of funds from
operations, or FFO, per share. Additionally, we seek to increase distributions to stockholders and FFO per share through both active portfolio
management and the acquisition of additional properties.

        Our portfolio management focus includes:

�
Contractual rent increases on existing leases;

�
Rental increases at the termination of existing leases when market conditions permit; and

�
The active management of our property portfolio, including re-leasing of vacant properties and selective sales of properties.

        Our acquisition of additional properties adheres to a focused strategy of primarily acquiring properties that are:

�
Freestanding, single-tenant, retail locations;

�
Leased to regional and national retail chains; and

�
Leased under long-term, net-lease agreements.

        As of December 31, 2003, we owned a diversified portfolio:

�
Of 1,404 retail properties;

�
With an occupancy rate of 98.1%, or 1,378 properties occupied, of the 1,404 properties;

�
Leased to 85 different retail chains;

�
Doing business in 28 separate retail industries;

�
Located in 48 states;

�
With over 11.3 million square feet of leasable space; and

�
With an average leasable retail space of 8,100 square feet.
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        Of the 1,404 properties in the portfolio, 1,399, or 99.6%, are single-tenant retail properties with the remaining five being multi-tenant
properties. As of December 31, 2003, 1,374, or 98.2%, of the 1,399 single-tenant properties were leased with a weighted average remaining
lease term (excluding extension options) of approximately 11.8 years.

        In addition to our real estate portfolio, at December 31, 2003 our subsidiary, Crest Net Lease, Inc. had invested $55.3 million in a portfolio
of 37 properties. These properties are held for sale.

        We typically acquire, and then lease back, retail store locations from chain store operators, providing capital to the operators for continued
expansion and other corporate purposes. Our

1
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acquisition and investment activities are concentrated in well-defined target markets and generally focus on middle-market retailers providing
goods and services intended to satisfy basic consumer needs.

        Our net-lease agreements generally:

�
Are for initial terms of 15 to 20 years;

�
Require the tenant to pay minimum monthly rents and property operating expenses (taxes, insurance and maintenance); and

�
Provide for future rent increases (typically subject to ceilings) based on increases in the consumer price index, fixed
increases, or additional rent calculated as a percentage of the tenants' gross sales above a specified level.

        We believe that the long-term ownership of an actively managed, diversified portfolio of retail properties under long-term, net-lease
agreements can produce consistent, predictable income. We also believe that a portfolio of long-term leases that require tenants to be responsible
for property expenses generally produces a more predictable income stream than many other types of real estate portfolios, while continuing to
offer the potential for growth in rental income.

        Our net-leased retail properties are primarily leased to regional and national retail chain store operators. Generally, our properties contain
single-story buildings and adequate parking on site to accommodate peak retail traffic periods. The properties tend to be on major thoroughfares
with relatively high traffic counts and adequate access, egress and proximity to a sufficient population base to constitute a suitable market or
trade area for the retailer's business.

        Our principal executive offices are located at 220 West Crest Street, Escondido, California 92025 and our telephone number is
(760) 741-2111.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

        This prospectus contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the
Exchange Act. When used in this prospectus, the words estimated, anticipated and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions about Realty Income Corporation, including, among
other things:

�
Our anticipated growth strategies;

�
Our intention to acquire additional properties and the timing of these acquisitions;

�
Our intention to sell properties and the timing of these property sales;

�
Our intention to re-lease vacant properties;

�
Anticipated trends in our business, including trends in the market for long-term net leases of freestanding, single-tenant retail
properties;

�
Future expenditures for development projects; and

�
Profitability of our subsidiary, Crest Net Lease, Inc.
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        Future events and actual results, financial and otherwise, may differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements.
In particular, some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially are:

�
Our continued qualification as a real estate investment trust;

�
General business and economic conditions;

2
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�
Competition;

�
Fluctuating interest rates;

�
Accessibility of debt and equity capital markets;

�
Other risks inherent in the real estate business including tenant defaults, potential liability relating to environmental matters
and illiquidity of real estate investments; and

�
Changes in the tax laws of the United States of America; and

�
Acts of terrorism and war.

        Additional factors that may cause risks and uncertainties include those discussed in the sections entitled "Business" and "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003.

        Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this prospectus. We
undertake no obligation to publicly release the results of any revisions to these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events or
circumstances after the date of this prospectus or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. In light of these risks and uncertainties, the
forward-looking events discussed in this prospectus might not occur.

3
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RISK FACTORS

        In evaluating an investment in our securities, you should carefully consider the following risk factors, in addition to the other risks and
uncertainties described in this prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference therein, including the information appearing under the
heading "Business�Properties�Matters Pertaining to Certain Properties and Tenants" and "Business�Other Items" in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003. As used under this caption "Risk Factors," references to our capital stock include our
common stock and any class or series of our preferred stock and references to our stockholders include holders of our common stock or any class
or series of our preferred stock, in each case unless otherwise expressly stated or the context otherwise requires.

In order to grow we need to continue to acquire investment properties which may be subject to competitive pressures.

        We need to continue to acquire investment properties in order to grow. We face competition in the acquisition, operation and sale of
property. We expect competition from:

�
businesses;

�
individuals;

�
fiduciary accounts and plans; and

�
other entities engaged in real estate investment and financing.

        Some of these competitors are larger than we are and have greater financial resources. This competition may result in a higher cost for
properties that we wish to purchase.

Our tenants' creditworthiness and ability to pay rent may be affected by competition in their industries.

        The tenants leasing our properties generally face significant competition from other operators. This competition may adversely impact:

�
that portion, if any, of the rental stream to be paid to us based on a tenant's revenues; and

�
the tenant's results of operations or financial condition.

As a property owner, we may be subject to unknown environmental liabilities.

        Investments in real property can create a potential environmental liability. An owner of property can face liability for environmental
contamination created by the presence or discharge of hazardous substances on the property. We may face liability regardless of:

�
our knowledge of the contamination;

�
the timing of the contamination;

�
the cause of the contamination; or

�
the party responsible for the contamination of the property.

        There may be environmental problems associated with our properties of which we are unaware. In that regard, a number of our properties
are leased to operators of oil change and tune-up facilities as well as convenience stores that sell petroleum-based fuels. These facilities, and
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some of our other properties, use, or may have used in the past, underground lifts or underground tanks for the storage of petroleum-based or
waste products, which could create a potential for release of hazardous substances.
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        The presence of hazardous substances on a property may adversely affect our ability to sell the property and we may incur substantial
remediation costs. Although our leases generally require our tenants to operate in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local
environmental laws, ordinances and regulations and to indemnify us against any environmental liabilities arising from the tenants' activities on
the property, we could nevertheless be subject to strict liability by virtue of our ownership interest, and we cannot assure you that our tenants
could or would satisfy their indemnification obligations under the leases. The discovery of environmental liabilities attached to our properties
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition and our ability to pay principal of and interest on our
debt securities and other indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders.

        Compliance.    We have not been notified by any governmental authority, and are not otherwise aware, of any material noncompliance,
liability or claim relating to hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum products in connection with any of the properties we currently own.
Nevertheless, if environmental contamination should exist, we could be subject to strict liability for the contamination by virtue of our
ownership interest.

        Insurance.    Since December 1996, we have maintained an environmental insurance policy on our property portfolio. The limit on our
current policy is $10 million per occurrence and $50 million in the aggregate, subject to a $25,000 self insurance retention per occurrence for
properties with underground storage tanks and a $100,000 self insurance retention per occurrence for all other properties. It is possible that our
insurance will be insufficient to address any particular environmental situation and that we could be unable to continue to obtain insurance for
environmental matters, at a reasonable cost or at all, in the future.

If we fail to qualify as a real estate investment trust, the amount of dividends we are able to pay would decrease, which would adversely
affect the market price of our capital stock and could adversely affect the value of our debt securities.

        We believe that we are organized and have operated, commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 1994, and we intend to
continue to operate, so as to qualify as a "real estate investment trust" under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Code"). However, we cannot assure you that we have been organized or have operated in a manner that has satisfied the
requirements for qualification as a REIT, or that we will continue to be organized in a manner that will allow us to qualify as a REIT, or that we
will continue to be able to operate in a manner so that we qualify or remain qualified as a REIT.

        Qualification as a REIT involves the satisfaction of numerous requirements under highly technical and complex Code provisions for which
there are only limited judicial and administrative interpretations, and the determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely
within our control.

        For example, in order to qualify as a REIT, at least 95% of our gross income in each year must be derived from qualifying sources and we
must pay distributions to stockholders aggregating annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable income (as defined in the Code and determined
without regard to the dividends paid deduction and by excluding net capital gains).

        In the future it is possible that new legislation, regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions will change the tax laws with
respect to qualification as a REIT, or the federal income tax consequences of that qualification.

        If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year:

�
we would be required to pay federal income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income at
regular corporate rates;
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�
we would not be allowed a deduction in computing our taxable income for amounts distributed to our stockholders;

�
we may be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which qualification is
lost;

�
we would no longer be required to make distributions to stockholders; and

�
this treatment would substantially reduce amounts available for investment or distribution to stockholders because of the
additional tax liability for the years involved, which would likely have a material adverse effect on the market price of our
capital stock and could have a material adverse effect on the value of our debt securities.

        In addition, if we fail to qualify as a REIT, all distributions to stockholders will be taxable as regular corporate dividends to the extent of
our current and accumulated earnings and profits, which also could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our capital stock and
the value of our debt securities. Even if we qualify for and maintain our REIT status, we will be subject to specified federal, state and local taxes
on our income and property. For example, if we have net income from a prohibited transaction, that income will be subject to a 100% tax. In
addition, any taxable REIT subsidiary in which we own an interest, including Crest Net, will be required to pay federal and state taxes at the
applicable tax rates on its income and property.

Distribution requirements imposed by law limit our flexibility.

        To maintain our status as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we generally are required to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of
our REIT taxable income determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and by excluding net capital gains each year.

        We are also subject to tax at regular corporate rates to the extent that we distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable income (including
net capital gains) each year.

        In addition, we are required to pay a 4% nondeductible excise tax to the extent that distributions we pay in a calendar year are less than the
sum of 85% of our ordinary income for that calendar year, 95% of our capital gain net income for the calendar year, and any income that was not
distributed in prior years.

        We intend to continue to make distributions to our stockholders to comply with the distribution requirements of the Code and to reduce
exposure to federal income taxes and the nondeductible excise tax. Differences in timing between the receipt of income and the payment of
expenses to arrive at taxable income, along with the effect of required debt amortization payments, could require us to borrow funds on a
short-term basis to meet the distribution requirements that are necessary to achieve the tax benefits associated with qualifying as a REIT.

Real estate ownership is subject to particular economic conditions that may have a negative impact on our revenue.

        We are subject to all of the general risks associated with the ownership of real estate. In particular, we face the risk that rental revenue from
our properties will be insufficient to cover operating expenses, debt service payments on indebtedness we incur and distributions on our stock.
Additional real estate ownership risks include:

�
adverse changes in general or local economic conditions;

�
changes in supply of, or demand for, similar or competing properties;

�
changes in interest rates and operating expenses;
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�
competition for tenants;

�
changes in market rental rates;

�
inability to lease properties upon termination of existing leases;

�
renewal of leases at lower rental rates;

�
inability to collect rents from tenants due to financial hardship, including bankruptcy;

�
changes in tax, real estate, zoning and environmental laws that may have an adverse impact upon the value of real estate;

�
uninsured property liability;

�
property damage or casualty losses;

�
unexpected expenditures for capital improvements or to bring properties into compliance with applicable federal, state and
local laws;

�
acts of terrorism and war; and

�
acts of God and other factors beyond the control of management.

An uninsured loss or a loss that exceeds the policy limits on our properties could subject us to lost capital or revenue on those
properties.

        Under the terms and conditions of the leases currently in force on our properties, tenants generally are required to indemnify and hold us
harmless from liabilities resulting from injury to persons, air, water, land or property, due to activities conducted on the properties, except for
claims arising from the negligence or intentional misconduct of us or our agents. Additionally, tenants are generally required, at the tenant's
expense, to obtain and keep in full force during the term of the lease, liability and property damage insurance policies. The insurance policies our
tenants are required to maintain for property damage are generally in amounts not less than the full replacement cost of the improvements less
slab, foundations, supports and other customarily excluded improvements. Our tenants are generally required to maintain general liability
coverage varying between $1,000,000 and $10,000,000 depending on the tenant and the industry in which it operates.

        In addition to the indemnities and required insurance policies identified above, many of our properties are also covered by flood and
earthquake insurance policies (subject to substantial deductibles) obtained and paid for by the tenants as part of their risk management programs.
Additionally, we have obtained blanket liability, flood and earthquake (subject to substantial deductibles) and property damage insurance
policies to protect us and our properties against loss should the indemnities and insurance policies provided by the tenants fail to restore the
properties to their condition prior to a loss. However, should a loss occur that is uninsured or in an amount exceeding the combined aggregate
limits for the policies noted above, or in the event of a loss that is subject to a substantial deductible under an insurance policy, we could lose all
or part of our capital invested in, and anticipated revenue from, one or more of the properties, which could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations or financial condition and on our ability to pay the principal of and interest on our debt securities and other indebtedness
and to make distributions to our stockholders.

Compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 and fire, safety, and other regulations may require us to make unintended
expenditures that could adversely impact our results of operations.

        Our properties are generally required to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, or the ADA. The ADA has separate
compliance requirements for "public accommodations" and
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"commercial facilities," but generally requires that buildings be made accessible to people with disabilities. Compliance with the ADA
requirements could require removal of access barriers and non-compliance could result in imposition of fines by the U.S. government or an
award of damages to private litigants. The retailers to whom we lease properties are obligated by law to comply with the ADA provisions, and
we believe that these retailers may be obligated to cover costs associated with compliance. If required changes involve greater expenditures than
anticipated, or if the changes must be made on a more accelerated basis than anticipated, the ability of these retailers to cover costs could be
adversely affected and we could be required to expend our own funds to comply with the provisions of the ADA, which could materially
adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition and our ability to pay the principal of and interest on our debt securities and other
indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders. In addition, we are required to operate our properties in compliance with fire and
safety regulations, building codes and other land use regulations, as they may be adopted by governmental agencies and bodies and become
applicable to our properties. We may be required to make substantial capital expenditures to comply with those requirements and these
expenditures could materially adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition and our ability to pay the principal of and interest
on our debt securities and other indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders.

Property taxes on our properties may increase without notice.

        Each of our properties is subject to real property taxes. The real property taxes on our properties and any other properties that we develop or
acquire in the future may increase as property tax rates change and as those properties are assessed or reassessed by tax authorities.

Matters pertaining to particular properties and tenants.

        Twenty-six of our properties were available for sale or lease at December 31, 2003, 25 of which are single-tenant properties and one of
which is a multi-tenant property. Seventeen of the properties had been previously leased to child care operators, five to restaurant operators, one
to an automotive service operator, one (which is a multi-tenant property) to a grocery store operator, one to a home improvement operator and
one to a shoe store operator. At December 31, 2003, 19 of our properties under lease were unoccupied and available for sublease by the tenants,
all of which were current with their rent and other obligations.

        For 2003, our largest tenant was Children's World Learning Centers which accounted for approximately 8.2% of our rental revenue.
Children's World Learning Centers operates child care facilities. However, as a result of acquisitions during 2003, The Pantry, Inc., an operator
of convenience stores, was our largest tenant at December 31, 2003 based on annualized rental revenue. At December 31, 2003, The Pantry, Inc.
accounted for 7.8% of our annualized rental revenue and Children's World accounted for 7.3% of our annualized rental revenue. Annualized
rental revenue is calculated by multiplying the monthly contractual base rent for each of the applicable properties by 12 and adding the previous
12 month's historic percentage rent, excluding properties owned by Crest Net. In general, a downturn in the convenience store or child care
industries, whether nationwide or limited to specific sectors of the United States, could adversely affect these tenants and other tenants in these
industries, which in turn could materially adversely affect our financial position and results of operations and our ability to pay the principal of
and interest on our debt securities and other indebtedness and to make distributions to stockholders. In addition, a substantial number of our
properties are leased to middle market retail chains which generally have more limited financial and other resources than certain upper market
retail chains, and therefore are more likely to be adversely affected by a downturn in their respective businesses or in the regional or national
economy generally.

        Our tenants in the child care, convenience store and restaurant industries accounted for approximately 17.8%, 13.3% and 11.8%,
respectively, of our rental revenue during 2003. Based on
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annualized rental revenue at December 31, 2003, tenants in the child care, convenience store and restaurant industries accounted for
approximately 15.3%, 15.9% and 10.5%, respectively, of our annualized rental revenue. A downturn in any of these industries generally,
whether nationwide or limited to specific sectors of the United States, could adversely affect tenants in those industries, which in turn could
materially adversely affect our financial position and results of operations and our ability to pay the principal of and interest on our debt
securities and other indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders. Individually, each of the other industries in our property
portfolio accounted for less than 10% of both our rental revenue for 2003 and our annualized rental revenue as of December 31, 2003.

Our charter contains provisions that may delay, defer or prevent a change of control transaction.

        Our charter contains restrictions upon ownership of our common stock.    Our charter restricts any person from acquiring actual or
constructive ownership of more than 9.8% (in value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of our outstanding common stock. See
"Restrictions on Ownership and Transfers of Stock." This provision, although intended to assist us in maintaining our status as a REIT for
federal and/or state income tax purposes, could have anti-takeover effects and could reduce the possibility that a third party will attempt to
acquire control of Realty Income.

        Our board of directors is divided into classes that serve staggered terms.    Our board of directors is divided into three classes with
staggered terms. The staggered terms for directors may reduce the possibility of a tender offer or an attempt to complete a change of control
transaction even if a tender offer or a change in control were in our stockholders' interests.

        We could issue preferred stock without stockholder approval.    Our charter authorizes our board of directors to issue up to 20,000,000
shares of preferred stock, including convertible preferred stock, without stockholder approval. The board of directors may establish the
preferences, rights and other terms of any preferred stock we may issue, including the right to vote and the right to convert into common stock
any shares issued. The issuance of preferred stock could delay or prevent a tender offer or a change of control even if a tender offer or a change
of control were in our stockholders' interests. In addition, we have designated and authorized the issuance of up to 1,000,000 shares of Class A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock in connection with our stockholder rights plan. As of March 10, 2004, we had outstanding 2,745,700 shares
of 9.375% Class B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock and 1,380,000 shares of 9.50% Class C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock.
See "General Description of Preferred Stock."

        We have a stockholder rights plan.    Each share of our common stock includes the right to purchase one one-hundredth (1/100th) of a
share of our Class A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. The rights have anti-takeover effects and would cause substantial dilution to a person
or group that attempts to acquire us on terms that our board of directors does not approve. We may redeem the shares for $0.01 per right prior to
the time that a person or group has acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock. Therefore, the rights should
not interfere with any merger or business combination approved by our board of directors. See "Stockholder Rights Plan."

        The ownership restrictions contained in our charter, the staggered terms for directors, the future issuance of preferred stock and our
stockholder rights plan may:

�
delay or prevent a change of control over us, even if a change of control might be beneficial to our stockholders;

�
deter tender offers that may be beneficial to our stockholders; or

�
limit stockholders' opportunity to receive a potential premium for their shares if an investor attempted to acquire us or
otherwise to effect a change of control.
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Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the value of our debt and equity securities, the markets in which we
operate and our results of operations.

        Terrorist attacks may negatively affect our operations and your investment. There can be no assurance that there will not be further terrorist
attacks against the United States or United States businesses. These attacks or armed conflicts may directly impact our physical facilities or the
businesses of our tenants.

        Also, the United States is currently engaged in an armed conflict in Iraq which could have an impact on our tenants. The consequences of
this or any other armed conflicts are unpredictable, and we may not be able to foresee events that could have an adverse effect on our business or
your investment.

        More generally, any of these events could cause consumer confidence and spending to decrease or result in increased volatility in the U.S.
and worldwide financial markets and economy. They also could result in or prolong an economic recession in the U.S. or abroad. Any of these
occurrences could have a significant adverse impact on our operating results and revenues and on the market price of our capital stock and on the
value of our debt securities, and may have a material adverse effect on our ability to pay the principal of and interest on our debt securities and
other indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders.

Other general risks

        Effect of market interest rates on the price of our capital stock and the value of our debt securities.    One of the factors that influences
the price of our capital stock in public trading markets is the annual yield from distributions on our capital stock as compared to yields on other
financial instruments. Thus, an increase in market interest rates will result in higher yields on other financial instruments, which could adversely
affect the market price of our capital stock. An increase in market interest rates would also be likely to have an adverse effect on the value of our
debt securities.

        Risks of debt financing.    At March 19, 2004, we had borrowings of approximately $103.2 million outstanding under our $250 million
acquisition credit facility and $110 million in aggregate principal amount of our 73/4% Notes due 2007, $100 million in aggregate principal
amount of our 81/4% Monthly Income Senior Notes due 2008, $20 million in aggregate principal amount of our 8% Notes due 2009,
$100 million in aggregate principal amount of our 53/8% Senior Notes due 2013 and $150 million in aggregate principal amount of our 51/2%
Senior Notes due 2015 were outstanding. As a result, we will be subject to risks associated with debt financing, including the risk that our cash
flow could be insufficient to meet required payments on our debt, particularly in light of the fact that the interest rate on our credit facility is
variable and could increase over time, and the risk that we may be unable to refinance or repay our debt as it comes due. In addition, our credit
facility provides that, in the event of a failure to pay principal or interest on borrowings thereunder when due (subject to any applicable grace
period), we and our subsidiaries may not pay any dividends on our capital stock, including the common stock. If this were to occur, it would
likely have a material adverse effect on the market price of our capital stock and could have a material adverse effect on the value of our debt
securities.

        Dependence on key personnel.    We depend on the efforts of our executive officers and key employees. The loss of the services of any of
our executive officers and key employees could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition and on our
ability to pay the principal of and interest on our debt securities and other indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders. It is
possible that we will not be able to recruit additional personnel with equivalent experience in the retail, net-leasing industry.

        Dilution of common stock.    Our future growth will depend in large part upon our ability to raise additional capital. If we were to raise
additional capital through the issuance of equity securities, the
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interests of holders of common stock could be diluted. The interests of our common stockholders could also be diluted by the issuance of shares
of common stock upon the exercise of outstanding options or pursuant to stock incentive plans. Likewise, our Board of Directors is authorized to
cause Realty Income to issue preferred stock in one or more series, entitled to such dividends and voting and other rights as the Board of
Directors may determine. Accordingly, the Board of Directors may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with voting, dividend and other
similar rights that could dilute, or otherwise adversely affect, the interests of holders of our common stock.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

        Unless otherwise described in the applicable prospectus supplement, we intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities for
general corporate purposes, which may include, among other things, the repayment of indebtedness, the development and acquisition of
additional properties and other acquisition transactions, and the expansion and improvement of certain properties in our portfolio.

RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

        The following table sets forth ratios of earnings to fixed charges for the periods shown. The ratios of earnings to fixed charges were
computed by dividing earnings by fixed charges. For this purpose, earnings consist of net income before interest expense. Fixed charges consist
of interest costs (including capitalized interest) and the amortization of debt issuance costs. In computing the ratios of earnings to combined
fixed charges and preferred stock dividends, preferred stock dividends consist of dividends on our 9.375% Class B cumulative redeemable
preferred stock and 9.50% Class C cumulative redeemable preferred stock.

Year Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 2.7x 2.6x 3.5x 4.3x 4.1x
Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 2.3x 2.0x 2.6x 3.0x 3.0x
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DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

General

        This prospectus describes certain general terms and provisions of our debt securities. When we offer to sell a particular series of debt
securities, we will describe the specific terms of the series in a prospectus supplement or a pricing supplement. We will also indicate in the
supplement whether the general terms and provisions described in this prospectus apply to a particular series of debt securities. Our debt
securities will be our direct obligations and they may be secured or unsecured, senior or subordinated indebtedness. We may issue our debt
securities under one or more indentures and each indenture will be dated on or before the issuance of the debt securities to which it relates.
Additionally, each indenture must be in the form filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement containing this prospectus or in a form
incorporated by reference to this prospectus in a post-effective amendment to the Registration Statement or a Form 8-K. The form of indenture is
subject to any amendments or supplements that may be adopted from time to time. We will enter into each indenture with a trustee and the
trustee for each indenture may be the same. The indenture will be subject to, and governed by, the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended.
Because this description of debt securities is a summary, it does not contain all the information that may be important to you. You should read
all provisions of our indenture and our debt securities to assure that you have all the important information you need to make any required
decisions. All capitalized terms used, but not defined, in this section shall have the meanings set forth in the applicable indenture.

Terms

        The particular terms of any series of our debt securities will be described in a prospectus supplement. Additionally, any applicable
modifications of or additions to the general terms of our debt securities described this prospectus and in the applicable indenture will also be
described in a prospectus supplement. Accordingly, for a description of the terms of any series of our debt securities, you must refer to both the
prospectus supplement relating to those debt securities and the description of the debt securities set forth in this prospectus. If any particular
terms of our debt securities described in a prospectus supplement differ from any of the terms described in this prospectus, then those terms as
set forth in the relevant prospectus supplement will control.

        Except as set forth in any prospectus supplement, our debt securities may be issued without limit as to aggregate principal amount, in one or
more series, in each case as established from time to time by our Board of Directors, a committee of the Board of Directors or as set forth in the
applicable indenture or one or more supplements to the indenture. All of our debt securities of one series need not be issued at the same time,
and unless otherwise provided, a series may be reopened for issuance of additional debt securities without the consent of the holders of the debt
securities of that series.

        Each indenture will provide that we may, but need not, designate more than one trustee for the indenture, each with respect to one or more
series of our debt securities. Any trustee under an indenture may resign or be removed with respect to one or more series of our debt securities,
and a successor trustee may be appointed to act with respect to that series. If two or more persons are acting as trustee to different series of our
debt securities, each trustee shall be a trustee of a trust under the applicable indenture separate and apart from the trust administered by any other
trustee and, except as otherwise indicated in this prospectus, any action taken by a trustee may be taken by that trustee with respect to, and only
with respect to, the one or more series of debt securities for which it is trustee under the applicable indenture.

        This summary sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the indenture and our debt securities. For a detailed description of a
specific series of debt securities, you should consult the
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prospectus supplement for that series. The prospectus supplement will contain all of the following information:

         (1)  the title of those debt securities;

         (2)  the aggregate principal amount of those debt securities and any limit on the aggregate principal amount;

         (3)  the price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of those debt securities) at which those debt securities will be
issued and, if other than the principal amount of those debt securities, the portion of the principal amount payable upon declaration of
acceleration of the maturity thereof, or (if applicable) the portion of the principal amount of those debt securities that is convertible
into common stock or preferred stock, or the method by which any convertible portion of those debt securities shall be determined;

         (4)  if those debt securities are convertible, the terms on which they are convertible, including the initial conversion price or rate
and conversion period and, in connection with the preservation of our status as a REIT, any applicable limitations on the ownership or
transferability of the common stock or the preferred stock into which those debt securities are convertible;

         (5)  the date or dates, or the method for determining the date or dates, on which the principal of those debt securities will be
payable;

         (6)  the rate or rates (which may be fixed or variable), or the method by which the rate or rates shall be determined, at which
those debt securities will bear interest, if any;

         (7)  the date or dates, or the method for determining the date or dates, from which any interest will accrue, the dates upon which
that interest will be payable, the record dates for payment of that interest, or the method by which any of those dates shall be
determined, the persons to whom that interest shall be payable, and the basis upon which that interest shall be calculated if other than
that of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months;

         (8)  the place or places where the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest, if any, on debt securities will be payable, where
debt securities may be surrendered for conversion or registration of transfer or exchange and where notices or demands to or upon us
relating to debt securities and the indenture may be served;

         (9)  the period or periods, if any, within which, the price or prices at which and the terms and conditions upon which those debt
securities may be redeemed, as a whole or in part, at our option;

       (10)  our obligation, if any, to redeem, repay or purchase those debt securities pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous provision
or at the option of a holder of those debt securities, and the period or periods within which, the price or prices at which and the terms
and conditions upon which those debt securities will be redeemed, repaid or purchased, as a whole or in part, pursuant to this
obligation;

       (11)  if other than U.S. dollars, the currency or currencies in which those debt securities are denominated and payable, which may
be a foreign currency or units of two or more foreign currencies or a composite currency or currencies, and the terms and conditions
relating thereto;

       (12)  whether the amount of payments of principal of (and premium, if any) or interest, if any, on those debt securities may be
determined with reference to an index, formula or other method (which index, formula or method may, but need not, be based on a
currency, currencies, currency unit or units or composite currency or currencies) and the manner in which those amounts shall be
determined;

14

Edgar Filing: BLUE NILE INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 88



       (13)  whether those debt securities will be issued in certificated and/or book-entry form, and, if in book-entry form, the identity of
the depositary for those debt securities;

       (14)  whether those debt securities will be in registered or bearer form and, if in registered form, the denominations thereof if other
than $1,000 and any integral multiple thereof and, if in bearer form, the denominations thereof and terms and conditions relating
thereto;

       (15)  the applicability, if any, of the defeasance and covenant defeasance provisions described herein or set forth in the applicable
indenture, or any modification of the indenture;

       (16)  any deletions from, modifications of or additions to the events of default or our covenants with respect to those debt
securities;

       (17)  whether and under what circumstances we will pay any additional amounts on those debt securities in respect of any tax,
assessment or governmental charge and, if so, whether we will have the option to redeem those debt securities in lieu of making this
payment;

       (18)  the subordination provisions, if any, relating to those debt securities;

       (19)  the provisions, if any, relating to any security provided for those debt securities; and

       (20)  any other terms of those debt securities.

        If the applicable prospectus supplement provides, we may issue the debt securities at a discount below their principal amount and provide
for less than the entire principal amount of the debt securities to be payable upon declaration of acceleration of the maturity thereof ("Original
Issue Discount Securities"). In those cases, any material U.S. federal income tax, accounting and other considerations applicable to Original
Issue Discount Securities will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Denominations, Interest, Registration and Transfer

        Unless otherwise described in the applicable prospectus supplement, the debt securities of any series will be issuable in denominations of
$1,000 and integral multiples of $1,000.

        Unless otherwise described in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will pay the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on any
series of debt securities at the applicable trustee's corporate trust office, the address of which will be set forth in the applicable prospectus
supplement; provided, however, that, unless otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may make interest payments (1) by
check mailed to the address of the person entitled to the payment as that address appears in the applicable register for those debt securities, or
(2) by wire transfer of funds to the person at an account maintained within the United States.

        Subject to certain limitations imposed on debt securities issued in book-entry form, the debt securities of any series will be exchangeable
for any authorized denomination of other debt securities of the same series and of a like aggregate principal amount and tenor upon surrender of
those debt securities at the office of any transfer agent we designate for that purpose. In addition, subject to certain limitations imposed on debt
securities issued in book-entry form, the debt securities of any series may be surrendered for conversion or registration of transfer thereof at the
office of any transfer agent we designate for that purpose. Every debt security surrendered for conversion, registration of transfer or exchange
shall be duly endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer and the person requesting that transfer must provide evidence of title
and identity satisfactory to us and the applicable transfer agent. No service charge will be made for any registration of transfer or exchange of
any debt securities, but we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection
therewith. We may at any time rescind the designation of any transfer agent appointed with respect to the debt securities of any series or approve
a change in
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the location through which any transfer agent acts, except that we will be required to maintain a transfer agent in each place of payment for that
series. We may at any time designate additional transfer agents with respect to any series of debt securities.

        Neither we nor any trustee shall be required to

�
issue, register the transfer of or exchange debt securities of any series if that debt security may be among those selected for
redemption during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the mailing or first publication, as the case
may be, of notice of redemption of those debt securities and ending at the close of business on

        1.     the day of mailing of the relevant notice of redemption if the debt securities of that series are issuable only in
registered form, or

        2.     the day of the first publication of the relevant notice of redemption if the debt securities of that series are issuable
in bearer form, or

        3.     the day of mailing of the relevant notice of redemption if those debt securities are issuable in both bearer and
registered form and there is no publication; or

�
register the transfer of or exchange any debt security in registered form, or portion thereof, so selected for redemption, in
whole or in part, except the unredeemed portion of any debt security being redeemed in part; or

�
exchange any debt security in bearer form so selected for redemption, except in exchange for a debt security of that series in
registered form that is simultaneously surrendered for redemption; or

�
issue, register the transfer of or exchange any debt security that has been surrendered for repayment at the holder's option,
except the portion, if any, of that debt security not to be so repaid.

Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Assets

        Each indenture will provide that we will not consolidate with, sell, lease or convey all or substantially all of our assets to, or merge with or
into, any person unless

�
either we shall be the continuing entity, or the successor person (if not us) formed by or resulting from the consolidation or
merger or which shall have received the transfer of the assets shall be a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the United States or any State thereof and shall expressly assume (1) our obligation to pay the principal of (and premium, if
any) and interest on all the debt securities issued under the indenture and (2) the due and punctual performance and
observance of all the covenants and conditions contained in the indenture and in the debt securities;

�
immediately after giving effect to the transaction and treating any indebtedness that becomes our obligation or the obligation
of any Subsidiary as a result of the transaction as having been incurred, and treating any liens on any property or assets of
ours or any Subsidiary that are incurred, created or assumed as a result of the transaction as having been created, incurred or
assumed, by us or the Subsidiary at the time of the transaction, no event of default under the indenture, and no event that,
after notice or the lapse of time, or both, would become an event of default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and

�
an officers' certificate and legal opinion covering these conditions shall be delivered to the trustee.
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Certain Covenants

        Existence.    Except as permitted under the heading above, entitled "�Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Assets," we will be required under
each indenture to do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect our corporate existence, all material
rights (by charter, bylaws and statute) and all material franchises; provided, however, that we shall not be required to preserve any right or
franchise if our Board of Directors determines that the preservation thereof is no longer desirable in the conduct of our business.

        Maintenance of Properties.    Each indenture will require us to cause all of our material properties used or useful in the conduct of our
business or the business of any Subsidiary to be maintained and kept in good condition, repair and working order and supplied with all necessary
equipment and will require us to cause to be made all necessary repairs, renewals, replacements, betterments and improvements to those
properties, as in our judgment may be necessary so that the business carried on in connection with those properties may be properly and
advantageously conducted at all times; provided, however, that we and our Subsidiaries shall not be prevented from selling or otherwise
disposing of these properties for value in the ordinary course of business.

        Insurance.    Each indenture will require us and each of our Subsidiaries to keep in force upon all of our properties and operations policies
of insurance carried with responsible companies in amounts and covering all risks as shall be customary in the industry in accordance with
prevailing market conditions and availability.

        Payment of Taxes and Other Claims.    Each indenture will require us to pay or discharge or cause to be paid or discharged, before the same
shall become delinquent, (a) all taxes, assessments and governmental charges levied or imposed on us, our income, profits or property, or any
Subsidiary, its income, profits or property and (b) all lawful claims for labor, materials and supplies that, if unpaid, might by law become a lien
upon our property or the property of any Subsidiary; provided, however, that we shall not be required to pay or discharge or cause to be paid or
discharged any tax, assessment, charge or claim the amount, applicability or validity of which we are contesting in good faith through
appropriate proceedings.

        Provisions of Financial Information.    Whether or not we are subject to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, we will be required by
each indenture, within 15 days after each of the respective dates by which we would have been required to file annual reports, quarterly reports
and other documents with the Commission if we were subject to those Sections of the Exchange Act to:

�
transmit by mail to all holders of debt securities issued under the indenture, as their names and addresses appear in the
applicable register for those debt securities, without cost to the holders, copies of the annual reports, quarterly reports and
other documents that we would have been required to file with the Commission pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act if we were subject to those Sections;

�
file with the applicable trustee copies of the annual reports, quarterly reports and other documents that we would have been
required to file with the Commission pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act if we were subject to those
Sections; and

�
supply promptly, upon written request and payment of the reasonable cost of duplication and delivery, copies of these
documents to any prospective holder of the debt securities.

        Except as may otherwise be provided in the prospectus supplement relating to any series of debt securities, the term "Subsidiary", as used in
the indenture means any other Person of which more than 50% of (a) the equity or other ownership interests or (b) the total voting power of
shares of capital stock or other ownership interests entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to
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vote in the election of directors, managers, trustees or general or managing partners thereof is at the time owned by us or one or more of our
Subsidiaries or a combination thereof.

        Additional Covenants.    If we make any additional covenants with respect to any series of debt securities, those covenants will be set forth
in the prospectus supplement relating to those debt securities.

Events of Default, Notice and Waiver

        Unless otherwise provided in the applicable indenture, each indenture will provide that the following events are "events of default" for any
series of debt securities issued under it:

        (1)   default for 30 days in the payment of any installment of interest on any debt security of that series;

        (2)   default in the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any, on) any debt security of that series when due, whether at stated
maturity or by declaration of acceleration, notice of redemption, notice of option to elect repayment or otherwise;

        (3)   default in making any sinking fund payment as required for any debt security of that series;

        (4)   default in the performance of any of our other covenants contained in the indenture (other than a covenant added to the
indenture solely for the benefit of a series of debt securities issued thereunder other than that series), which continues for 60 days after
we receive written notice from the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that
series;

        (5)   default under any bond, debenture, note or other evidence of indebtedness for money borrowed by us or any of our
Subsidiaries (including obligations under leases required to be capitalized on the balance sheet of the lessee under generally accepted
accounting principles, but not including any indebtedness or obligations for which recourse is limited to property purchased) in an
aggregate principal amount in excess of $25,000,000 or under any mortgage, indenture or instrument under which there may be issued
or by which there may be secured or evidenced any indebtedness for money borrowed by us or any of our Subsidiaries (including such
leases, but not including such indebtedness or obligations for which recourse is limited to property purchased) in an aggregate
principal amount in excess of $25,000,000, whether the indebtedness exists at the date of the relevant indenture or shall thereafter be
created, which default shall have resulted in the indebtedness becoming or being declared due and payable prior to the date on which it
would otherwise have become due and payable or which default shall have resulted in the obligation being accelerated, without the
acceleration having been rescinded or annulled;

        (6)   certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization with respect to us or any of our Significant Subsidiaries; or

        (7)   any other Event of Default provided with respect to a particular series of debt securities.

The term "Significant Subsidiary" as used above has the meaning ascribed to the term in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X promulgated under the
Securities Act, as the Regulation was in effect on January 1, 1996.

        If an event of default under any indenture with respect to debt securities of any series at the time outstanding occurs and is continuing, then
the applicable trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series may declare the
principal amount (or, if the debt securities of that series are Original Issue Discount Securities or Indexed Securities, that portion of the principal
amount as may be specified in the terms thereof) of all the debt securities of
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that series to be due and payable immediately by written notice thereof to us (and to the applicable trustee if given by the holders). However, at
any time after the declaration of acceleration with respect to debt securities of a series has been made, but before a judgment or decree for
payment of the money due has been obtained by the applicable trustee, the holders of not less than a majority of the principal amount of the
outstanding debt securities of that series may rescind and annul the declaration and its consequences if:

�
we shall have deposited with the applicable trustee all required payments of the principal of (and premium, if any) and
interest on the debt securities of that series (other than principal which has become due solely as a result of the acceleration),
plus certain fees, expenses, disbursements and advances of the applicable trustee; and

�
all events of default, other than the nonpayment of accelerated principal (or specified portion thereof), premium, if any, and
interest with respect to debt securities of that series have been cured or waived as provided in the indenture.

Each indenture will also provide that the holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series
may waive any past default with respect to that series and its consequences, except:

�
a default in the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) or interest on any debt security of that series; or

�
a default in respect of a covenant or provision contained in the indenture that cannot be modified or amended without the
consent of the holder of each outstanding debt security of the series affected by the default.

        Each indenture will require each trustee to give notice of a default under the indenture to the holders of debt securities within 90 days unless
the default shall have been cured or waived, subject to certain exceptions; provided, however, that the trustee may withhold notice to the holders
of any series of debt securities of any default with respect to that series (except a default in the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any)
or interest on any debt security of that series or in the payment of any sinking fund installment in respect of any debt security of that series) if
specified Responsible Officers of the trustee consider a withholding to be in those holders' interest.

        Each indenture will provide that no holders of debt securities of any series may institute any proceedings, judicial or otherwise, with respect
to the indenture or for any remedy thereunder, except in the case of failure of the trustee, for 60 days, to act after it has received a written request
to institute proceedings in respect of an event of default from the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the outstanding debt
securities of that series, as well as an offer of indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it, and no direction inconsistent with the written request has
been given to the trustee during the 60-day period by holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series.
This provision will not prevent, however, any holder of debt securities from instituting suit for the enforcement of payment of the principal of
(and premium, if any) and interest on those debt securities at the respective due dates thereof.

        Each indenture will provide that, subject to provisions in the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 relating to its duties in case of default, the trustee
is under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the indenture at the request or direction of any holders of any series of the
debt securities then outstanding under the indenture, unless those holders shall have offered to the trustee reasonable security or indemnity. The
holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series shall have the right to direct the time,
method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee, or of exercising any trust or power conferred upon the
trustee; provided that the direction shall not conflict with any rule of law or the indenture, and provided further that the trustee may refuse to
follow any direction that may involve the trustee in
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personal liability or that may be unduly prejudicial to the holders of debt securities of that series not joining in the direction to the trustee.

        Within 120 days after the close of each fiscal year, we will be required to deliver to the trustee a certificate, signed by one of several
specified officers, stating whether or not the officer has knowledge of any default under the indenture and, if so, specifying each default and the
nature and status thereof.

Modification of the Indenture

        Modifications and amendments of any indenture will be permitted with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in principal
amount of all outstanding debt securities of each series issued under the indenture affected by the modification or amendment; provided,
however, that no modification or amendment may, without the consent of the holder of each debt security affected thereby,

�
change the stated maturity of the principal of, or any installment of principal of, or interest (or premium, if any) on, any debt
security;

�
reduce the principal amount of, or the rate or amount of interest on, or any premium payable on redemption of, any debt
security, or reduce the amount of principal of an Original Issue Discount Security that would be due and payable upon
declaration of acceleration of the maturity of the Original Issue Discount Security or would be provable in bankruptcy, or
adversely affect any right of repayment at the option of the holder of any debt security (or reduce the amount of premium
payable upon any repayment);

�
change the place of payment, or the coin or currency, for payment of principal of (or premium, if any) or interest on any debt
security;

�
impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or with respect to any debt security when due;

�
reduce the above-stated percentage of outstanding debt securities of any series necessary to modify or amend the indenture
to waive compliance with certain provisions of the indenture or certain defaults and consequences under the indenture or to
reduce the quorum or voting requirements set forth in the indenture; or

�
modify any of the foregoing provisions or any of the provisions relating to the waiver of certain past defaults or certain
covenants, except to increase the required percentage to effect the action or to provide that certain other provisions may not
be modified or waived without the consent of the holder of each outstanding debt security affected thereby.

        The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of outstanding debt securities of any series may, on behalf of all holders of debt
securities of that series waive, insofar as that series is concerned, our compliance with certain restrictive covenants in the applicable indenture.

        We, along with the trustee, shall be permitted to modify and amend an indenture without the consent of any holder of debt securities for any
of the following purposes:

�
to evidence the succession of another person to our obligations under the indenture;

�
to add to our covenants for the benefit of the holders of all or any series of debt securities or to surrender any right or power
conferred upon us in the indenture;

�
to add events of default for the benefit of the holders of all or any series of debt securities;

�
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to add or change any provisions of the indenture to facilitate the issuance of, or to liberalize certain terms of, debt securities
in bearer form, or to permit or facilitate the issuance of debt
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securities in uncertificated form, provided that this action shall not adversely affect the interests of the holders of the debt
securities of any series in any material respect;

�
to change or eliminate any provisions of the indenture, provided that any such change or elimination does not apply to any
outstanding debt securities of a series created prior to the date of the amendment or supplement that are entitled to the
benefit of that provision;

�
to secure the debt securities;

�
to establish the form or terms of debt securities of any series, including the provisions and procedures, if applicable, for the
conversion of debt securities into common stock or preferred stock;

�
to provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee or facilitate the administration of the trusts under the
indenture by more than one trustee;

�
to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency in the indenture or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or
questions arising under the indenture, provided, however, that this action shall not adversely affect the interests of holders of
debt securities of any series in any material respect; or

�
to supplement any of the provisions of the indenture to the extent necessary to permit or facilitate defeasance, covenant
defeasance and discharge of any series of debt securities, provided, however, that this action shall not adversely affect the
interests of the holders of the debt securities of any series in any material respect.

        Each indenture will provide that in determining whether the holders of the requisite principal amount of outstanding debt securities of a
series have given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver described in the indenture or whether a quorum is
present at a meeting of holders of debt securities,

�
the principal amount of an Original Issue Discount Security that shall be deemed to be outstanding shall be the amount of the
principal of that security that would be due and payable as of the date of the determination upon declaration of acceleration
of the maturity thereof;

�
the principal amount of any debt security denominated in a foreign currency that shall be deemed outstanding shall be the
U.S. dollar equivalent, determined on the issue date for the debt security, of the principal amount (or, in the case of an
Original Issue Discount Security, the U.S. dollar equivalent on the issue date of the debt security of the amount determined
as provided in the first bullet above);

�
the principal amount of an Indexed Security that shall be deemed outstanding shall be the principal face amount of the
Indexed Security at original issuance, unless otherwise provided with respect to the Indexed Security in the applicable
indenture; and

�
debt securities owned by us or any other obligor upon the debt securities or any affiliate of ours or of the other obligor shall
be disregarded.

        Each indenture will contain provisions for convening meetings of the holders of debt securities of a series. A meeting may be permitted to
be called at any time by the trustee, and also, upon our request or request of the holders of at least 10% in principal amount of the outstanding
debt securities of a series, in any case upon notice given as provided in the indenture. Except for any consent or waiver that must be given by the
holder of each debt security affected thereby, any resolution presented at a meeting or at an adjourned meeting duly reconvened at which a
quorum is present, may be adopted by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of
that series; provided, however, that, except as referred to above, any resolution with respect to any request, demand, authorization, direction,
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given or taken by the holders of a specified percentage, which is less than a majority, in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of
the series may be adopted at a meeting or adjourned meeting duly reconvened at which a quorum is present by the affirmative vote of the holders
of the specified percentage in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series. Any resolution passed or decision taken at any
meeting of holders of debt securities of any series duly held in accordance with the indenture will be binding on all holders of debt securities of
that series. The persons holding or representing a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of a series shall constitute a
quorum for a meeting of holders of that series; provided, however, that if any action is to be taken at a meeting with respect to a consent or
waiver that may be given by the holders of not less than a specified percentage in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that
series, the persons holding or representing the specified percentage in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series will
constitute a quorum.

        Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, each indenture will provide that if any action is to be taken at a meeting of holders of debt
securities of any series with respect to any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action that the indenture
expressly provides may be made, given or taken by the holders of that series and one or more additional series: (a) there shall be no minimum
quorum requirement for the meeting and (b) the principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of all those series that are entitled to vote in
favor of the request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action shall be taken into account in determining whether
the request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action has been made, given or taken under the indenture.

Discharge, Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance

        Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, upon our request any indenture shall cease to be of further effect with
respect to any series of debt securities issued under the indenture specified in our request (except as to certain limited provisions of the indenture
which shall survive) when either (a) all debt securities of that series have been delivered to the trustee for cancellation or (b) all debt securities of
that series have become due and payable or will become due and payable within one year (or are scheduled for redemption within one year) and
we have irrevocably deposited with the applicable trustee, in trust, funds in the currency or currencies, currency unit or units or composite
currency or currencies in which those debt securities are payable an amount sufficient to pay the entire indebtedness on those debt securities in
respect of principal (and premium, if any) and interest to the date of the deposit (if those debt securities have become due and payable) or to the
stated maturity or redemption date, as the case may be.

        Each indenture will provide that, unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may elect either to:

�
defease and be discharged from any and all obligations with respect to any series of debt securities (except for the obligation,
if any, to pay additional amounts in respect of certain taxes imposed on non-U.S. holders of debt securities and the
obligations to register the transfer or exchange of the debt securities, to replace temporary or mutilated, destroyed, lost or
stolen debt securities, to maintain an office or agency in respect of the debt securities and to hold money for payment in
trust) ("defeasance"); or

�
be released from our obligations with respect to certain covenants (which will be described in the relevant prospectus
supplement) applicable to the debt securities under the applicable indenture (which may include, subject to a limited
exception, the covenants described under "�Certain Covenants"), and any omission to comply with these obligations shall not
constitute a default or an event of default with respect to those debt securities ("covenant defeasance"),
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in either case upon our irrevocable deposit with the applicable trustee, in trust, of an amount, in the currency or currencies, currency unit or units
or composite currency or currencies in which those debt securities are payable at stated maturity, or Government Obligations (as defined below),
or both, applicable to those debt securities that through the scheduled payment of principal and interest in accordance with their terms will
provide money in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on those debt securities, and any mandatory
sinking fund or analogous payments on those debt securities, on the scheduled due dates.

        A trust may only be established if, among other things, we have delivered to the applicable trustee an opinion of counsel (as specified in the
applicable indenture) to the effect that the holders of those debt securities will not recognize income, gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax
purposes as a result of the defeasance or covenant defeasance and will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same
manner and at the same times as would have been the case if the defeasance or covenant defeasance had not occurred. Additionally, in the case
of defeasance, an opinion of counsel must refer to and be based on a ruling of the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") or a change in applicable
U.S. federal income tax law occurring after the date of the applicable indenture. In the event of defeasance, the holders of those debt securities
will thereafter be able to look only to the trust fund for payment of principal (and premium, if any) and interest.

        "Government Obligations" means securities that are (a) direct obligations of the United States of America or the government which issued
the foreign currency in which the debt securities of a particular series are payable, for the payment of which its full faith and credit is pledged, or
(b) obligations of a person controlled or supervised by and acting as an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America or the
government which issued the foreign currency in which the debt securities of that series are payable, the payment of which is unconditionally
guaranteed as a full faith and credit obligation by the United States of America or the other government, which, in either case, are not callable or
redeemable at the option of the issuer thereof, and shall also include a depository receipt issued by a bank or trust company as custodian with
respect to any Government Obligation or a specific payment of interest on or principal of any Government Obligation held by a custodian for the
account of the holder of a depository receipt; provided, however, that (except as required by law) the custodian is not authorized to make any
deduction from the amount payable to the holder of the depository receipt from any amount received by the custodian in respect of the
Government Obligation or the specific payment of interest on or principal of the Government Obligation evidenced by the depository receipt.

        Unless otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, if after we have deposited funds and/or Government Obligations to
effect defeasance or covenant defeasance with respect to debt securities of any series,

�
the holder of a debt security of that series is entitled to, and does, elect pursuant to the applicable indenture or the terms of
that debt security to receive payment in a currency, currency unit or composite currency other than that in which the deposit
has been made in respect of that debt security or

�
a Conversion Event (as defined below) occurs in respect of the currency, currency unit or composite currency in which the
deposit has been made,

then the indebtedness represented by that debt security will be deemed to have been, and will be, fully discharged and satisfied through the
payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on that debt security as they become due out of the proceeds yielded by
converting the amount so deposited in respect of that debt security into the currency, currency unit or composite currency in
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which the debt security becomes payable as a result of the election or Conversion Event based on the applicable market exchange rate.
"Conversion Event" means the cessation of use of:

�
a currency, currency unit or composite currency both by the government of the country which issued the currency and for the
settlement of transactions by a central bank or other public institution of or within the international banking community;

�
the ECU both within the European Monetary System and for the settlement of transactions by public institutions of or within
the European Communities; or

�
any currency unit or composite currency other than the ECU for the purposes for which it was established.

        In the event we effect a covenant defeasance with respect to any debt securities and those debt securities are declared due and payable
because of the occurrence of any event of default, other than an event of default due to a breach of any of the covenants as to which there has
been covenant defeasance (which covenants would no longer be applicable to those debt securities as a result of such covenant defeasance), the
Government Obligations on deposit with the applicable trustee may not be sufficient to pay amounts due on those debt securities at the time of
the acceleration resulting from the event of default. We would, however, remain liable to make payment of the amounts due at the time of
acceleration.

        The applicable prospectus supplement may further describe the provisions, if any, permitting the defeasance or covenant defeasance,
including any modifications to the provisions described above, with respect to the debt securities of or within a particular series.

Conversion Rights

        The terms and conditions, if any, upon which the debt securities are convertible into common stock or preferred stock will be set forth in
the applicable prospectus supplement relating to those debt securities. The terms will include whether the debt securities are convertible into
common stock or preferred stock, the conversion price (or manner of calculation thereof), the conversion period, provisions as to whether
conversion will be at our option or the option of the holders, the events requiring an adjustment of the conversion price and provisions affecting
conversion in the event of the redemption of the debt securities and any restrictions on conversion, including restrictions directed at maintaining
our REIT status.

Unclaimed Payments

        We will be repaid for all amounts we pay to a paying agent or a trustee for the payment of the principal of or any premium or interest on
any debt security that remains unclaimed at the end of two years after the principal, premium or interest has become due and payable, and the
holder of that debt security may look only to us for payment of the principal, premium or interest.

Global Securities

        The debt securities of a series may be issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more global securities (the "Global Securities") that
will be deposited with, or on behalf of, a depositary identified in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to that series. Global Securities
may be issued in either registered or bearer form and in either temporary or permanent form. The specific terms of the depositary arrangement
with respect to a series of debt securities will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to that series.
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DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK

        We have authority to issue 100,000,000 shares of our common stock, $1.00 par value per share. As of March 10, 2004, we had outstanding
38,009,717 shares of our common stock.

General

        The following description of our common stock sets forth certain general terms and provisions of our common stock to which any
prospectus supplement may relate, including a prospectus supplement providing that our common stock will be issuable upon conversion of our
debt securities or our preferred stock. The statements below describing our common stock are in all respects subject to and qualified in their
entirety by reference to the applicable provisions of our charter and Bylaws.

Terms

        Subject to the preferential rights of any other shares or series of stock and to the provisions of our charter regarding the restrictions on
transfer of stock, holders of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if authorized by our board of directors and declared
by us out of assets legally available therefor. The terms of our outstanding preferred stock provide in general that if we fail to declare or pay full
cumulative dividends on that preferred stock for all past dividend periods and the then current dividend period, no dividends or distributions on
our common stock (other than dividends payable in shares of common stock or other shares of our capital stock ranking junior to the outstanding
preferred stock) may be declared or paid nor may we purchase or otherwise acquire any of our common stock (except in exchange for other
capital stock ranking junior to the outstanding preferred stock and except for certain purchases of our stock for the purpose of preserving our
qualification as a REIT for federal and/or state income tax purposes). Payment and authorization of dividends on our common stock and
purchases of those shares by us may also be subject to certain restrictions if we fail to pay dividends on any other preferred stock we may issue
in the future. If we were to experience liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock would be entitled to share equally
and ratably in any assets available for distribution to them, after payment or adequate provision for payment of our debts and other liabilities and
the preferential amounts owing with respect to our outstanding preferred stock.

        Subject to the provisions of our charter regarding the restrictions on transfer of stock (See "Restrictions on Ownership and Transfers of
Stock" below), each outstanding share of our common stock entitles the holder to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders,
including the election of directors and, except as provided with respect to any other class or series of stock, the holders of such shares will
possess the exclusive voting power. Our board of directors is divided into three classes of directors. The terms of the Class I, Class II and
Class III directors will next expire in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Each class is chosen for three-year terms upon the expiration of their
current terms and each year one class of directors will be elected by the stockholders. The staggered terms of directors may reduce the possibility
of a tender offer or an attempt to change control of us even though a tender offer or change in control might be in the best interest of the
stockholders.

        Holders of our common stock do not have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors, which means that holders of more than 50%
of all the shares of our common stock voting for the election of directors can elect all the directors of the class standing for election at the time if
they choose to do so and the holders of the remaining shares cannot elect any directors of that class. Holders of shares of common stock do not
have preemptive rights, which means they have no right under the charter, Bylaws, or Maryland law to acquire any additional shares of common
stock that may be issued by us at a subsequent date. Holders of shares of common stock have no preference, conversion, exchange, sinking fund,
or redemption rights. Under Maryland law, stockholders generally
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are not liable for the corporation's debts or obligations. All shares of common stock now outstanding are, and additional shares of common stock
offered will be when issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

        Under the Maryland General Corporation Law, or MGCL, a Maryland corporation generally cannot dissolve, amend its charter, merge, sell
all or substantially all of its assets, engage in a share exchange or engage in similar transactions outside the ordinary course of business unless
approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders holding at least two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote on the matter unless a lesser percentage
(but not less than a majority of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter) is set forth in the corporation's charter. Our charter provides that
any such action shall be effective if approved by the affirmative vote of holders of shares entitled to cast a majority of all the votes entitled to be
cast on the matter.

        Our charter authorizes our board of directors to reclassify any unissued shares of our common stock into other classes or series of stock and
to establish the number of shares in each class or series and to set the preferences, conversion and other rights, voting powers, restrictions,
limitations as to dividends or other distributions, qualifications or terms or conditions of redemption for each such class or series.

Maryland Business Combination Law

        Under the MGCL, certain "business combinations" (including certain issuances of equity securities) between a Maryland corporation and
any person who beneficially owns ten percent or more of the voting power of the corporation's shares, or an affiliate or associate of the
corporation who beneficially owned ten percent or more of the voting power at any time within the preceding two years, in each case referred to
as an interested stockholder, or an affiliate thereof are prohibited for five years after the most recent date on which the interested stockholder
becomes an interested stockholder. Thereafter, any such business combination must be approved by two super-majority stockholder votes unless,
among other conditions, the corporation's common stockholders receive a minimum price (as defined in the MGCL) for their shares and the
consideration is received in cash or in the same form as previously paid by the interested stockholder for its common shares. The business
combination provisions of the MGCL do not apply, however, to business combinations that are approved or exempted by the Board of Directors
prior to the time that the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder. These provisions of the MGCL may delay, defer or prevent a
transaction or a change in control of us that might involve a premium price for the common stock or otherwise be in the best interests of the
stockholders.

Maryland Control Share Acquisitions Law

        The MGCL provides that "control shares" of a Maryland corporation acquired in a "control share acquisition" have no voting rights except
to the extent approved by a vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding shares of stock owned by the acquiror or
by officers or directors who are employees of the corporation. "Control shares" are shares of stock which, if aggregated with all other such
shares of stock previously acquired by the acquiror or in respect of which the acquiror is able to exercise or direct the exercise of voting power
(except solely by virtue of a revocable proxy), would entitle the acquiror to exercise voting power in electing directors within one of the
following ranges of voting power; (1) one-tenth or more but less than one-third, (2) one-third or more but less than a majority, or (3) a majority
or more of all voting power. Control shares do not include shares the acquiring person is then entitled to vote as a result of having previously
obtained stockholder approval. A "control share acquisition" means the acquisition of control shares, subject to certain exceptions.

        A person who has made or proposes to make a control share acquisition, upon satisfaction of certain conditions (including an undertaking to
pay expenses), may compel the board of directors of the
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corporation to call a special meeting of stockholders to be held within 50 days of demand to consider the voting rights of the shares. If no request
for a meeting is made, the corporation may itself present the question at any stockholders meeting.

        If voting rights are not approved at the meeting or if the acquiring person does not deliver an acquiring person statement as required by the
statute, then, subject to certain conditions and limitations, the corporation may redeem any and all of the control shares (except those for which
the voting rights have previously been approved) for fair value determined, without regard to the absence of voting rights for the control shares,
as of the date of the last control share acquisition by the acquiror or of any meeting of stockholders at which the voting rights of such shares are
considered and not approved. If voting rights for control shares are approved at a stockholders meeting and the acquiror becomes entitled to vote
a majority of the shares entitled to vote, all other stockholders may exercise appraisal rights. The fair value of the shares as determined for
purposes of such appraisal rights may not be less than the highest price per share paid by the acquiror in the control share acquisition.

        "Control share acquisition" does not include (1) shares acquired in a merger, consolidation or share exchange if the corporation is a party to
the transaction or (b) acquisitions exempted by the charter or bylaws of the corporation, adopted at any time before the acquisition of the shares.

        As permitted by the MGCL, the Bylaws contain a provision exempting us from the control share acquisition statute. That Bylaw provision
states that the control share statute shall not apply to any acquisition by any person of shares of our stock. There can be no assurance that such
provision will not be amended or eliminated by the Board of Directors at any time in the future.

Restrictions on Ownership

        For us to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, not more than 50% in value of our outstanding stock
may be owned, actually or constructively, by five or fewer individuals (defined in the Code to include certain entities) during the last half of a
taxable year. To assist us in meeting this requirement and certain other requirements relating to our tax status as a REIT, we may take certain
actions to limit the actual, beneficial or constructive ownership by a single person or entity of our outstanding equity securities. See "Restrictions
on Ownership and Transfers of Stock" below.

Transfer Agent

        The registrar and transfer agent for our common stock is The Bank of New York.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK

        We are authorized to issue 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $1.00 par value per share. As of March 10, 2004, we had outstanding
2,745,700 shares of 93/8% Class B cumulative redeemable preferred stock and 1,380,000 shares of 91/2% Class C cumulative redeemable
preferred stock. In addition, our board of directors has authorized the issuance of 1,000,000 shares of our Class A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock (the "Class A Preferred Stock") pursuant to our stockholder rights plan, although no shares of such class are currently outstanding. See
"Stockholder Rights Plan."

General

        The following description of our preferred stock sets forth certain general terms and provisions of our preferred stock to which any
prospectus supplement may relate. The statements below describing our preferred stock are in all respects subject to and qualified in their
entirety by reference to the applicable provisions of our charter (including the applicable articles supplementary designating the terms of a series
of preferred stock) and our bylaws. You should review the articles supplementary for the Class B cumulative redeemable preferred stock and the
articles supplementary for the Class C cumulative redeemable preferred stock, copies of which may be obtained as described below under
"Where You Can Find More Information."

        Our charter authorizes our board of directors to classify any unissued shares of preferred stock and to reclassify any previously classified
but unissued shares of any class or series. Prior to issuance of shares of each series, our board is required by the MGCL and our charter to set,
subject to the provisions of our charter regarding the restrictions on transfer of stock, the terms, preferences, conversion or other rights, voting
powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends or other distributions, qualifications and terms or conditions of redemption for each such series.
Thus, the board could authorize the issuance of shares of preferred stock with terms and conditions which could have the effect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a transaction or a change in control of us that might involve a premium price for holders of our common stock or
otherwise be in their best interest. Any additional preferred stock will, when issued, be fully paid and nonassessable and will have no preemptive
rights. The following discussion is applicable to any additional preferred stock that we may issue.

        You should refer to the prospectus supplement relating to the preferred stock offered thereby for specific terms of and other information
concerning the preferred stock, including:

         (1)  the title of the preferred stock;

         (2)  the number of shares of the preferred stock offered, the liquidation preference per share and the offering price of the
preferred stock;

         (3)  the dividend rate(s), period(s) and/or payment date(s) or method(s) of calculation thereof applicable to the preferred stock;

         (4)  whether the preferred stock is cumulative or not and, if cumulative, the date from which dividends on the preferred stock
shall accumulate;

         (5)  the procedures for any auction and remarketing, if any, for the preferred stock;

         (6)  the provision for a sinking fund, if any, for the preferred stock;

         (7)  any voting rights of the preferred stock;

         (8)  the provision for redemption, if applicable, of the preferred stock;

         (9)  any listing of the preferred stock on any securities exchange;

       (10)  the terms and conditions, if applicable, upon which the preferred stock will be convertible into common stock, including the
conversion price (or manner of calculation thereof);
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       (11)  a discussion of federal income tax considerations applicable to the preferred stock;

       (12)  any limitations on actual, beneficial or constructive ownership and restrictions on transfer, in each case as may be
appropriate to preserve our REIT status;

       (13)  the relative ranking and preferences of the preferred stock as to dividend rights and rights upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of our affairs;

       (14)  whether liquidation preferences on preferred stock will be counted as liabilities of ours in determining whether distributions
to junior stockholders can be made under the MGCL;

       (15)  any limitations on issuance of any series or class of preferred stock ranking senior to or on a parity with such series or class
of preferred stock as to dividend rights and rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs; and

       (16)  any other specific terms, preferences, rights, limitations or restrictions of the preferred stock.

Rank

        Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, the preferred stock of any series or class will rank, with respect to the
payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up:

�
senior to all classes or series of our common stock, to the Class A Preferred Stock and to all other equity securities issued by
us other than equity securities referred to in the two immediately following bullet points;

�
on a parity with all equity securities issued by us the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank on a
parity with the preferred stock of such series or class with respect to rights to the payment of dividends and the distribution
of assets in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

�
junior to all equity securities issued by us the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank senior to
the preferred stock of such series or class with respect to rights to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets in
the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

For these purposes, the term "equity securities" does not include convertible debt securities.

Dividends

        Holders of shares of our preferred stock of each series or class shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if authorized by our board of
directors and declared by us, out of our assets legally available for payment, cash dividends at rates and on dates as will be set forth in the
applicable prospectus supplement. Each dividend shall be payable to holders of record as they appear on our stock transfer books on the record
dates as shall be fixed by our board of directors.

        Dividends on any series or class of our preferred stock may be cumulative or noncumulative, as provided in the applicable prospectus
supplement. Dividends, if cumulative, will be cumulative from and after the date set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. If our board
of directors fails to authorize a dividend payable on a dividend payment date on any series or class of preferred stock for which dividends are
noncumulative, then the holders of such series or class of preferred stock will have no right to receive a dividend in respect of the dividend
period ending on that dividend payment date, and we will have no obligation to pay the dividend accrued for such period, whether or not
dividends on such series or class are declared or paid for any future period.
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        If any shares of preferred stock of any series or class are outstanding, no full dividends shall be declared or paid or set apart for payment on
the preferred stock of any other series or class ranking, as to dividends, on a parity with or junior to the preferred stock of that series or class for
any period unless:

�
if the series or class of preferred stock has a cumulative dividend, full cumulative dividends have been or
contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof is set apart for such
payment on the preferred stock of such series or class for all past dividend periods and the then current dividend period; or

�
if the series or class of preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend, full dividends for the then current dividend
period have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or authorized and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof is
set apart for the payment on the preferred stock of such series or class.

        When dividends are not paid in full (or a sum sufficient for the full payment is not set apart) upon the shares of preferred stock of any series
or class and the shares of any other series or class of preferred stock ranking on a parity as to dividends with the preferred stock of that series or
class, then all dividends declared on shares of preferred stock of that series or class and any other series or class of preferred stock ranking on a
parity as to dividends with that preferred stock shall be declared pro rata so that the amount of dividends declared per share on the preferred
stock of that series or class and such other series or class of preferred stock shall in all cases bear to each other the same ratio that accrued and
unpaid dividends per share on the shares of preferred stock of such series or class (which shall not include any accumulation in respect of unpaid
dividends for prior dividend periods if such preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend) and such other series or class of preferred
stock (which, in the case of such other series or class of preferred stock, shall not include any accumulation in respect of unpaid dividends for
prior dividend periods if such other series or class of preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend) bear to each other. No interest, or sum
of money in lieu of interest, shall be payable in respect of any dividend payment or payments on preferred stock of such series or class that may
be in arrears.

        Except as provided in the immediately preceding paragraph, unless: if that series or class of preferred stock has a cumulative dividend, full
cumulative dividends on the preferred stock of such series or class have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum
sufficient for the payment thereof is set apart for payment for all past dividend periods and the then current dividend period; or if that series or
class of preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend, full dividends on the preferred stock of such series or class have been or
contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof is set apart for payment for the then current
dividend period, then no dividends (other than in the common stock or other stock of ours ranking junior to the preferred stock of that series or
class as to dividends and as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us) shall be declared or paid or set aside
for payment nor shall any other distribution be declared or made on the common stock or any other class or series of stock of ours ranking junior
to or on a parity with the preferred stock of that series or class as to dividends or as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of us, nor shall any shares of the common stock or any other stock of ours ranking junior to or on a parity with the preferred stock of
that series or class as to dividends or as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us be redeemed, purchased or
otherwise acquired for any consideration (or any amounts be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any shares of any
such stock) by us (except by conversion into or exchange for other stock of ours ranking junior to the preferred stock of that series or class as to
dividends and as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us); provided, however, that the foregoing shall not
prevent the purchase or acquisition of shares of our stock to preserve our status as a REIT for federal and/or state income tax purposes.
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        Any dividend payment made on shares of a series or class of preferred stock shall first be credited against the earliest accrued but unpaid
dividend due with respect to shares of that series or class that remains payable.

Redemption

        If the applicable prospectus supplement so states, the shares of preferred stock will be subject to mandatory redemption or redemption at
our option, as a whole or in part, in each case on the terms, at the times and at the redemption prices set forth in that prospectus supplement.

        The prospectus supplement relating to a series or class of preferred stock that is subject to mandatory redemption will specify the number of
shares of that preferred stock that shall be redeemed by us in each year commencing after a date to be specified, at a redemption price per share
to be specified, together with an amount equal to all accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon (which shall not, if such preferred stock does not
have a cumulative dividend, include any accumulation in respect of unpaid dividends for prior dividend periods) to the date of redemption. The
redemption price may be payable in cash or other property, as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. If the redemption price for
preferred stock of any series or class is payable only from the net proceeds of the issuance of our stock, the terms of that preferred stock may
provide that, if no such stock shall have been issued or to the extent the net proceeds from any issuance are insufficient to pay in full the
aggregate redemption price then due, that preferred stock shall automatically and mandatorily be converted into shares of our applicable stock
pursuant to conversion provisions specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

        Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless:

�
if the series or class of preferred stock has a cumulative dividend, full cumulative dividends on all outstanding shares of such
series or class of preferred stock have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for
the payment thereof is set apart for payment for all past dividend periods and the then current dividend period; and

�
if the series or class of preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend, full dividends on the preferred stock of that
series or class have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment
thereof is set apart for payment for the then current dividend period,

then no shares of that series or class of preferred stock shall be redeemed unless all outstanding shares of preferred stock of that series or class
are simultaneously redeemed; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not prevent the purchase or acquisition of shares of preferred stock of
that series or class to preserve our REIT status or pursuant to a purchase or exchange offer made on the same terms to holders of all outstanding
shares of preferred stock of that series or class. In addition:

�
if the series or class of preferred stock has a cumulative dividend, full cumulative dividends on all outstanding shares of that
series or class of preferred stock have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for
the payment thereof is set apart for payment for all past dividend periods and the then current dividend period; and

�
if that series or class of preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend, full dividends on the preferred stock of that
series or class have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment
thereof is set apart for payment for the then current dividend period,

we shall not purchase or otherwise acquire directly or indirectly any shares of preferred stock of such series or class (except by conversion into
or exchange for stock of ours ranking junior to the preferred stock of that series or class as to dividends and upon liquidation, dissolution and
winding up of us);
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provided, however, that the foregoing shall not prevent the purchase or acquisition of shares of preferred stock of such series or class to preserve
our REIT status or pursuant to a purchase or exchange offer made on the same terms to holders of all outstanding shares of preferred stock of
that series or class.

        If fewer than all the outstanding shares of preferred stock of any series or class are to be redeemed, the number of shares to be redeemed
will be determined by us and those shares to be redeemed shall be selected pro rata (as nearly as may be practicable without creating fractional
shares) or by any other equitable method determined by us, but that will not result in the automatic transfer of any shares of preferred stock of
such series or class to a trust in order to avoid adversely affecting our REIT status.

        Notice of redemption will be mailed at least 30, but not more than 60, days before the redemption date to each holder of record of a share of
preferred stock of any series or class to be redeemed at the address shown on our stock transfer books. Each notice shall state:

�
The redemption date;

�
The number of shares and series or class of the preferred stock to be redeemed;

�
The redemption price;

�
The place or places (which shall include a place in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York) where certificates for
the preferred stock are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price;

�
That dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accumulate on the redemption date; and

�
The date on which the holder's conversion rights, if any, as to those shares shall terminate.

        If fewer than all the shares of preferred stock of any series or class are to be redeemed, the notice mailed to each holder thereof shall also
specify the number of shares of preferred stock to be redeemed from such holder and, upon redemption, a new certificate shall be issued
representing the unredeemed shares without cost to the holder thereof. If notice of redemption of any shares of preferred stock has been given
and if the funds necessary for the redemption have been irrevocably set aside by us in trust for the benefit of the holders of the shares of
preferred stock so called for redemption, then from and after the redemption date dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of preferred
stock, such shares of preferred stock shall no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the
right to receive the redemption price plus accrued and unpaid dividends, if any.

        Notwithstanding the foregoing and except as otherwise may be required by law, the persons who were holders of record of shares of any
class or series of preferred stock at the close of business on a record date for the payment of dividends will be entitled to receive the dividend
payable on the corresponding dividend payment date notwithstanding the redemption of those shares after the record date and on or prior to the
dividend payment date or our default in the payment of the dividend due on that dividend payment date. In that case, the amount payable on the
redemption of those shares of preferred stock will not include that dividend. Except as provided in the preceding sentence and except to the
extent that accrued and unpaid dividends are payable as part of the redemption price, we will make no payment or allowance for unpaid
dividends, whether or not in arrears, on shares of preferred stock called for redemption.

        Subject to applicable law and the limitation on purchases when dividends on a series or class of preferred stock are in arrears, we may, at
any time and from time to time, purchase any shares of such series or class of preferred stock in the open market, by tender or by private
agreement.
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Liquidation Preference

        Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us, the holders of each series or class of our preferred stock
shall be entitled to receive, out of our assets legally available for distribution to our shareholders, a liquidating distribution in the amount of the
liquidation preference per share (set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement) applicable to that class or series, plus an amount equal to any
accrued and unpaid dividends to the date of payment (which shall not include any accumulation in respect of unpaid dividends for prior dividend
periods if the preferred stock of such class or series does not have a cumulative dividend), before any distribution or payment will be made to the
holders of common stock or any other series or class of stock ranking junior to that series or class of preferred stock in the distribution of assets
upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us, but subject to the preferential rights of the holders of shares of any class or series of our
stock ranking senior to such series or class of preferred stock with respect to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding
up. After payment of the full amount of the liquidating distributions to which they are entitled, the holders of that series or class of preferred
stock, as such, will have no right or claim to any of our remaining assets. If, upon any such voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, the assets legally available therefor are insufficient to pay the full amount of the liquidating distributions payable on all outstanding
shares of any series or class of preferred stock and the full amount of the liquidating distributions payable on all shares of any other classes or
series of our stock ranking on a parity with that series or class of preferred stock in the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, then the holders of that series or class of preferred stock and all other such classes or series of capital stock shall share ratably in any
such distribution of assets in proportion to the full liquidating distributions to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled.

        If liquidating distributions shall have been made in full to all holders of any series or class of preferred stock, our remaining assets will be
distributed among the holders of any other classes or series of stock ranking junior to that series or class of preferred stock upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, according to their respective rights and preferences and in each case according to their respective number of shares.
For those purposes, neither the consolidation or merger of us with or into any other entity, nor the sale, lease, transfer or conveyance of all or
substantially all of our property or business, shall be deemed to constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us.

Voting Rights

        Except as may be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, whenever dividends on any shares of preferred stock of any series or
class shall be in arrears for six or more quarterly dividend periods, whether or not consecutive, the number of directors constituting our Board of
Directors will be automatically increased by two (if not already increased by two by reason of the election of directors by the holders of any
other class or series of preferred stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable and with which the preferred stock
of such class or series is entitled to vote as a class with respect to the election of such two directors) and the holders of such series or class of
preferred stock (voting separately as a class with all other classes or series of preferred stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred
and are exercisable and which are entitled to vote as a class with such class or series of preferred stock in the election of such two directors) will
be entitled to vote for the election of such two additional directors to our Board of Directors at a special meeting called by Realty Income at the
request of the holders of record of at least 10% of the outstanding shares of such class or series of preferred stock or by the holders of any other
class or series of preferred stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable and which are entitled to vote as a class
with such class or series of preferred stock in the election of such two directors (unless the request is received less than 90 days before the date
fixed for the next annual or special meeting of stockholders, in which case the vote will be held at the earlier of the next annual or special
meeting of stockholders), and at each subsequent annual meeting until all dividends
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accumulated on shares of preferred stock of that class or series for all past dividend periods and the then current dividend period shall have been
fully paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside for payment. In that case, the right of the preferred stock of that
class or series to elect those two directors will cease and (unless there are one or more other classes or series of preferred stock upon which like
voting rights have been conferred and remain exercisable) the term of office of the two directors will automatically terminate and the number of
directors constituting the Board of Directors will be reduced accordingly.

        If a special meeting is not called by us within 30 days after a request from the holders of preferred stock as described above, then the
holders of record of at least 10% of the outstanding shares of any class or series of preferred stock upon which such voting rights have been
conferred and are exercisable may designate a holder to call the meeting at our expense.

        So long as any shares of any class or series of preferred stock remain outstanding, we shall not, without the consent or the affirmative vote
of the holders of at least two-thirds of the shares of such class or series of preferred stock outstanding at the time, given in person or by proxy,
either in writing or at a meeting (with such series or class of preferred stock voting separately as a class):

�
Authorize, create or issue, or increase the authorized or issued amount of, any class or series of stock ranking senior to that
series or class of preferred stock with respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets on liquidation, dissolution
or winding up, or reclassify any of our authorized stock into any such shares, or create, authorize or issue any obligation or
security convertible into, exchangeable or exercisable for, or evidencing the right to purchase, any such shares;

�
Amend, alter or repeal any of the provisions of our charter, including the articles supplementary for such series or class of
preferred stock, so as to materially and adversely affect any right, preference, privilege or voting power of such series or
class of preferred stock or the holders thereof; or

�
Enter into any share exchange that affects such series or class of preferred stock or consolidate with or merge into any other
entity, or permit any other entity to consolidate with or merge into us, unless in each such case described in this bullet point
each share of such series or class of preferred stock remains outstanding without a material adverse change to its terms and
rights or is converted into or exchanged for preferred stock of the surviving or resulting entity having preferences, rights,
dividends, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends, qualifications and terms and conditions of redemption
identical to those of such series or class of preferred stock;

provided that any amendment to our charter to authorize any increase in the amount of the authorized preferred stock or common stock or the
creation or issuance of any other class or series of preferred stock or any increase in the amount of authorized or outstanding shares of such
series or class or any other series or class of preferred stock, in each case ranking on a parity with or junior to the preferred stock of such series
or class with respect to payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution and winding up, shall not be deemed to
materially and adversely affect any right, preference, privilege or voting power of that series or class of preferred stock or the holders thereof.

        The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which the vote would otherwise be
required shall be effected, all outstanding shares of such series or class of preferred stock shall have been redeemed or called for redemption
upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been irrevocably deposited in trust to effect the redemption.
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Conversion Rights

        The terms and conditions, if any, upon which shares of any series or class of preferred stock are convertible into shares of common stock
will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. The terms will include the number of shares of common stock into which the preferred
stock is convertible, the conversion price (or manner of calculation thereof), the conversion period, provisions as to whether conversion will be
at the option of the holders of the preferred stock or us, the events requiring an adjustment of the conversion price and provisions affecting
conversion in the event of the redemption of the preferred stock.

Restrictions on Ownership

        For us to qualify as a REIT under the Code, not more than 50% in value of our outstanding capital stock may be owned, actually or
constructively, by five or fewer individuals (defined in the Code to include certain entities) during the last half of a taxable year. To assist us in
meeting this requirement and certain other requirements relating to our tax status as a REIT, the articles supplementary establishing any class or
series of preferred stock will contain provisions, which will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement, intended to limit the actual,
beneficial or constructive ownership by a single person or entity of our outstanding equity securities.

Transfer Agent

        The transfer agent and registrar for any series or class of preferred stock will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

RESTRICTIONS ON OWNERSHIP AND TRANSFERS OF STOCK

Internal Revenue Code Requirements

        To maintain our REIT status under the Code, no more than 50% in value of our outstanding shares of stock may be owned, actually or
constructively, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities) during the last half of a taxable year. In addition, if
we, or an owner of 10% or more of us, actually or constructively owns 10% or more of a tenant of ours (or a tenant of any partnership in which
we are a partner), the rent received by us (either directly or through any such partnership) from that tenant will not be qualifying income for
purposes of the REIT gross income tests of the Code. A REIT's stock must also be beneficially owned by 100 or more persons during at least
335 days of a taxable year of twelve months or during a proportionate part of a shorter taxable year.

Transfer Restrictions in Charter

        Because we expect to continue to qualify as a REIT, our charter contains restrictions on the ownership and transfer of common stock which
are intended to assist us in complying with applicable Code requirements. Our charter provides that, subject to certain specified exceptions, no
person or entity may own, or be deemed to own by virtue of the applicable constructive ownership provisions of the Code, more than 9.8% (by
number or value, whichever is more restrictive) of the outstanding shares of common stock, appropriately referred to as the ownership limit. The
constructive ownership rules of the Code are complex, and may cause shares of common stock owned actually or constructively by a group of
related individuals and/or entities to be constructively owned by one individual or entity. As a result, the acquisition of less than 9.8% of the
shares of common stock (or the acquisition of an interest in an entity that owns, actually or constructively, common stock) by an individual or
entity, could nevertheless cause that individual or entity, or another individual or entity, to constructively own more than 9.8% of our
outstanding common stock and thus violate the ownership limit, or any other limit as provided in our charter or as otherwise permitted by our
board of directors. Our board of
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directors may, but in no event is required to, exempt from the ownership limit a particular stockholder if it determines that such ownership will
not jeopardize our status as a REIT. As a condition of such exemption, the board of directors may require a ruling from the Internal Revenue
Service or an opinion of counsel satisfactory to it and/or undertakings or representations from the applicant with respect to preserving the our
REIT status.

        Our charter further prohibits (1) any person from actually or constructively owning shares of our stock that would result in our being
"closely held" under Section 856(h) of the Code or otherwise cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT, and (2) any person from transferring shares of
our stock if such transfer would result in shares of our stock being beneficially owned by fewer than 100 persons (determined without reference
to any rules of attribution).

        Any person who acquires or attempts to acquire actual or constructive ownership of shares of our stock that would violate any of the
foregoing restrictions on transferability and ownership is required to give notice to us immediately and provide us with such other information as
we may request in order to determine the effect of such transfer on our status as a REIT. The foregoing restrictions on transferability and
ownership will not apply if our Board of Directors determines that it is no longer in our best interest to attempt to qualify, or to continue to
qualify, as a REIT and such determination is approved by the holders of two-thirds of all shares entitled to vote on the matter, as required by our
charter. Except as otherwise described above, any change in the ownership limit would require an amendment to the charter.

        Our outstanding preferred stock is subject to transfer restrictions similar to those described in this section, and we anticipate that any class
or series of preferred stock that we issue in the future will also be subject to similar restrictions.

Effect of Violation of Transfer Provisions

        According to our charter, if any purported transfer of common stock or any other event would otherwise result in any person violating the
ownership limit or such other limit as provided in the charter or as otherwise permitted by our board of directors, or result in our being "closely
held" under Section 856(h) of the Code or otherwise cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT, then the number of shares that would otherwise cause
such violation or result will be transferred automatically to a trust, the beneficiary of which will be a qualified charitable organization selected
by us. Such automatic transfer shall be deemed to be effective as of the close of business on the business day prior to the date of such violative
transfer.

        Within 20 days of receiving notice from us of the transfer of shares to the trust, the trustee of the trust (who shall be designated by us and be
unaffiliated with us and any prohibited transferee or prohibited owner) will be required to sell such shares to a person or entity who could own
the shares without violating the ownership limit, or any other limit as provided in our charter or as otherwise permitted by our board of directors,
and distribute to the prohibited transferee or prohibited owner, as applicable, an amount equal to the lesser of the price paid by the prohibited
transferee or prohibited owner for such shares or the net sales proceeds received by the trust for such shares. In the case of any event other than a
transfer, or in the case of a transfer for no consideration (such as a gift), the trustee will be required to sell such shares to a qualified person or
entity and distribute to the prohibited owner an amount equal to the lesser of the market price (described in our charter) of such shares as of the
date of the event resulting in the transfer or the net sales proceeds received by the trust for such shares. In either case, any proceeds in excess of
the amount distributable to the prohibited transferee or prohibited owner, as applicable, will be distributed to the beneficiary. Prior to a sale of
any such shares by the trust, the trustee will be entitled to receive, in trust for the beneficiary, all dividends and other distributions paid by us
with respect to such excess shares, and also will be entitled to exercise all voting rights with respect to such shares.
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        Subject to Maryland law, effective as of the date that such shares have been transferred to the trust, the trustee shall have the authority (at
the trustee's sole discretion) (1) to rescind as void any vote cast by a prohibited transferee or prohibited owner, as applicable, prior to the
discovery by us that such shares have been transferred to the trust and (2) to recast such vote in accordance with the desires of the trustee acting
for the benefit of the beneficiary. However, if we have already taken irreversible corporate action, then the trustee shall not have the authority to
rescind and recast that vote. Any dividend or other distribution paid to the prohibited transferee or prohibited owner (prior to the discovery by us
that such shares had been automatically transferred to a trust as described above) will be required to be repaid to the trustee upon demand for
distribution to the beneficiary. In the event that the transfer to the trust as described above is not automatically effective (for any reason) to
prevent violation of the ownership limit or any other limit as provided in our charter or as otherwise permitted by our board of directors, then our
charter provides that the transfer of the excess shares will be void.

        In addition, shares of our stock held in the trust shall be deemed to have been offered for sale to us, or our designee, at a price per share
equal to the lesser of (1) the price per share in the transaction that resulted in such transfer to the trust (or, in the case of a devise or gift, the
market price at the time of such devise or gift) and (2) the market price on the date we or our designee, accepts such offer. We shall have the
right to accept such offer until the trustee has sold the shares of stock held in the trust. Upon such a sale to us, the interest of the beneficiary in
the shares sold shall terminate and the trustee shall distribute the net proceeds of the sale to the prohibited transferee or prohibited owner.

        If any purported transfer of shares of common stock would cause us to be beneficially owned by fewer than 100 persons, such transfer will
be null and void in its entirety and the intended transferee will acquire no rights to the stock.

        All certificates representing shares of our common stock will bear a legend referring to the restrictions described above. The foregoing
ownership limitations could delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change in control of Realty Income that might involve a premium price for
the common stock or otherwise be in the best interest of stockholders.

        As set forth in the Treasury Regulations, every owner of a specified percentage (or more) of the outstanding shares of our stock (including
both common stock and preferred stock) must file a completed questionnaire with us containing information regarding their ownership of such
shares. Under current Treasury Regulations, the percentage will be set between 0.5% and 5.0%, depending upon the number of record holders of
our shares of stock. Under our charter, each stockholder shall upon demand be required to disclose to us in writing such information as we may
request in order to determine the effect, if any, of such stockholder's actual and constructive ownership of stock on our status as a REIT and to
ensure compliance with the ownership limit, or any other limit as provided in our charter or as otherwise permitted by our board of directors.
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UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS
RELATED TO OUR REIT ELECTION

        The following is a summary of the federal income tax considerations related to our REIT election which are anticipated to be material to
purchasers of the securities offered by this prospectus. Your tax treatment will vary depending upon the terms of the specific securities that you
acquire, as well as your particular situation. This discussion does not attempt to address any aspects of federal income taxation relevant to your
ownership of the securities offered by this prospectus. Instead, the material federal income tax considerations relevant to your ownership of the
securities offered by this prospectus will be provided in the applicable prospectus supplement that relates to those securities.

        The information in this section is based on:

�
the Internal Revenue Code;

�
current, temporary and proposed Treasury Regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code;

�
the legislative history of the Internal Revenue Code;

�
current administrative interpretations and practices of the Internal Revenue Service; and

�
court decisions

in each case, as of the date of this prospectus. In addition, the administrative interpretations and practices of the Internal Revenue Service
include its practices and policies as expressed in private letter rulings which are not binding on the Internal Revenue Service, except with respect
to the particular taxpayers who requested and received these rulings. Future legislation, Treasury Regulations, administrative interpretations and
practices and/or court decisions may adversely affect the tax considerations contained in this discussion. Any change could apply retroactively to
transactions preceding the date of the change. We have not requested, and do not plan to request, any rulings from the Internal Revenue Service
concerning our tax treatment, and the statements in this prospectus are not binding on the Internal Revenue Service or any court. Thus, we can
provide no assurance that the tax considerations contained in this discussion will not be challenged by the Internal Revenue Service or if
challenged, will be sustained by a court.

You are urged to consult the applicable prospectus supplement, as well as your tax advisors, regarding the tax consequences to you
of:

�
the acquisition, ownership and sale or other disposition of the securities offered under this prospectus, including the
federal, state, local, foreign and other tax consequences;

�
our election to be taxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposes; and

�
potential changes in the tax laws.

Taxation of the Company

        General.    We elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code, commencing with our taxable
year ended December 31, 1994. We believe we have been organized and have operated in a manner which allows us to qualify for taxation as a
REIT under the Internal Revenue Code commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 1994. We currently intend to continue to operate
in this manner. However, qualification and taxation as a REIT depend upon our ability to meet the various qualification tests imposed under the
Internal Revenue Code, including through actual annual operating results, asset diversification, distribution levels and diversity of stock
ownership. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that we have operated or will continue to
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operate in a manner so as to qualify or remain qualified as a REIT. See the section below entitled "�Failure to Qualify."

        The sections of the Internal Revenue Code and corresponding Treasury Regulations that relate to the qualification and operation of a REIT
are highly technical and complex. The following sets forth the material aspects of the sections of the Internal Revenue Code that govern the
federal income tax treatment of a REIT. This summary is qualified in its entirety by the applicable Internal Revenue Code provisions, relevant
rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder, and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof.

        Latham & Watkins LLP has acted as our tax counsel in connection with the filing of this prospectus. Latham & Watkins LLP has rendered
an opinion to us dated March 11, 2004 to the effect that, commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 1994, (i) we have been
organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, and
(ii) our proposed method of operation will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the
Internal Revenue Code. It must be emphasized that this opinion was based on various assumptions and representations as to factual matters,
including representations made by us in a certificate provided by one of our officers. In addition, this opinion was based upon our factual
representations set forth in this prospectus. Moreover, our qualification and taxation as a REIT depends upon our ability to meet, through actual
annual operating results, asset diversification, distribution levels and diversity of stock ownership, the various qualification tests imposed under
the Internal Revenue Code discussed below, the results of which have not been and will not be reviewed by our tax counsel. Accordingly, no
assurance can be given that our actual results of operation for any particular taxable year have satisfied or will satisfy those requirements. Our
tax counsel has no obligation to update its opinion subsequent to its date. Further, the anticipated income tax treatment described in this
prospectus may be changed, perhaps retroactively, by legislative, administrative or judicial action at any time. See "�Failure to Qualify".

        Provided we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally will not be required to pay federal corporate income taxes on our net income that
is currently distributed to our stockholders. We will be required to pay federal income tax, however, as follows:

�
First, we will be required to pay tax at regular corporate tax rates on any undistributed REIT taxable income, including
undistributed net capital gains.

�
Second, we may be required to pay the "alternative minimum tax" on our items of tax preference under certain
circumstances.

�
Third, if we have: (a) net income from the sale or other disposition of "foreclosure property" which is held primarily for sale
to customers in the ordinary course of business; or (b) other nonqualifying income from foreclosure property, we will be
required to pay tax at the highest corporate rate on this income. Foreclosure property is generally defined as property we
acquired through foreclosure or after a default on a loan secured by the property or a lease of the property.

�
Fourth, we will be required to pay a 100% tax on any net income from prohibited transactions. Prohibited transactions are, in
general, sales or other taxable dispositions of property, other than foreclosure property, held as inventory or primarily for
sale to customers in the ordinary course of business.

�
Fifth, if we fail to satisfy the 75% gross income test or the 95% gross income test discussed below, but have maintained our
qualification as a REIT because certain other requirements are met, we will be required to pay a tax equal to (a) the greater
of (i) the amount by which 75% of our gross income exceeds the amount qualifying under the 75% gross income test
described below and (ii) the amount by which 90% of our gross income exceeds the amount qualifying
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under the 95% gross income test described below, multiplied by (b) a fraction intended to reflect our profitability.

�
Sixth, we will be required to pay a 4% excise tax to the extent we fail to distribute during each calendar year at least the sum
of (a) 85% of our REIT ordinary income for the year, (b) 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for the year, and (c) any
undistributed taxable income from prior periods.

�
Seventh, if we acquire any asset from a corporation which is or has been a C corporation in a transaction in which the basis
of the asset in our hands is determined by reference to the basis of the asset in the hands of the C corporation, and we
subsequently recognize gain on the disposition of the asset during the ten-year period beginning on the date on which we
acquired the asset, then we will be required to pay tax at the highest regular corporate tax rate on this gain to the extent of the
excess of (a) the fair market value of the asset over (b) our adjusted basis in the asset, in each case determined as of the date
on which we acquired the asset. The results described in this paragraph with respect to the recognition of gain assume that
the C corporation will refrain from making an election to receive different treatment under existing Treasury Regulations on
its tax return for the year in which we acquire an asset from the C corporation.

�
Eighth, we will be subject to a 100% tax on any "redetermined rents," "redetermined deductions" or "excess interest." In
general, redetermined rents are rents from real property that are overstated as a result of services furnished to any of our
tenants by a "taxable REIT subsidiary" of ours. Redetermined deductions and excess interest generally represent amounts
that are deducted by a taxable REIT subsidiary of ours for amounts paid to us that are in excess of the amounts that would
have been deducted based on arm's length negotiations. See "Penalty Tax" below.

        Requirements for qualification as a REIT.    The Internal Revenue Code defines a REIT as a corporation, trust or association:

        (1)   that is managed by one or more trustees or directors;

        (2)   that issues transferable shares or transferable certificates to evidence its beneficial ownership;

        (3)   that would be taxable as a domestic corporation but for Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code;

        (4)   that is not a financial institution or an insurance company within the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code;

        (5)   that is beneficially owned by 100 or more persons;

        (6)   not more than 50% in value of the outstanding stock of which is owned, actually or constructively, by five or fewer
individuals, as defined in the Internal Revenue Code to include certain entities, during the last half of each taxable year; and

        (7)   that meets other tests, described below, regarding the nature of its income and assets and the amount of its distributions.

        The Internal Revenue Code provides that all of conditions (1) to (4) must be met during the entire taxable year and that condition (5) must
be met during at least 335 days of a taxable year of twelve months, or during a proportionate part of a taxable year of less than twelve months.
Conditions (5) and (6) do not apply until after the first taxable year for which an election is made to be taxed as a REIT. For purposes of
condition (6), pension funds and other specified tax-exempt entities generally are treated as individuals, except that a "look-through" exception
applies with respect to pension funds.
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        We believe that we have satisfied conditions (1) through (7), inclusive, during the relevant time periods. In addition, our charter provides
for restrictions regarding ownership and transfer of shares. These restrictions are intended to assist us in continuing to satisfy the share
ownership requirements described in conditions (5) and (6) above. These stock ownership and transfer restrictions are described in "Restrictions
on Ownership and Transfers of Stock" in this Prospectus. These restrictions, however, may not ensure that we will, in all cases, be able to satisfy
the share ownership requirements described in conditions (5) and (6) above. If we fail to satisfy these share ownership requirements, except as
provided in the next sentence, our status as a REIT will terminate. If, however, we comply with the rules contained in the applicable Treasury
Regulations that require us to ascertain the actual ownership of our shares, and we do not know, or would not have known through the exercise
of reasonable diligence, that we failed to meet the requirement described in condition (6) above, we will be treated as having met this
requirement. See "�Failure to Qualify."

        In addition, we may not maintain our status as a REIT unless our taxable year is the calendar year. We have and will continue to have a
calendar taxable year.

        Ownership of a partnership interest.    We may from time to time own and operate one or more properties through partnerships and limited
liability companies. Treasury Regulations provide that if we are a partner in a partnership, then for purposes of applying the assets and income
tests, described below, we will be deemed to own our proportionate share of the assets of the partnership and we will be deemed to be entitled to
our proportionate share of the income of the partnership, based on our interest in partnership capital. The character of the assets and gross
income of the partnership retains the same character in our hands for these purposes. In addition, the assets and items of income of any
partnership in which we own a direct or indirect interest include such partnership's share of assets and items of income of any partnership in
which it owns an interest. We have included a brief summary of the rules governing the federal income taxation of partnerships and their
partners below in "�Tax Aspects of the Partnerships." The treatment described above also applies with respect to the ownership of interests in
limited liability companies or other entities that are treated as partnerships for tax purposes.

        We have direct or indirect control of certain partnerships and limited liability companies and intend to continue to operate them in a manner
consistent with the requirements for qualification as a REIT. From time to time we may be a limited partner or non-managing member in certain
partnerships and limited liability companies. If a partnership or limited liability company in which we own an interest takes or expects to take
actions which could jeopardize our status as a REIT or require us to pay tax, we may be forced to dispose of our interest in that entity. In
addition, it is possible that a partnership or limited liability company could take an action which could cause us to fail a REIT income or asset
test, and that we would not become aware of such action in time to dispose of our interest in the applicable entity or take other corrective action
on a timely basis. In such a case, we could fail to qualify as a REIT.

        Ownership of Interests in Qualified REIT Subsidiaries.    We currently own and may from time to time own and operate certain properties
through wholly-owned subsidiaries that we intend to be treated as "qualified REIT subsidiaries" under the Internal Revenue Code. A corporation
will qualify as our qualified REIT subsidiary if we own 100% of its outstanding stock and if we do not elect with the subsidiary to treat it as a
"taxable REIT subsidiary," described below. A corporation that is a qualified REIT subsidiary is not treated as a separate corporation, and all
assets, liabilities and items of income, deduction and credit of a qualified REIT subsidiary are treated as assets, liabilities and items of income,
deduction and credit (as the case may be) of the parent REIT for all purposes under the Internal Revenue Code (including all REIT qualification
tests). Thus, in applying the requirements described in this prospectus, our qualified REIT subsidiaries are ignored, and all assets, liabilities and
items of income, deduction and credit of such subsidiaries are treated as our assets, liabilities and items of income, deduction and credit. A
qualified REIT subsidiary is not required to pay federal income tax,
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and our ownership of the stock of a qualified REIT subsidiary does not violate the restrictions on ownership of securities of any one issuer that
constitute more than 10% of the voting power or value of such issuer's securities or more than 5% of the value of our total assets, as described
below under "�Asset Tests."

        Ownership of Interests in Taxable REIT Subsidiaries.    A taxable REIT subsidiary of ours is a corporation other than a REIT in which we
directly or indirectly hold stock and that has made a joint election with us to be treated as a taxable REIT subsidiary. A taxable REIT subsidiary
also includes any corporation other than a REIT with respect to which a taxable REIT subsidiary owns, directly or indirectly, securities
possessing more than 35% of the total voting power or value of the outstanding securities of such corporation. A taxable REIT subsidiary may
generally engage in any business, including the provision of customary or noncustomary services to tenants of its parent REIT, except that a
taxable REIT subsidiary may not directly or indirectly operate or manage a lodging or health care facility or directly or indirectly provide to any
other person (under a franchise, license or otherwise) rights to any brand name under which any lodging or health care facility is operated. A
taxable REIT subsidiary is required to pay federal income tax, and state and local income tax where applicable, as a regular C corporation. In
addition, a taxable REIT subsidiary of ours may be prevented from deducting interest on debt that we directly or indirectly fund if certain tests
regarding the taxable REIT subsidiary's debt-to-equity ratio and interest expense are not satisfied. We may from time to time own interests in
taxable REIT subsidiaries. Our ownership of securities of our taxable REIT subsidiaries will not be subject to the 10% asset test described
below, and their operations will be subject to the provisions described above concerning taxable REIT subsidiaries. See "�Asset Tests."

        Income Tests.    We must satisfy two gross income requirements annually to maintain our status as a REIT:

�
First, in each taxable year, we must derive directly or indirectly at least 75% of our gross income, excluding gross income
from prohibited transactions, from (a) certain investments relating to real property or mortgages on real property, including
"rents from real property" and, in some circumstances, interest, or (b) some types of temporary investments; and

�
Second, in each taxable year, we must derive at least 95% of our gross income, excluding gross income from prohibited
transactions, from (a) the real property investments described above, and (b) dividends, interest and gain from the sale or
disposition of stock or securities.

        For these purposes, the term "interest" generally does not include any amount received or accrued, directly or indirectly, if the
determination of all or some of the amount depends in any way on the income or profits of any person. An amount received or accrued generally
will not be excluded from the term "interest," however, solely by reason of being based on a fixed percentage or percentages of receipts or sales.

        Rents we receive from a tenant will qualify as "rents from real property" for the purpose of satisfying the gross income requirements for a
REIT described above only if the following conditions are met:

�
The amount of rent must not be based in whole or in part on the income or profits of any person. However, an amount we
receive or accrue generally will not be excluded from the term "rents from real property" solely by reason of being based on
a fixed percentage or percentages of receipts or sales;

�
We, or an actual or constructive owner of 10% or more of our stock, must not actually or constructively own 10% or more of
the interests in the assets or net profits of the tenant, or, if the tenant is a corporation, 10% or more of the total combined
voting power of all classes of stock entitled to vote or 10% or more of the total value of all classes of stock of the tenant.
Rents we receive from a taxable REIT subsidiary of ours, however, will not be excluded from
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the definition of "rents from real property" if at least 90% of the space at the property to which the rents relate is leased to
third parties, and the rents paid by the taxable REIT subsidiary are comparable to rents paid by our other tenants for
comparable space;

�
Rent attributable to personal property leased in connection with a lease of real property must not be greater than 15% of the
total rent we receive under the lease. If this requirement is not met, then the portion of the rent attributable to personal
property will not qualify as "rents from real property;" and

�
We generally must not operate or manage our property or furnish or render services to the tenants of the property, subject to
a 1% de minimis exception, other than through an independent contractor from whom we derive no revenue. We may,
however, directly perform certain services that are "usually or customarily rendered" in connection with the rental of space
for occupancy only and are not otherwise considered "rendered to the occupant" of the property. Examples of such services
include the provision of light, heat, or other utilities, trash removal and general maintenance of common areas. In addition,
we may employ a taxable REIT subsidiary, which may be wholly or partially owned by us, to provide both customary and
non-customary services to our tenants without causing the rent we receive from those tenants to fail to qualify as "rents from
real property." Any amounts we receive from a taxable REIT subsidiary with respect to its provision of non-customary
services will, however, be nonqualifying income under the 75% gross income test and, except to the extent received through
the payment of dividends, the 95% gross income test.

        We generally do not intend to receive rent which fails to satisfy any of the above conditions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may have
taken and may in the future take actions which fail to satisfy one or more of the above conditions to the extent that we determine, based on the
advice of our tax counsel, that those actions will not jeopardize our tax status as a REIT.

        We believe that the aggregate amount of our nonqualifying income, from all sources, in any taxable year will not exceed the limit on
nonqualifying income under the gross income tests. If we fail to satisfy one or both of the 75% or 95% gross income tests for any taxable year,
we may nevertheless qualify as a REIT for the year if we are entitled to relief under certain provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Generally,
we may avail ourselves of the relief provisions if:

�
our failure to meet these tests was due to reasonable cause and not due to willful neglect;

�
we attach a schedule of the sources of our income to our federal income tax return; and

�
any incorrect information on the schedule was not due to fraud with intent to evade tax.

        It is not possible, however, to state whether in all circumstances we would be entitled to the benefit of these relief provisions. For example,
if we fail to satisfy the gross income tests because nonqualifying income that we intentionally accrue or receive exceeds the limits on
nonqualifying income, the Internal Revenue Service could conclude that our failure to satisfy the tests was not due to reasonable cause. If these
relief provisions do not apply to a particular set of circumstances, we will not qualify as a REIT. As discussed above in "�Taxation of the
Company�General," even if these relief provisions apply, and we retain our status as a REIT, a tax would be imposed with respect to our
nonqualifying income. We may not always be able to comply with the gross income tests for REIT qualification despite our periodic monitoring
of our income.

        Prohibited Transaction Income.    Any gain that we realize on the sale of property held as inventory or other property held primarily for
sale to customers in the ordinary course of business will be treated as income from a prohibited transaction that is subject to a 100% penalty tax.
Our gain would include any gain realized by our qualified REIT subsidiaries and our share of any gain realized by any of the partnerships or
limited liability companies in which we own an interest. This prohibited transaction
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income may also adversely affect our ability to satisfy the income tests for qualification as a REIT. Under existing law, whether property is held
as inventory or primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business is a question of fact that depends on all the facts and
circumstances surrounding the particular transaction. We intend to hold our properties for investment with a view to long-term appreciation and
to engage in the business of acquiring, developing and owning our properties. We have made, and may in the future make, occasional sales of
the properties as are consistent with our investment objectives. We do not intend to enter into any sales that are prohibited transactions. The
Internal Revenue Service may contend, however, that one or more of these sales is subject to the 100% penalty tax.

        Penalty Tax.    Any redetermined rents, redetermined deductions or excess interest we generate will be subject to a 100% penalty tax. In
general, redetermined rents are rents from real property that are overstated as a result of services furnished by one of our taxable REIT
subsidiaries to any of our tenants, and redetermined deductions and excess interest represent amounts that are deducted by a taxable REIT
subsidiary for amounts paid to us that are in excess of the amounts that would have been deducted based on arm's length negotiations. Rents we
receive will not constitute redetermined rents if they qualify for the safe harbor provisions contained in the Internal Revenue Code. Safe harbor
provisions are provided where generally:

�
Amounts are received by a REIT for services customarily furnished or rendered by its taxable REIT subsidiary in connection
with the rental of real property;

�
Amounts are excluded from the definition of impermissible tenant service income as a result of satisfying the 1% de minimis
exception;

�
The taxable REIT subsidiary renders a significant amount of similar services to unrelated parties, and the charges for such
services are substantially comparable;

�
Rents paid to the REIT by tenants who are not receiving services from the taxable REIT subsidiary are substantially
comparable to the rents paid by the REIT's tenants leasing comparable space who are receiving such services from the
taxable REIT subsidiary, and the charge for the services is separately stated; and

�
The taxable REIT subsidiary's gross income from the service is not less than 150% of the subsidiary's direct cost of
furnishing or rendering the service.

        Asset Tests.    At the close of each quarter of our taxable year, we also must satisfy four tests relating to the nature and diversification of our
assets:

�
First, at least 75% of the value of our total assets, including assets held by our qualified REIT subsidiaries and our allocable
share of the assets held by the partnerships and limited liability companies in which we own an interest, must be represented
by real estate assets, cash, cash items and government securities. For purposes of this test, the term "real estate assets"
generally means real property (including interests in real property and interests in mortgages on real property) and shares (or
transferable certificates of beneficial interest) in other REITs, as well as any stock or debt instrument attributable to the
investment of the proceeds of a stock offering or a public debt offering with a term of at least five years, but only for the
one-year period beginning on the date the REIT receives such proceeds;

�
Second, not more than 25% of the value of our total assets may be represented by securities other than those securities
included in the 75% asset test;

�
Third, of the securities included in the 25% asset class and except for investments in other REITs, and our qualified REIT
subsidiaries and taxable REIT subsidiaries, the value of any one issuer's securities may not exceed 5% of the value of our
total assets, and we may not own more than 10% of the total vote or value of any one issuer's outstanding securities; and
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�
Fourth, not more than 20% of the value of our total assets may be represented by the securities of one or more taxable REIT
subsidiaries.

        The 10% value limitation and the 20% asset test are effective for taxable years ending after December 31, 2000.

        As of the date of this prospectus, we own 100% of the outstanding stock of Crest Net Lease, Inc. Crest Net Lease has elected, together with
us, to be treated as a taxable REIT subsidiary. So long as Crest Net Lease qualifies as taxable REIT subsidiary, we will not be subject to the 5%
asset test, 10% voting securities limitation or 10% value limitation with respect to our ownership of its securities. We or Crest Net Lease may
acquire securities in other taxable REIT subsidiaries in the future. We believe that the aggregate value of our taxable REIT subsidiaries has not
and will not exceed 20% of the value of our gross assets. With respect to each issuer in which we own an interest that does not qualify as a
REIT, a qualified REIT subsidiary or a taxable REIT subsidiary, we believe that our ownership of the securities of any such issuer has complied
with the 10% voting securities limitation, the 10% value limitation and the 5% value limitation. No independent appraisals have been obtained to
support these conclusions, and there can be no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service will not disagree with our determinations of value.

        The asset tests must be satisfied not only at the end of the quarter during which we (directly or through our partnerships or limited liability
companies) acquire securities in the applicable issuer, but also each time we increase our ownership of securities of such issuer, including as a
result of increasing our interest in a partnership or limited liability company which owns such securities. For example, our indirect ownership of
securities of an issuer may increase as a result of our capital contributions to a partnership or limited liability company. After initially meeting
the asset tests at the close of any quarter, we will not lose our status as a REIT for failure to satisfy the asset tests at the end of a later quarter
solely by reason of changes in asset values. If we fail to satisfy an asset test because we acquire securities or other property during a quarter
(including as a result of an increase in our interests in a partnership or limited liability company), we can cure this failure by disposing of
sufficient nonqualifying assets within 30 days after the close of that quarter. Although we plan to take steps to ensure that we satisfy the asset
tests for any quarter with respect to which retesting is to occur, there can be no assurance that such steps will always be successful or will not
require a reduction in our overall interest in an issuer (including in a taxable REIT subsidiary). If we fail to timely cure any noncompliance with
the asset tests, we would cease to qualify as a REIT.

        Annual Distribution Requirements.    To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we are required to distribute dividends, other than capital
gain dividends, to our stockholders in an amount at least equal to the sum of:

�
90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001) of our "REIT taxable income"; and

�
90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001) of our after tax net income, if any, from foreclosure property;
minus

�
the excess of the sum of specified items of our non-cash income items over 5% of "REIT taxable income" as described
below.

        Our "REIT taxable income" is computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain. In addition, for purposes
of this test, non-cash income means income attributable to leveled stepped rents, original issue discount on purchase money debt, cancellation of
indebtedness, and any like-kind exchanges that are later determined to be taxable.

        In addition, if we dispose of any asset we acquired from a corporation which is or has been a C corporation in a transaction in which our
basis in the asset is determined by reference to the basis of
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the asset in the hands of that C corporation, within the ten-year period following our acquisition of such asset, we would be required to distribute
at least 90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001) of the after-tax gain, if any, we recognized on the disposition, to the
extent that gain does not exceed the excess of (a) the fair market value of the asset on the date we acquired the asset over (b) our adjusted basis
in the asset on the date we acquired the asset.

        We must pay these distributions in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following taxable year if they are declared before we
timely file our tax return for that year and paid on or before the first regular dividend payment following their declarations. Except as provided
below, these distributions are taxable to our stockholders, other than tax-exempt entities in the year in which paid. This is so even though these
distributions relate to the prior year for purposes of our 90% distribution requirement. The amount distributed must not be preferential. To avoid
being preferential, every stockholder of the class of stock to which a distribution is made must be treated the same as every other stockholder of
that class, and no class of stock may be treated other than according to its dividend rights as a class. To the extent that we do not distribute all of
our net capital gain, or distribute at least 90% (95% for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001), but less than 100%, of our "REIT
taxable income," as adjusted, we will be required to pay tax on the undistributed amount at regular ordinary and capital gain corporate tax rates.
We believe we have made, and intend to continue to make, timely distributions sufficient to satisfy these annual distribution requirements.

        We anticipate that we will generally have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy our distribution requirements. However,
from time to time, we may not have sufficient cash or other liquid assets to meet these distribution requirements because of timing differences
between the actual receipt of income and actual payment of deductible expenses, and the inclusion of income and deduction of expenses in
determining our taxable income. If these timing differences occur, we may need to arrange for short-term, or possibly long-term, borrowings or
need to pay dividends in the form of taxable stock dividends in order to meet the distribution requirements.

        Under certain circumstances, we may be able to rectify an inadvertent failure to meet the 90% distribution requirement for a year by paying
"deficiency dividends" to stockholders in a later year, which we may include in our deduction for dividends paid for the earlier year. Thus, we
may be able to avoid being taxed on amounts distributed as deficiency dividends. However, we will be required to pay interest to the Internal
Revenue Service based upon the amount of any deduction taken for deficiency dividends.

        In addition, we will be required to pay a 4% excise tax to the extent the amount we actually distribute for any calendar year is less than the
sum of 85% of our REIT ordinary income for such year, 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for such year and any undistributed taxable
income from prior periods. Any REIT ordinary income and capital gain net income on which this excise tax is imposed for any year is treated as
an amount distributed during that year for purposes of calculating such tax.

        Distributions with declaration and record dates falling in the last three months of the calendar year, which are paid to our stockholders by
the end of January immediately following that year, will be treated for federal income tax purposes as having been paid on December 31 of the
prior year.

Failure to Qualify

        If we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT in any taxable year, and the relief provisions of the Internal Revenue Code do not apply, we will
be required to pay tax, including any alternative minimum tax, on our taxable income at regular corporate tax rates. Distributions to our
stockholders in any year in which we fail to qualify as a REIT will not be deductible by us, and we will not be required to distribute any amounts
to our stockholders. As a result, we anticipate that our failure to qualify as a REIT would reduce the cash available for distribution by us to our
stockholders. In addition, if we fail
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to qualify as a REIT, all distributions to our stockholders will be taxable as regular corporate dividends to the extent of our current and
accumulated earnings and profits. In this event, subject to certain limitations under the Internal Revenue Code, corporate distributees may be
eligible for the dividends-received deduction. Unless entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, we will also be disqualified from
taxation as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year in which we lose our qualification. It is not possible to state whether in all
circumstances we would be entitled to this statutory relief.

Tax Aspects of the Partnerships

        General.    From time to time, we may own, directly or indirectly, interests in various partnerships and limited liability companies. We
expect these will be treated as partnerships (or disregarded entities) for federal income tax purposes. In general, entities that are classified as
partnerships (or disregarded entities) for federal income tax purposes are "pass-through" entities which are not required to pay federal income
tax. Rather, partners or members of such entities are allocated their shares of the items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit of the entity,
and are potentially required to pay tax thereon, without regard to whether the partners or members receive a distribution of cash from the entity.
We include in our income our allocable share of the foregoing items for purposes of computing our REIT taxable income, based on the
partnership agreement. For purposes of applying the REIT income and asset tests, we include our pro rata share of the income generated by and
the assets held by the partnerships and limited liability companies in which we own an interest, including their shares of the income and assets of
any subsidiary partnerships and limited liability companies based on our capital interests. See "�Taxation of the Company."

        Our ownership interests in such partnerships and limited liability companies involves special tax considerations. These special tax
considerations include, for example, the possibility that the Internal Revenue Service might challenge the status of one or more of the
partnerships or limited liability companies in which we own an interest as partnerships (or disregarded entities), as opposed to associations
taxable as corporations, for federal income tax purposes. If a partnership or limited liability company in which we own an interest, or one or
more of its subsidiary partnerships or limited liability companies, were treated as an association, it would be taxable as a corporation and
therefore be subject to an entity-level tax on its income. In this situation, the character of our assets and items of gross income would change,
and could prevent us from satisfying the REIT asset tests and the REIT income tests (see "�Asset Tests" and "�Income Tests"). This, in turn, would
prevent us from qualifying as a REIT. See "�Failure to Qualify" for a discussion of the effect of our failure to meet these tests. In addition, a
change in the tax status of one or more of the partnerships or limited liability companies in which we own an interest might be treated as a
taxable event. If so, we might incur a tax liability without any related cash distributions.

        Treasury Regulations that apply for tax periods beginning on or after January 1, 1997, provide that a domestic business entity not otherwise
organized as a corporation and which has at least two members may elect to be taxed as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. Unless it
elects otherwise, an eligible entity in existence prior to January 1, 1997, will have the same classification for federal income tax purposes that it
claimed under the entity classification Treasury Regulations in effect prior to this date. In addition, an eligible entity which did not exist or did
not claim a classification prior to January 1, 1997, will be classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes unless it elects otherwise.
All of the partnerships in which we own an interest intend to claim classification as partnerships under these Treasury Regulations. As a result,
we believe that these partnerships will be classified as partnerships for federal income tax purposes. The treatment described above also applies
with respect to our ownership of interests in limited liability companies that are treated as partnerships for tax purposes.
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Allocations of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction. A partnership or limited liability company agreement will generally determine the
allocation of income and losses among partners or members. These allocations, however, will be disregarded for tax purposes if they do not
comply with the provisions of Section 704(b) of the Internal Revenue Code and the related Treasury Regulations. Generally, Section 704(b) of
the Internal Revenue Code and the related Treasury Regulations require that partnership and limited liability company allocations respect the
economic arrangement of the partners and members. If an allocation is not recognized for federal income tax purposes, the relevant item will be
reallocated according to the partners' or members' interests in the partnership or limited liability company, as the case may be. This reallocation
will be determined by taking into account all of the facts and circumstances relating to the economic arrangement of the partners or members
with respect to such item. The allocations of taxable income and loss in each of the partnerships and limited liability companies in which we
own an interest are intended to comply with the requirements of Section 704(b) of the Internal Revenue Code and the Treasury Regulations
promulgated thereunder.

        Tax Allocations With Respect to the Properties.    Under Section 704(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, income, gain, loss and deduction
attributable to appreciated or depreciated property that is contributed to a partnership or limited liability company in exchange for an interest in
the partnership or limited liability company must be allocated in a manner so that the contributing partner or member is charged with the
unrealized gain or benefits from the unrealized loss associated with the property at the time of the contribution. The amount of the unrealized
gain or loss is generally equal to the difference between the fair market value or book value and the adjusted tax basis of the contributed property
at the time of contribution. These allocations are solely for federal income tax purposes and do not affect the book capital accounts or other
economic or legal arrangements among the partners or members. Some of the partnerships and/or limited liability companies in which we own
an interest were formed by way of contributions of appreciated property. The relevant partnership and/or limited liability company agreements
require that allocations be made in a manner consistent with Section 704(c) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Other Tax Consequences

        We may be required to pay tax in various state or local jurisdictions, including those in which we transact business. Our state and local tax
treatment may not conform to the federal income tax consequences discussed above. Consequently, you should consult your tax advisors
regarding the effect of state and local tax laws on us.

New Legislation

        The maximum tax rate for non-corporate taxpayers for (i) capital gains, including "capital gain dividends," has generally been reduced from
20% to 15% (for taxable years ending on or after May 6, 2003, although depending on the characteristics of the assets which produced these
gains and on designations which we may make, certain capital gain dividends may be taxed at a 25% rate) and (ii) "qualified dividend income"
has generally been reduced from 38.6% to 15% (for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2002). In general, dividends payable by REITs
are not eligible for the reduced tax rate on corporate dividends, except to the extent the REIT's dividends are attributable to dividends received
from taxable corporations (such as our taxable REIT subsidiaries), to income that was subject to tax at the corporate/REIT level (for example, if
we distribute taxable income that we retained and paid tax on in the prior taxable year) or to dividends properly designated by us as "capital gain
dividends." Although these tax rate changes do not adversely affect the taxation of REITs or dividends paid by REITs, the more favorable
treatment of regular corporate dividends could cause investors who are individuals to consider stock of other corporations that pay dividends to
be more attractive relative to stock of REITs. The currently applicable provisions of the United States federal income tax laws relating to the
15% tax rate are currently scheduled to "sunset" or revert back to the provisions of prior law effective for taxable years beginning after
December 31, 2008, at which time the capital gains tax rate will be increased to 20% and the rate applicable to dividends will be increased to the
tax rate then applicable to ordinary income.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

        We may sell the securities to one or more underwriters for public offering and sale by them or may sell the securities to investors directly or
through agents. Any such underwriter or agent involved in the offer and sale of the Securities will be named in the applicable prospectus
supplement.

        Underwriters may offer and sell the securities at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed, at prices relating to the prevailing market
prices at the time of sale or at negotiated prices. We also may, from time to time, authorize underwriters acting as our agents to offer and sell the
securities upon the terms and conditions as are set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. In connection with the sale of securities,
underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions and may also receive
commissions from purchasers of securities for whom they may act as agent. Underwriters may sell securities to or through dealers, and such
dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters and/or commissions from the
purchasers for whom they may act as agent. Any underwriting compensation paid by us to underwriters or agents in connection with the offering
of securities, and any discounts, concessions or commissions allowed by underwriters to participating dealers, will be set forth in the applicable
prospectus supplement. Underwriters, dealers and agents participating in the distribution of the securities may be deemed to be underwriters, and
any discounts and commissions received by them and any profit realized by them on resale of the securities may be deemed to be underwriting
discounts and commissions, under the Securities Act. Any such underwriter or agent will be identified, and such compensation received from us
will be described, in the applicable prospectus supplement.

        Underwriters, dealers and agents may be entitled, under agreements entered into with us, to indemnification against and contribution toward
certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

        Certain of the underwriters, dealers and agents and their affiliates may be customers of, engage in transactions with and perform services
for us and our subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business.

        Unless otherwise specified in the related prospectus supplement, each series of securities will be a new issue with no established trading
market, other than the common stock. Our common stock is currently listed on the NYSE. Unless otherwise specified in the related prospectus
supplement, any shares of common stock sold pursuant to a prospectus supplement will be listed on the NYSE, subject to official notice of
issuance. We may elect to list any series of debt securities or preferred stock on an exchange or Nasdaq, but are not obligated to do so. It is
possible that one or more underwriters may make a market in a series of securities, but will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any
market making at any time without notice. Therefore, there can be no assurance as to the liquidity of, or the trading market for, the securities.

STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

        On June 10, 1998, our Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right, or right, for each
outstanding share of our common stock to stockholders of record at the close of business on July 1, 1998. When exercisable, each right entitles
the registered holder to purchase from us one one-hundredth (1/100th) of a share of our Class A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, or Class A
Preferred Stock, at a price of $104.50 per one one-hundredth of a Class A Preferred share, subject to adjustment. Initially, the rights will be
attached to all outstanding shares of our common stock, and no separate rights certificates will be distributed. Our Board of Directors also
authorized the issuance of one right with respect to each share of our common stock that we issue between June 10, 1998 and the earliest of the
Distribution Date, the Redemption Date and the Final Expiration Date (all as defined in the Rights Agreement, dated as of June 25, 1998
between us and
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The Bank of New York). Each share of our common stock offered hereby will have upon issuance one right attached.

        The rights will become exercisable and will detach from our common stock upon the earlier of (1) the tenth day after the public
announcement that any person or group has acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our common stock, or (2) the tenth business day
after any person or group commences, or announces an intention to commence, a tender or exchange offer which, if consummated, would result
in the beneficial ownership by a person or group of 15% or more of our common stock; the earlier of (1) and (2) is referred to as the Distribution
Date. If a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock (except pursuant to certain cash
tender offers for all outstanding common stock approved by our Board of Directors) or if we are the surviving corporation in a merger and our
common stock is not changed or exchanged, each right will entitle the holder, subject to exceptions, to purchase, at the right's then current
exercise price, that number of shares of our common stock having a market value equal to twice the exercise price. Similarly, if after the rights
become exercisable, we merge or consolidate with, or sell 50% or more of our assets or earning power to, another person, each right will then
entitle the holder to purchase, at the right's then current exercise price, that number of shares of the stock of the acquiring company which at the
time of such transaction would have a market value equal to twice the exercise price.

        The rights may be redeemed in whole, but not in part, at a price of $0.01 per right by our Board of Directors prior to the time that a person
or group has acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock. The Board of Directors may, under certain
circumstances, extend the period during which the rights are redeemable or postpone the Distribution Date. The rights will expire on July 1,
2008, unless earlier redeemed.

        For a more complete summary of the terms of the rights, the Rights Agreement and the Class A Preferred Stock, you should review the
information in our Form 8-A filed with the SEC on June 26, 1998, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus. The summary of
selected provisions of the rights, the Rights Agreement and the Class A Preferred Stock appearing above and in the Form 8-A is not complete,
and those summaries are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Rights Agreement and the articles supplementary establishing the Class A
Preferred Stock. You should review the Rights Agreement and the articles supplementary for the Class A Preferred Stock, copies of which may
be obtained as described below under "Where You Can Find More Information."

EXPERTS

        The consolidated financial statements and financial statement Schedule III of Realty Income Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, have been incorporated by reference
herein in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent accountants, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm
as experts in accounting and auditing.

LEGAL MATTERS

        The validity of the securities will be passed upon for us by Venable LLP and Latham & Watkins LLP.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

        We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any reports,
statements or other information that we have filed at the SEC's public reference rooms. You may read and copy any document we file with the
SEC at its public reference facilities at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may also obtain copies of this information by mail
from the public reference section of the SEC, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates. Please call the
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the public reference facilities. Our SEC filings are also available to the
public from commercial document retrieval services and at the web site maintained by the SEC at http://www.sec.gov. You may inspect
information that we file with The New York Stock Exchange at the offices of The New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, New York,
New York 10005.

        We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-3 under the Securities Act of 1933. This prospectus does not contain all of
the information set forth in the registration statement.

INCORPORATION OF INFORMATION WE FILE WITH THE SEC

        The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we file with them, which means:

�
Incorporated documents are considered part of this prospectus;

�
We can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents; and

�
Information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this prospectus.

        We incorporate by reference the documents listed below which were filed with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
"Exchange Act"):

�
Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003;

�
Our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 10, 2004;

�
The description of our 81/4% Monthly Income Senior Notes contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A (File
No. 001-13374), including any subsequently filed amendments and reports filed for the purpose of updating the description.

�
The description of our Class A Junior Participating Preferred Stock Purchase Rights contained in our Registration Statement
on Form 8-A (File No. 001-13374) filed on June 26, 1998;

�
The description of our 93/8% Class B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock contained in our Registration Statement on
Form 8-A (File No. 001-13374), including any subsequently filed amendments and reports filed for the purpose of updating
the description; and

�
The description of our 91/2% Class C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock contained in our Registration Statement on
Form 8-A (File No. 001-13374), including any subsequently filed amendments and reports filed for the purpose of updating
the description.

        If any statement in this prospectus is inconsistent with a statement in one of the incorporated documents referred to above, then the
statement in the incorporated document will be deemed to have been superseded by the statement in this prospectus.
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        We also incorporate by reference each of the following documents that we will file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus but before
the end of the offering:

�
Reports filed under Sections 13(a) and (c) of the Exchange Act; and

�
Any reports filed under Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act.
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        As described above, we incorporate by reference into the prospectus specified documents that we have filed or may file with the SEC under
the Exchange Act. However, no document that we have "furnished" or may in the future "furnish" with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act
shall be incorporated by reference into the prospectus. You may request a copy of any filings referred to above (excluding exhibits), at no cost,
by writing or telephoning us at the following address:

Realty Income Corporation
Attention: Investor Relations
220 West Crest Street
Escondido, CA 92025-1707
(760) 741-2111

OTHER INFORMATION

        During 2003, Realty Income and Crest Net Lease, acquired 86 properties operated as National Tire and Battery stores. TBC Corporation is
the lessee of these 86 properties, referred to as the TBC properties. We acquired the TBC properties for $135.7 million.

        During 2003, Realty Income and Crest Net Lease acquired 114 properties operated as Pantry convenience stores. The Pantry, Inc. is the
lessee of these 114 properties, referred to as the Pantry properties. We acquired the Pantry properties for $94.5 million.

        The TBC properties and the Pantry properties were acquired through sales leaseback transactions whereby each portfolio of properties was
leased on a long-term basis immediately after acquisition to a single tenant (the seller lessee) under net leases that transfer all of the properties'
nonfinancial operating and holding costs to the seller lessee. These acquisitions in the aggregate comprised a majority of the dollar amount of
total acquisitions made by us during 2003.

        Set forth below is certain condensed financial information of TBC Corporation and The Pantry Inc. which is taken from their annual reports
on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2002 and September 25, 2003, respectively, as filed with the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and their quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended September 30, 2003 and December 25,
2003, respectively, as filed with the SEC.

        The information and financial data contained herein concerning TBC Corporation and The Pantry, Inc. was obtained and has been
condensed from their public filings under the Exchange Act. Their financial data presented includes only the most recent interim and fiscal year
end reporting periods. We can make no representation as to the accuracy and completeness of the public filings of TBC Corporation and The
Pantry, Inc. It should be noted that TBC Corporation and The Pantry, Inc. have no duty, contractual of otherwise, to advise us of any events
which might have occurred subsequent to the date of such publicly available information which could affect the significance or accuracy of such
information.

        TBC Corporation and The Pantry, Inc. are subject to the information filing requirements of the Exchange Act, and, in accordance herewith,
are obligated to file periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC relating to its business, financial condition and other
matters. Such reports, proxy statements and other information may be inspected at the offices of the SEC at 450 Fifth Street, N.W. Washington
D.C., and should also be available at the following Regional Offices of the SEC: Room 1400, 75 Park Place, New York, New York 10007 and
Suite 1400, Northwestern Atrium Center, 500 West Madison Street, Chicago, Illinois 60661.
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        The following table summarizes the current assets, noncurrent assets, current liabilities, noncurrent liabilities, net sales or total revenue,
gross profits, income from continuing operations and net income for TBC Corporation and The Pantry, Inc. as of or for the nine months ended
September 30, 2003, and as of and for the three months ended December 25, 2003, respectively, and the most recent fiscal year end (dollars in
thousands).

As of or for the:

TBC Corporation
Nine months ended
September 30, 2003

The Pantry, Inc.
Three months ended
December 25, 2003

Current assets $ 407,153 $ 194,210
Noncurrent assets 231,481 797,760
Current liabilities 217,631 179,397
Noncurrent liabilities 167,961 678,384
Net sales or total revenue 947,789 751,336
Gross profits 299,259 140,363
Income from continuing operations 23,860 4,937
Net income 23,860 4,937

As of or for the fiscal year ended:
TBC Corporation
December 31, 2002

The Pantry, Inc.
September 25, 2003

Current assets $ 317,773 $ 200,153
Noncurrent assets 156,098 714,012
Current liabilities 151,157 182,699
Noncurrent liabilities 99,594 602,801
Net sales or total revenue 1,109,663 2,776,361
Gross profits 301,843 510,804
Income from continuing operations 27,382 11,504
Net income 27,382 11,504
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